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REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE
PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (“PRC")

10 Zhongshi Road, Changsha City
Hunan Province, the PRC

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 7708A,

77th Floor, International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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O'Melveny & Myers
(as to Hong Kong Law)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 00726

WEBSITE

http://dit.aconnect.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
Share listing
The Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Share (as at 31 December 2022)

Shares outstanding: 3,102,400,730 shares

Nominal value: HK$0.40 per share
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2022 annual results announcement: 30 March 2023

Book closure period (for determining shareholders’ eligibility to

attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the "2023 AGM")):
19 May 2023 to 24 May 2023 (both days inclusive)

2023 AGM: 24 May 2023
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DIT Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, “the Group”) (stock
code: 726HK) is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group positions itself as a leading integrated service provider
in smart building, as well as an innovative high-tech enterprise
that specializes in business throughout the entire value chain of
prefabricated construction (“PC"). We are the first listed company
in the prefabricated construction industry. The main business of
the Group covers prefabricated concrete manufacturing, smart
landscaping services and smart decoration services. The Group
has already set up several smart PC plants nationwide. It has 19
self-operated PC plants and several plants owned and operated
by franchisees.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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The Group provides green buildings and one-stop home solutions
as our key mission and is dedicated to the strategic presence
nationwide to seize the opportunities form construction
industrialization in China during the 10-year golden era, and
achieve such industrialization, informationalization and
technologicalization of the construction industry with the
application of various technology collaborations. We aim to
transform traditional construction from “on-site” to “precast
components+on-site assembly” mode, bringing unprecedented
change to the construction industry.

“Developing Brilliant Living” is our corporate value and we aim to
facilitate the upgrade and transformation of the modernization of
the construction industry. With our commitment to the creation
of the largest modernized operating platform of the construction
industry in China, we strive to create a new construction industry
which is environmentally friendly, highly efficient and at top
quality by the process of informationalization with the seamless
combination between technology and building. The Group has
set up several smart PC plants nationwide, and is the industry
leading enterprise in China in terms of the number of smart
production lines. The Group’s technologies and products receive
wide recognition from our clients. The Group currently provides
its service for projects under construction with site area of
approximately 6 million square metres in China.

6 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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With the consistent adherence to its development strategy of
“driving development with leading technology”, the Group is
equipped with the five most advanced core technology systems
specific to the industry of prefabrication construction in the world
with the Group's possession of a plenitude of core technologies
ranging from Building Information Modeling (“BIM") in the context
of intelligent construction, the Internet of Things, Big Data to
artificial intelligence. The number of the Group’s patents has
been continuously ranking first in the prefabricated construction
industry. The Group has the one and only one research and
development (“R&D") center at provincial level in the industry, as
well as the pilot smart manufacturing R&D platform.

The Group is dedicated to provide safer, more comfortable and
smarter living experience through its continuing technological
innovation.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | am pleased to report the consolidated results
of the Group and present a business review for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

In 2022, China’s economic and social development was hit by
multiple unexpected factors, with gross domestic product (“GDP")
growing by 3%, well below the official target. Throughout the
Reporting Period, the domestic real estate industry saw a year-
on-year decline in sales, investment, financing and other core
operating data due to the COVID-19 pandemic and adjustment of
the industry cycle. Since the second half of 2022, various
ministries and commissions and governments at all levels have
released various relief measures and policies to promote the
steady and healthy development of the real estate market. As
China's anti-pandemic policy was gradually eased at the end of
2022, domestic production and consumption have gradually
recovered, and the real estate market has shown a momentum
of recovery.

8 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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Under many challenges, the Group’s operating results in 2022
were inevitably affected. For the 12 months ended 31 December
2022, the Group recorded sales revenue of approximately
HK$1,574 million, a year-on-year decrease of approximately
24.5%; the gross margin fell approximately 50.0% from a year
earlier to approximately HK$262 million; the net loss attributable
to the parent company was approximately HK$148 million. In the
face of pressure and difficulties, the Group persevered, made
active responses, and proactively carried out self-innovation.
New achievements have been made in scientific and
technological research and development, operation and
management, and brand influence and market reputation have
been improved.

Taking multiple measures simultaneously and enhancing quality
and effectiveness of operation and management. Focusing on
the “improvement of organisational efficiency” and centring on
the goal of “fine management and profit maximisation”, the
Group carried out efficient adjustment to achieve “refinement at
headquarters, specialty in project companies and solidness in
projects/plants” in 2022. It gave full play to the advantages of the
whole industrial chain and made breakthroughs in diversified
operations. Active efforts were made to revitalise assets and
measures were taken simultaneously to generate revenue and
increase benefits. It concentrated on enhancing the ability to
develop new businesses, forged partnerships with state-owned
enterprises like Second Construction Engineering Company Ltd.,
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (“CSCEC”), and
strove to achieve the stability of purchase orders and receivables.
Priorities were given to collect debts throughout the Reporting
Period. Customer satisfaction surveys were conducted on a
regular basis to listen to the voice of purchase customers and
smoothen communication channels. The supplier credit
evaluation system was established to classify and manage
suppliers, and the supplier management mechanism featuring at
survival of the fittest was improved continuously, so as to ensure
that suppliers meet the requirements in quality, technology,
delivery, service and other aspects.

Solidifying strength in scientific and technological research and
striving for R&D breakthroughs. The Group, which has always
adhered to the development strategy of “being a leader in
science and technology”, won multiple honours in 2022, including
an expert workstation of Changsha in 2022, a model enterprise
moving to the cloud or industrial Internet platform in Hunan and
a leading talent in scientific and technological innovation in
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Changsha. It received from the central government the guidance
fund for scientific and technological development at the local
level. The Group completed the acceptance check for three
demonstration projects under the Science and Technology to
Boost Economy 2020, a national key research and development
programme, and technological achievements were highly
appraised by experts. The national-level postdoctoral research
station has attracted two doctors to carry out postdoctoral
research. The Group independently developed “digitalisation for
construction project management” and adopted digital
intelligence in the entire process, from project initiation to
delivery, creating a digitally-intelligent closed-loop management
model for “online construction standards, automated progress
management, visualisation of construction quality, and remote
monitoring and management” of projects. All-round efforts were
made to push forward the research and development of eight
new products, including an eccentric member called self-aligning
equalizing beam spreader, a nonrotary table tie electrical-heating
curing system and a high ductility concrete spreader, so as to
enable the intelligentisation and automation of equipment in PC
plants. It prepared three CECS technical specifications, one of
which was published, where the overall scientific and
technological achievements reached the international advanced
level.

Actively participating in professional certification and striving for
various rewards and subsidies. In 2022, its Foshan plant and
Nantong plant were recognised as ‘new high-tech enterprises’,
plants in Zhoukou, Zhuangbei, Foshan, Xiangtan were rated as
Small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs") characterised by
specialty, refinement, uniqueness and novelty, and plants in
Huaian and Queshan were named as technology-based SMES.
Plants in Huaian, Zhoukou and Queshan were recognised as
engineering research centres. The Group actively applied for
government rewards and subsidies. Its “machine-replacing-
human” demonstration project in the decoration industrial park
received the fund for high-quality development of the
manufacturing industry in Henan, the plant in Dongli, Tianjin
received government investment rewards and subsidies, the
Company was funded for expanding the use of foreign capital in
Changsha, and its Hefei plant won research and development
subsidies for technology-based SMEs.

1 o DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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Deepening cooperation with Glodon and focusing on digital
development. On 28 July 2022, the Group entered into a
commercial promotion cooperation agreement with Glodon
Company Limited (“Glodon”). The two parties will give play to
their advantages to jointly develop products, expand markets and
strengthen cooperation. By giving full play to their unique
advantages in their respective fields, they will better explore the
way of digital transformation of the construction industry,
promote the development of industry information technology
and deepen the application of fine project management, in a bid
to empower the technological and digital development of the
construction industry.

Enhancing brand influence and establishing a new industry
benchmark. The Group obtained certification in Hong Kong for its
product gquality and manufacturing practice. It was honoured as
the Most Valuable Investment Brand of the Year in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. The Group actively teamed
up with the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of Henan Province and other departments to hold a
competition for construction workers of prefabricated buildings
in Henan. As a member of the panel of the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of Henan Province, the
Group participated in the research on the implementation of
prefabricated building policies and the standardisation of
prefabricated buildings in Henan.

China’s economy has strong resilience, great potential and
vitality. Long-term sound economic fundamentals won't change.
We have full confidence in the future. Real estate is the pillar
industry of the national economy. The construction industry
generates large output, has broad coverage and employs many
workers. Although the industry still faces adjustment in the short
term, with the real estate market gradually getting better under
the support of favourable policies, the construction units that are
exposed to many risks due to blind expansion in the early stage
were sold rapidly, the policies related to prefabricated buildings
were implemented in various regions, and the prefabricated
construction market will have a promising prospect.
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The Group will insist on its positioning as a provider of integrated
smart building solutions and mission of “Developing Brilliant
Living”. Based on the industry, the Group will give full play to the
advantages of the whole industrial chain, dig deep into the
construction industrialisation scenes, roll out key finished
housing projects in key cities, enrich the business types of PC
components, create new business growth points, and strengthen
the strategic cooperation with state-owned enterprises and
leading enterprises, striving to maintain growth in size.
Breakthroughs have been made in research and development in
key fields and progress has been made in the new building
structural system, research on green and low-carbon
prefabricated buildings, digitalisation of the whole industrial
chain, and research and development of intelligent PC
equipment, allowing the Group to stay ahead of the industry.
Actions were taken to deepen fine management, ensure the
good performance of engineering projects and plant supply,
strengthen staff skills" improvement and cost control, increase
the purchase order conversion rate, fully implement the
operation responsibility system in plants, establish a cooperative
combat mechanism, promote operation via evaluation, provide
incentives to encourage meeting targets, and improve per capita
efficiency by increasing the production efficiency and automation
level of PC plants.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the staff for their hard work and
dedication in the past year. | would also like to express our
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their continuing support and trust.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CUE PR HES

FERERME

BE1+-_HA=1+—HILFE

2022 2021 Changes
—E-= —F-— BB
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FET) 1,573,662 2,085,226 -24.5%
Gross profit (HK$'000) FEM(FHET) 261,934 524,155 -50.0%
Gross profit margin FEF| = 16.6% 25.1% -8.5%
Net (l0ss)/profit (HK$'000) F(BR) w8 (F&r)  (153,575) 138,977 -210.5%
Net profit margin H i A -9.8% 6.7% -16.5%
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity BB AN
shareholders (HK$'000) (B8R, &5 (F#T) (148,150) 132,375 -211.9%
Basic (losses)/earnings per share BREAX(EBRE)
(HK$ cents) A CGEM) (4.78) 4.66 -202.6%
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share BREE (BER)/
(HK$ cents) A GEM) (4.78) 4.66 -202.6%
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 4Z&HERRARBE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021 Changes
—Eg-= —E BE
Total cash (including cash and cash BES (PRERER
equivalents and restricted bank deposit) REFEEBEENULK
(HK$'000) BRHIER) (FET) 80,371 649,068 -87.6%
Total assets (HK$000) BEMBRE(TET) 6,689,926 7,560,802 -11.5%
Total liabilities (HK$'000) aEBE(FET) 3,771,482 4,199,505 -10.2%
Total equity (including non-controlling B RE (BIEIFER
interest) (HK$°000) W= (FET) 2,918,444 3,361,297 -13.2%
Total debt (HK$'000) B85 (F&T) 1,772,491 2,298,499 -22.9%
Current ratio ® MENEE O 90.4% 113.7% -23.3*
Net gearing ratio @ FEELREO 59.9% 50.8% 9.1*
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE(ET) 0.94 1.08 -13.0%
Equity attributable to equity shareholders E=EE AL
per share (HK$) B RERS CEoT) 0.72 0.86 -16.3%
Notes: Btet -
* Change in percentage points * BOLLEH

(1 Calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total current

liabilities
2) Calculated as set out on pages 29 to 30
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, China’s economic and social uncertainty increased and
GDP growth slowed down significantly due to repeated and
multiple COVID-19 outbreaks nationwide. In particular, the real
estate industry, a pillar of the economy, remained under the
cloud of uncertainty with ongoing impacts of domestic and
overseas debt and liquidity problems. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics, the investment in real estate development
around China dropped by 10.0% year-on-year in 2022. The
downturn in the real estate industry directly affected the
upstream industry chain, including the construction industry.
Compared to 2021, the gross housing construction area, gross
new housing construction area and gross area of completed
housing construction fell by 7.2%, 39.4% and 15.0% respectively
in 2022, marking the commencement of a tough period of
construction industry. Systematic risks were accumulating and
market competition became even fiercer. Besides, payment
collection problem is putting pressure on operations, further
accelerating industry consolidation and survival of the fittest.
Meanwhile, competition in the prefabricated construction
industry intensified, causing overall price drop.

Under the challenging external environment, the Group's annual
results of operations in 2022 were inevitably affected. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group achieved sales
revenue of approximately HK$1.574 billion, a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 24.5%. Its gross profit was
approximately HK$262 million, a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 50.0%. The net loss attributable to the parent
company was approximately 148 million, a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 211.9%.
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Adjustment of operating strategies in response
to market changes and consolidation of business
setup across the industry chain

During the Reporting Period, the Group proactively adjusted
its operating strategies in response to intensified
competition and market changes. During the Reporting
Period, the Group continued to develop prefabricated
building, and actively expanded the smart landscaping and
smart decoration business, and consolidated the business
setup throughout the industry chain. In 2022, as a result of
shrinking demand caused by the real estate industry with a
downward trend, and price decline caused by fiercer
market competition, the contract sales of PC components
were approximately RMB2.49 billion, a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 14.51%, the output of PC
components dropped by approximately 12.14% year-on-
year to approximately 378,000 cubic metres; the sales
volume of PC components dropped by approximately
8.24% year-on-year to approximately 382,000 cubic metres.

Despite such decreases, during the Reporting Period, the
Group deepened the setup of its PC factories and put new
PC factory in Ruyang into operation by means of direct
sales, franchise and asset-light model, and reinforced its
production capacity distribution in the Yangtze River Delta
and Greater Bay Area. As of 31 December 2022, the Group
invested in and launched a total of 19 smart PC factories
and a Prefabricated Decoration Industrial Park nationwide.
The production capacity of PC components reached 1.34
million cubic metres. As for sales volumes of PC
components by region since 2022, the percentage of the
Central China, Greater Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta and
Henan Province was approximately 27%, 21%, 36% and
16% respectively. The efforts put in national production
capacity distribution were effective. With respect to sales
volumes of PC components by client in 2022, construction
companies accounted for approximately 79% and property
developers accounted for 19%.
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In the face of market changes, the Group has been
committed to the pursuit of high-quality component
products and continued to provide overall solution services
for smart buildings. Within the Reporting Period, it won
many awards and recognition from the prefabricated
construction industry, and continued to be well recognized
by industry insiders. In January 2022, the Company was
named the Benchmark Enterprise for “Migration to Cloud
and Platform” by Hunan Province. In April 2022, Huizhou
factory obtained the “Quality Scheme for the Production
and Supply of Concrete” certification issued by the Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency, and component products
can be supplied directly to construction projects in Hong
Kong. The Group's Prefabricated Decoration Industrial Park
won titles of the “2022 Demonstration Enterprise of Henan
Province in Energy and Carbon Management” and “2022
Henan Province Smart Workshop”. Its “Replacing People
with Machines” demonstration application project also won
the highest special award of RMB 5 million. Foshan factory,
Zhoukou factory and Xiangtan factory were rated as “SME
of Specialty, Refinement, Uniqueness and Novelty”;
Dengfeng factory was named the “Prefabricated
Construction Industrial Base in Zhengzhou”, certified as
Green Building Materials, and accredited as “Technological
Enterprise in Zhengzhou”. Ruyang factory, Jiaozhou factory
and Nanjing factory were rated as "Hi-tech Enterprise”.
During the Reporting Period, the Group owns 15 national
"Hi-tech Enterprises”. In addition, the pandemic in Henan
Province was severe in April 2022. The Group assumed
social responsibilities and responded to the construction of
the makeshift hospital in Shanggiu, winning recognition
from the government.
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Strengthening management and diversifying
development to ensure stable operations

Within challenging market environment, the Group
prioritised expense cutting and costs controlling while
strengthening cash flow management, intensifying efforts
of collecting accounts receivable, controlling the increase
in accounts receivable, ensuring the collection of payments
and secured capital turnover so as to stabilise the Group'’s
operations. In terms of factory management, the Group
adopted multiple refined management measures, lowered
production costs, and improved productivity. In light of
favorable national policies, the Group actively applied for
government subsidies for high-tech enterprises. Its
Prefabricated Decoration Industrial Park was successfully
granted the corporate R&D fund and research subsidies in
2022, which helped to relieve the Group from pressure on
capital.

In addition to cutting costs, the Group made progress in
raising revenue. Within the Reporting Period, the Group
was committed to revitalising existing assets, exploring
new business possibilities, and managed to enter the field
of prefabricated wind power tower. Its Defeng factory
started venturing into components of prefabricated wind
power tower. The concrete tower segments are
prefabricated with high-precision formwork for localised
production of projects. In this way, timely supply of
concrete tower products was ensured, and the costs and
risks of transporting large diameter products over long
distances were lowered as compared to steel towers. The
wind power industry in China is promising. There is huge
market potential for wind power towers. Besides, the new
venture can help to enhance the production capacity
utilisation of the Group's factories and bring growth
momentum to the Group in future.
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Moreover, as a leading enterprise in the prefabricated
construction industry, the Group actively established
strategic partnerships during the Reporting Period to
expand its development into construction fields other than
housing. In October 2022, our parent company — China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group signed a strategic
partnership agreement with the Second Construction
Engineering Company Ltd., CSCEC regarding all-round
multi-level cooperation in project development and
construction, and smart buildings among other fields. The
two parties are highly compatible and complementary with
huge potential for cooperation in areas such as new
infrastructure investment and construction. Based on the
strategic partnership, the parties will leverage their
resources and advantages to complement each other, and
join their efforts to promote the high-quality development
of China’s construction industry through the development
and construction of a series of high-quality projects.

Launch of strategic cooperation of operations
with Glodon to accelerate digital transformation
of the construction industry

China is vigorously encouraging the high-quality
development of the construction industry and promoting the
goals of “carbon peaking” and “carbon neutrality”. The entire
industry chain of the construction industry is being upgraded
through digital transformation. In 2021, the Group signed a
Equity Subscription Agreement with Glodon, the leading
service provider of digital construction platforms in China,
through which Glodon became the second biggest
shareholder of the Group. Based on the SaaS prefabricated
construction industry Internet platform, and centred on the
integrated development of “digitalisation + industrialisation”,
the Group and Glodon officially launched strategic
cooperation of operations in 2022.
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The Group used its own industrialised technology system
combined with Glodon’s digital construction solutions to
create a vertical integration platform for the industry, jointly
developed with Glodon the project management system
(PMS) for prefabricated building construction sites, and
applied in the EMPC general contracting project. The
cooperation progressed smoothly, and successfully
generated revenue in 2022. In addition, within the Reporting
Period, the Group and Glodon jointly developed and
improved the Group’s Quick Quotation System (QQS) for
prefabricated buildings, formed market linkages and jointly
conducted market expansion. In July 2022, the Group
further signed a commercial promotion cooperation
agreement with Glodon to promote the development of
industry information technology and deepen the application
of refined project management. By firmly seizing the
opportunities arising from rapid development of the smart
building era, the Group and Glodon made joint contribution
to the digital transformation and development of the
construction industry.

Focusing on scientific research, highlighting the
advantages of digital intelligence

The Group is committed to becoming a leading smart
building comprehensive solution provider by adhering to
the development strategy of “being a technological leader”,
leveraging its own advantages with a leading core
technology system, mastering the core technologies of
digital intelligence such as BIM, Internet of Things, big data,
and artificial intelligence in the field of smart buildings, and
promoting the digitalisation of the prefabricated
construction industry. During the Reporting Period, the
Group added four independently developed patents on
prefabrication technology, and continued to lead the
industry with a cumulative number of patents to 1,910 as of
31 December 2022.
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In terms of R&D, the Group has continuously focused on
scientific research and innovation, and worked on
prefabricated building technologies that reduce carbon
emissions from construction activities. In June 2022, the
Group released the CCRE Residential Green Technology
Application Guidelines 1.0 and Requirements for Carbon
Neutrality Management System through the integrated
application research on the integrative application of more
than 40 green and low-carbon technologies in the whole
life cycle of building product design, manufacturing,
construction and operation and maintenance, promoted
the upgrade of low-carbon green building products,
maximised resource utilisation efficiency, and helped China
to achieve the “dual carbon” goals. In October 2022, the
Company's “Dual Carbon” Action Plan was published at the
Group's 9th Science and Technology Conference,
announcing its current status of carbon emissions, carbon
emission reduction targets and systematic carbon
reduction solutions. In addition, in terms of smart
construction, the Group independently developed
"digitalised platform for construction project management”.
From project initiation to delivery, the entire process
adopted digital and intelligent application, forming a
digitally-intelligent closed-loop management model for
“online construction standards, automated progress
management, visualisation of construction quality, and
remote monitoring and management” of projects.
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V. Multiple repurchases during the Year to boost

confidence in the Company’s development

Since the announcement of the repurchase intention on 13
September 2022, the Group has repurchased 1,065,000
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at a price in between
HK$0.385 to HK$0.45 per Share on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited during the year ended 31 December
2022. The total amount for repurchases of Shares was
approximately HK$439,000. The Board believes that the
stock price of the Group does not reflect its intrinsic value.
The repurchases made during the Reporting Period showed
the Board's confidence in the Group’s operating conditions,
development prospects and long-term investment value.
Meanwhile, the repurchase can effectively maintain the
Group’s stock price, market value and capital value, and
return capital to investors, thus safeguarding the interests
of investors, especially small and medium-sized investors,
and providing investors with stable expectations and long-
term investment returns for shareholders accordingly. In
addition, Mr. Liu Weixing, executive Director and the
chairman of the Board purchased 820,000 Shares at a price
in between HK$0.33 to HK$0.395 per Share on 13
September 2022, fully proving the management'’s
confidence in the Company’s development prospects.

Business Outlook

I.  Steady recovery of macro-economy, low-carbon
green construction to promote industry
development
With the gradual relaxation of domestic COVID-19
prevention and control at the beginning of this year, it is
expected that the overall macro-economy will steadily rally
in 2023. The real estate industry serves as a pillar of
national economy. Thanks to the implementation of
supporting policies, such as the “16-point Financial Plan”,
stable credit input and optimised credit services for
construction companies are proposed to maintain
continuous stable financing for construction companies.
The real estate industry is expected to rebound gradually.
However, it will take time for the real estate market to fully
recover. It is believed that the market will take until the
second half of this year or longer to return to normal
growth.
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Meanwhile, China sticks to the goal of achieving “carbon
peaking” by 2030 and “carbon neutrality” by 2060. The
prefabricated construction industry is considered an
important solution for energy conservation and carbon
emission reduction in the construction industry, which will
contribute to the realization of the “dual carbon” goals. As
the Prefabricated Construction Action Plan under the
Fourteenth Five-Year Plan announced by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the People’s
Republic of China ("MOHURD") expressly indicated,
prefabricated buildings will account for 30% of the new GFA
by 2025. All provinces and municipalities are intensively
implementing prefabricated construction-related policies.
At present, twenty-five provinces (autonomous regions and
municipalities) have issued the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan”
related to the construction industry, among which, ten
provinces indicated that the proportion of prefabricated
buildings in new buildings in 2025 will be higher than the
national planning target. In the last seven years, the
industry issued about 1,303 policy documents, 668
standards and regulations to build its policy system. In
November 2022, the MOHURD released the Notice on the
Announcement of Smart Construction Pilot Cities. 24 cities
are to be pilot cities, including Changsha and Zhengzhou
where the Group is headquartered. In January 2023, the
MOHURD further stated, the construction market shall be
shifted towards “loose entry, strict regulation and severe
punishment”, and the construction industry will focus on
industrialisation, digitalisation and greening so as to
continuously improve construction quality.

Against the backdrop of the “dual carbon” goals, the
traditional construction industry will speed up upgrading
and transformation and promote green construction
methods. The prefabricated construction is becoming
dominant in China’s construction industry. In the first half
of 2022, the GFA of newly constructed prefabricated
buildings accounted for over 25% of the new buildings,
reaching 2.4 billion square metres. The Group is expected
to achieve gradual recovery and steady growth as China
intensifies its efforts to achieve high-quality development of
the construction industry and promote the goal of “carbon
peaking” and “carbon neutrality”, together with the
intensive implementation of policies related to
prefabricated construction, steady recovery of the real
estate industry, and continuously growing market demand
for prefabricated construction.
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Maximising advantages of full industry chain
coverage, enhancing utilisation of production
capacity

The Group is committed to consolidating prefabricated
construction business, and covering the full industry chain
of PC components, landscaping and decoration to serve
the whole lifecycle of prefabricated buildings. The Group
undertakes general contracting from design to PC supply,
landscaping and decoration, supply and landscape
decoration, maximising its advantages of full industry chain
coverage. We will make in-depth exploration of
industrialised scenarios of the construction industry, and
specify the plan on increase of the industrialization rate of
prefabricated construction from 2023 to 2025. In principle,
the proportion of prefabricated buildings in new buildings
will grow 10% annually by the Fourteenth Five-year Plan.
Moreover, the Group will expand the business types of PC
components, such as prefabricated culverts, water
conservancy projects, wind power towers, public utility
networks and protective PC components along railways, to
enrich the types of business orders and increase third-party
customers. In this way, new growth momentum will be
injected into business development; production capacity
utilisation of the Group's factories will be enhanced; and
contribution will be made to promoting energy-efficient and
low-carbon green buildings, and accelerating the upgrading
and transformation of the construction industry.

As the Central Government of China proposed to advance
the construction of affordable housing at the end of 2022, it
is expected that the policy will drive the growth of demand
for prefabricated buildings for their advantages of
standardisation, industrialisation, energy saving and carbon
emission reduction. The Group will actively explore
opportunities in the construction of affordable housing,
public buildings and infrastructure facilities, strengthen
horizontal strategic cooperation with national platform
companies and relevant institutions, seize business
opportunities, focus on key projects, increase the scale of
business, production and sales, and strive for cooperation
at different levels to increase its market penetration of
prefabricated buildings.
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lll. Lowering costs, improving quality and efficiency, = BARREEN BEWMRED  HELY
maximising R&D advantages to promote WEEEHM
implementation via digitalisation
The Group will actively lower costs, improve quality and SEBSEREBREAIRE BN - BIRFEE
increase efficiency to achieve profit growth. In terms of R o RAUFEARTE - & B G EEHIARA]
efficiency improvement and cost reduction, the Group will TERX  BRERINSEANERERE
focus on the controllable cost rate of human efficiency; BER: AEIZEELAR 2EER
actively apply for various human resource support policies o IREECERIER S UMAKNA  UE
issued by the government; carry out optimisation, WA PCIMABINDERRESHEE
upgrading and rationalised development of working RATEE - WERETE - SEEHS) N
standards, and accelerate the replication of best practices B EREeHESNREE %L REBRET
to save costs; and adopt centralised procurement and RIS  BRRERUWE  BRORE
labour outsourcing of the steel and PC factories to reduce T NSRRI ATERPEE - B AR -
procurement costs. As for investment expansion, the FENGR BSR4 4 o

Group is committed to launching franchise and
management output and other expansion projects;
promote the release of equity in associate factories to
shorten the period for investment recovery, and release
cash flow; and strengthen communication with government
agencies, pay attention to favourable policies and actively
apply for rewards and subsidies.

By adhering to the development strategy of “Top Priority for EERF [RHRELE ] WBR A - KRG
Leading Edge of Technology”, the Group will maintain its FRBHBWRE  2EXHEHTL - B
leading position in the industry through release of {EPCRBZHEIESD - (RIFITHEEL »
technological protocols, digitalisation of the entire industry EEMNITEEIF2EEERRER BB
chain, and smart PC equipment among other R&D [REE | BB - IKIEERREREEXE X
advantages. The Group is fully committed to developing DR (RE -« 8« 2RI alF
innovative synergy of entire industry chain. It will follow the MERK - BBEBIMEM - EFtE - KREUE -
“Smart Home" strategy, rely on the scientific and B RS B LRI T T R SR - DAL
technological innovation and integration at the core FRESEEHETREE(HT - THR(EE
production steps (i.e. design, manufacturing and mBEABT FARE - BALE
construction) of the whole, prefabricated construction B BELES BERgEEs  THNK
industry chain, achieve standardised design, factory AHEEAR - EEELHHE  EEFER
manufacturing, specialized construction, platform-based ZRHEERFT NG EBRAHTE - HE
procurement, fine management and intelligent operation in EREENRWEFE  BEERHMER
the entire industry chain by combining BIM technology, TEEEAR  ZERESEBETHEL T EASE
cloud computing, big data, Internet of things and other Sehr - EEE S| A BHEABEIRE - &
digital technologies through prefabrication. This leads to an BHEAET8FLH] REXL]IER &
overall upgrade of construction quality, schedule and cost. ][ 1+1>2] B9 R AAFE o &R [ B R B o s A

With respect to digitalisation, the Group will continue to
improve its manufacturing management platform, and
online procurement and investment promotion platform,
promote the construction of smart community R&D
platform, and build product analysis models to support data
decision making, thus consolidating the Group’s leading
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position in digitalisation. The Group also brought in Glodon
as a strategic shareholder of the Company in the hope that
the parties may combine their advantages of “digitalisation”
and “industrialisation”, and achieve the synergy of “1+1>2".
Together, we will continue to develop SaaS-based digital
products, create overall digital solution for the
prefabricated construction industry, integrate digitalisation
and industrialisation of construction, and carry out
industrialisation platform planning to promote the market
launch of digital products and lead the construction
industry into digital transformation and upgrading.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, decoration and landscaping services, granting
licenses, consulting services and sales of equipment in the
People’s Republic of China.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 24.5%
from approximately HK$2,085.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$1,573.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to (i) the decrease in revenue from technical and consulting
licensing of approximately HK$100.9 million; (ii) the decrease in
transactions of landscaping and decoration services of
approximately HK$174.7 million; and (iii) the decrease in revenue
from PC components of approximately HK$241.7 million due to
the pandemic and closure of certain factories. As a result, the
Group recorded sales revenue for year ended 31 December 2022
of prefabricated construction units of approximately HK$1,081.0
million (2021: approximately HK$1,322.6 million), decoration and
landscaping services of approximately HK$376.8 million (2021:
approximately HK$551.5 million), granting licenses of
approximately HK$40.4 million (2021: approximately HK$98.1
million), consulting services of approximately HK$35.8 million
(2021: approximately HK$79.0 million), prefabricated construction
equipments of approximately HK$26.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$12.7 million) and rental income of
approximately HK$13.7 million (2021: approximately HK$21.3
million).
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$1,311.7
million (2021: approximately HK$1,561.1 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decline in revenue from the sales of
prefabricated components and landscaping and decoration
services, along with the corresponding decrease in cost of sales.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$262.3 million from approximately HK$524.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$261.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The gross profit margin
decreased to 16.6% in 2022 from 25.1% in 2021. The decrease in
gross profit was mainly due to a significant decline in revenue
from technology licensing and consultancy business.

Other income

The other income of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$5.4 million from approximately HK$17.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$12.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Other income mainly
comprised of interest income from a related party of
approximately HK$7.5 million and interest income arose from
bank deposits of approximately HK$2.0 million.

Other losses — net

For the year ended 31 December 2022, other losses — net
amounting to approximately HK$9.4 million is mainly comprised
of (i) gains on early termination of lease contracts of
approximately HK$6.2 million; (i) fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$6.9
million; (iii) overdue interests to suppliers of approximately
HK$3.5 million; and (iv) provision for onerous contract of
approximately HK$3.4 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$84.1 million (2021: approximately HK$91.2 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in expenses was
primarily attributable to the pandemic and closure of certain
factories and drop in income and the decrease in transportation
fees for product sales.
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Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the administrative
expenses decreased by 2% to approximately HK$187.6 million
from approximately HK$192.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly attributable to the decrease
of approximately HK$8.6 million in leases expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared to last year and the slight
decrease in staff costs, mainly because of the decrease of
approximately HK$3.2 million in share incentive expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to last year, while
the remaining increase was attributable to the increment of other
general administrative expenses, such as rental expenses,
professional fee, entertainment, travelling expenses and office
expenses, etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$76.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 represented (i) the interest expenses
of approximately HK$94.4 million for the borrowings, (ii) the
finance charges of approximately HK$4.0 million on the lease
liabilities; and (iii) capitalisation of interest of approximately
HK$22.4 million in plants under development for prefabricated
construction business for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$25.1 million (2021:
approximately HK$461.4 million) and the current ratio of the
Group is 0.9 (2021: 1.1).

As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,771.1 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$2,179.3 million) and the net gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total equity, is 59.9% (2021:
50.8%).

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 25 July 1991. The capital structure of the
Group comprised issued share capital and reserves. Details of
the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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On 19 November 2021, the Company issued and allotted
300,000,000 new shares (the “Subscription Shares”) of the
Company to Glodon (Hongkong) Software Limited for cash at
subscription price of HK$0.96 per Subscription Share (the
"Subscription”) (representing a premium of approximately 33.33%
to the closing price of HK$0.72 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the subscription agreement). The net
proceeds from the Subscription (after deducting the expenses
incurred in the Subscription) amounted to approximately
HK$287,500,000. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds
from the Subscription: (i) as to HK$90,000,000 for digitalization
and software development in relation to the construction
industry, and (i) the remaining amount for working capital and
other general corporate purposes. There had been no change in
the intended use of net proceeds as previous disclosed in the
Company’s announcements. The details of the use of the net
proceeds from the Subscription are set out below:

RZZZ—F+—A+NA  AorAREEZEE
) BT AR A7) 317 & BL % A2 300,000,000
ety ([REED]) - RBESSRABRD
09687 - UIREX M (TREFERE]) (AIRMHNR
BiHm A MEBR ARz BT ESR072ET
B #I33.33%) ° REEAZAMEHIAFH (R
RBFHELE ZHXR)#/3287,500,00078 7T °
ARAERERBERIAEREFEARTIE
T8 : (1)90,000,000;8 Tt A R L X AR M B 1L
LBHHEE R T2REAREEES LEM
—RIEFERE o PTSFIRFREAEETE A% EITA
RARBIAEHAEEE —H - BARBEHZIM
BRIEFEME ZFBHEINNT ¢

Expected

Actual amount Actual unutilized utilization

Net proceeds utilized up to amount as at timeline for
from the 31 December 31 December unutilized

Uses of net proceeds FEREFERRE Subscription 2022 2022 amount

BE-_Z_—F RZBZZF
RBEEwE2z +=-A=+-H +=ZA=+-H REBAEE
FIBETE CHABRSE A<DABEKRLE A ARE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEBET) (BE%ET) (BEB#ET)

Digitalization and software HREZRENET 90.0 6.1 839 31 December
development in relation to b R &R 2 2023
the construction industry —E-=F

+—A=+—8

Working capital and other 2EESREM—R 197.5 197.5 - -

general corporate purposes  (ER®
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 20 August 2021, the
Group will, from time to time, explore collaboration opportunities
with strategic investors and partners to create synergies with,
and complement, the Group's existing business and future
business development. Glodon is a top rank market leader of
construction engineering informationization in the PRC. The
Board believes that there is considerable potential for business
collaboration and synergies between the Group and Glodon's
group, which may lead to greater operational efficiencies and
complement the Group’s business expansion plan. The additional
funds brought to the Group from the Subscription can strengthen
the financial position and broaden the capital base of the Group
to facilitate its business operations and development.

Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial
management. Therefore, we maintained a high proportion of
cash with a reasonable level of borrowing. As at 31 December
2022, the repayment schedule of the Group’s bank loans and
lease liabilities was as follows:

WNABA—ZS - —F ) \AZ+THHREMEE -
REBBTRHEREAHBEEEREIERHENE
fEtE  EAKENREEBRARESERE
A R ARE - I B A ARRK o EEE AN E
EEIREB(TMBEZERE -EFERA K
SEEARMESE CHANEBEIERBRUEER
NEKXR AR EELAFTSNEERE  THAER
SEMEBKERAE - RESERATEETIRL
BINE A ZEAREENM SRR RIBEEEARE
W AANEBLENEE -

EERFHEE
AEEBRERERERY R SRESNYH
B ARBUESSHESRBLA - UARRE
EENEBEKFE RZBE-=_F+=-A=+—8"
REERTERRAEAENERFHNOT

As at As at
Repayment Schedule BENFEH 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
oot - 3 RZZ——4%
+=A=+—H +-—A=+—H
HK’000 HK'000
FET FET

Bank borrowings RITEN
Within one year —FR 916,732 838,158
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ — A H{ERBBMAE 286,897 412,626
More than two year, but not exceeding five years  MEIA EERBBHF 567,461 784,516
More than five years fich o hake - 143,978
1,771,090 2,179,278

Lease Liabilities HESE
Within one year —FR 1,401 13,749
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ — & A H{ERBBMAF - 10,946
More than two year, but not exceeding five years M LA HERBBREF - 30,297
More than five years ik Rk - 64,229
1,401 119,221
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As at As at

Repayment Schedule BREH 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ot - 3 RZZE=——4%

+=-A=+-H +-A=+—-8

HK’000 HK'000

FET F&r

Total debt BB 1,772,491 2,298,499
Interest payable JERFIE 221 256
Less: deposit for bank borrowings W IRTEERES - (130,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents W ReRRESEESR (25,120) (461,351)
Net debt FEH 1,747,592 1,707,404
Total equity R 2,918,444 3,361,297
Net gearing ratio FEEEE 59.9% 50.8%

Foreign exchange risk

Our business mainly operates in the PRC with most of our
transactions settled in Renminbi, and our financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency. The State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, under the authority of the People’s Bank of China,
controls the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies. The
value of Renminbi is subject to changes in central government
policies and international economic and political developments
affecting supply and demand in the China Foreign Exchange
Trading System market. We do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge our exposure to
such risk.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$0.01 per
Share).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the board of directors of the Company shall take into
account, among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial
condition and capital requirements of the Group and the interests
of the shareholders of the Company. Declaration of dividend by
the Company is also subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-
Laws of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” above, the Group does not have any future plans for
material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As of 31 December 2022, there were no significant investments
held by the Company, nor were there any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 631 (2021: 770)
employees excluding the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”). 627 (2021: 765) of them worked in Mainland China
and 4 (2021: 5) of them worked in Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year-end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five

individuals with the highest remuneration are set out in Notes 11
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

During the Reporting Period, there was no litigation or arbitration
with material impact on our operations.

As at 31 December 2022, there were various litigations against
the Group which were claimed by certain suppliers with respect
to overdue payables amounted to approximately RMB130,122,000
(equivalent to HK$145,669,000) in total. Based on the advice of
legal counsel and/or information available to the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision should be made for
the estimated liabilities for the litigations.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Weixing ("Mr. Liu"), aged 63, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Mr. Liu is currently the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu has over 39 years of experience in
banking and finance.

Mr. Liu held positions of officer and vice division chief responsible
for industrial and commercial credit facilities in Luoyang Region
Center Branch of People’s Bank of China from 1979 to 1984. Mr.
Liu held several positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from 1985 to August 2016, including the vice president of
Luoyang Region Center Branch, the vice president of Sanmenxia
City Branch, an officer of Henan Province Branch, assistant to the
president of Henan Province Branch, the vice president of Henan
Province Branch, the president of Anhui Province Branch, the
president of Chongging City Branch, the president of Henan
Province Branch and the head of Internal Audit Department of
Main Branch. Mr. Liu was an executive director of Central China
Real Estate Limited (stock Code: 832)("CCRE", together with its
subsidiaries, the “CCRE Group”) from March 2017 to August 2020.

Mr. Liu obtained a certificate of graduation in Banking
Management from Henan Banking College* (] & #R 17 £ #%) in
1979, a certificate of graduation in Financial Management from
Zhengzhou University in 1983, a Master Degree in Economics
from Henan University in 1998 and a certificate of graduation in
Law from Tsinghua University in 2005.

Mr. Guo Weiqiang (“Mr. Guo"), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 September 2019. Mr. Guo is currently
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Guo joined the CCRE Group in 2001 and has held various
positions in the CCRE Group since then. Throughout the 20 years
in the CCRE Group, Mr. Guo worked as the manager of the
treasury department, the assistant general manager of the
finance center and the deputy director of the office of the board
of directors of the CCRE Group. Mr. Guo also served as the
executive deputy general manager of the CCRE Group's office in
Nanyang City, the executive general manager of the CCRE
Group's office in Xinxiang City, the general manager of the CCRE
Group's regional head office in Xinxiang and the assistant
president and vice president of CCRE. Mr. Guo was also the
secretary of the party committee of CCRE in 2018.
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Mr. Guo obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management from Henan University of Economics and Law
in 2001. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University in 2009 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from The University of Hong Kong in
2011.

Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant in Henan
in 2009 and was qualified as a Senior International Finance
Manager by the International Financial Management Association
2011. Mr. Guo has been a Certified Practising Accountant of the
CPA Australia since 2012.

Mr. Guo served as the representative of the 13th and 14th
National People’'s Congress of Honggi District, Xinxiang City, as
well as the representative of the 13th National People’s Congress
of Xinxiang City.

Ms. Wang Jing ("“Ms. Wang"), aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Ms. Wang is currently the
vice president of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Limited* (2R EERREZEEEER A A]), an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Wang has over 30 years of extensive working experience.
She was a technician of the Research Institute of Zzhongyuan
Pharmaceutical Factory* (# [R &IZE R FTFT) from 1991 to 1997.
She joined the CCRE Group in 1997 until April 2020 and held
several positions there. During her 24 years in the CCRE Group,
Ms. Wang served as the vice president of Central China Real Estate
Group (China) Company Limited* (ZE{EF=£E (FhE) AR A A])
(“Central China Real Estate”), including the general manager of
the design management center, the assistant president and the
general manager of the Forest Peninsula Project* Gt EIER),
the general manager of Zhengzhou Metropolitan Area, the
director of the product management center, the general manager
of the Zhengzhou-Kaifeng Region and the general manager of
Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate Management
Company Limited* (U M 2 ¥ mENELLEETEER Q)
during which she was also charged with managing Henan Central
China Modern Agricultural Investment Company* (] @& 23R
B ERE N F]) and the Window of Jianye Project* (B2 2 &EIEH).
She was also a member of the implementation committee of
Central China Real Estate.
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Ms. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou Air Defense Force
Academy in 1991, majoring in Mechatronics, and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from
National University of Singapore in 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Wallis (“Ms. Wu"), alias Li Hua, aged 41, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. WU is
currently a non-executive director of CCRE and a director of Joy
Bright Investments Limited.

Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Architecture from the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2006, and a
Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
2007. Before joining the CCRE Group in 2006, she worked in
Woodhead International (Beijing) and Banatex Architects Pty Ltd
in Sydney Australia in 2005. Ms. Wu is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun ("Mr. Wang"), aged 42, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 17 September 2019. He has over 19 years
of experience in the real estate industry and capital market.

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Wang served in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company with the latest position as a
senior associate; from 2007 to 2011, he served as the head of
investor relations and a senior manager of the finance
department in Country Garden Holdings Company Limited; and
from 2011 to June 2018, he served in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
with the latest position as an executive director. Mr. Wang has
served as an executive director of CCRE from August 2018 to
August 2022. Mr. Wang has served as an executive director and
the chairman of the board of directors of Central China New Life
Limited (stock code: 9983) since October 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2002 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2011.
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Mr. Guo Jianfeng ("Mr. Guo JF"), aged 41, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director on 7 January 2022. He has over 15
years of experience in digital construction.

From February 2007 to April 2012, Mr. Guo JF served as the
researcher at the Shanghai research and development center of
Autodesk, Inc., during which he was responsible for researching
BIM solutions and cross-profession collaboration for the entire
life cycle of construction projects. He joined Glodon in April 2012
and has held various positions therein since then, including the
senior technical researcher, the manager of cloud platform
department, the general manager of platform technology center
and the member and the head of the standing committee of
technology committee. He is currently the vice president of
Glodon and the general manager of its digital constructor
business division.

Mr. Guo JF obtained a Doctorate Degree in Civil Engineering from
Tsinghua University in January 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 56, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang also studied in Ecole d’
Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a Professorate
Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and participated in a
number of major engineering technology or research projects at
national, provincial and ministerial level; and he has a certain
extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s Hainan Free Trade
Zone, Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau — Bay Area, urban and
rural development, urban renewal and health (pension) industry.
Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock Code: 8085)
from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr. Jiang was also
an executive director of Birmingham International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January
2012.
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Mr. Lee Chi Ming (“Mr. Lee"), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
also holds a LLB Degree from University of London and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lee has over 26 years' experience in the fields of accounting,
regulations and asset management. He held various senior
positions with the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”),
Hong Kong since 1995, as director of Licensing, director of
Corporate Planning and director of Finance and Administration.
Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014, and he is the director and
managing partner of Benington Capital Partner Ltd.

Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996 to June 2003, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director of China Foods Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506). From
May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
and the managing director of China Foods Limited. From June
2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the deputy general manager
of China Foods Import and Export (Group) Co., Ltd. From June
2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino
Resources Group Limited (now known as Elife Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 223). From
March 2008 to 30 December 2021, he was an independent non-
executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (in
liguidation), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
886), and since 30 December 2021, he is an non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited. From 2 August
2009 to present, he is an independent non-executive director of
Sunac China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1918). From September 2010 to August
2012, he was also the executive director, managing director and
chairman of Hao Tian Resources Group Limited (now known as
Hao Tian Development Group Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 474). He was the senior consultant
in Hao Tian Development Group Limited from August 2012 to
August 2016. From March 2016 to present, he is also an
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independent non-executive director of SRE Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1207). From
August 2016 to present, he is an independent non-executive
director of Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 993).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou (“Mr. Yu"), aged 61, was appointed as the chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 30 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (4
R M EE R A F)) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from Architectural Profession
University in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (1 Im £t £ #% 1i7 #8). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (#if & TIEEZR M HTIZELEREZE ) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (BI85
COBEMBERENLEEZED).

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), except for the following:

(@  Code provision C.1.6 provides that non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due
to their respective business engagements and travel
restrictions as a result of COVID-19, Mr. Wang Jun was
unable to attend the annual general meetings of the
Company held on 24 May 2022. The Company will arrange
video conference and ensure proper equipment are in
place for such meetings in the future in order to provide
more flexibility.

Save as disclosed above, the principles as set out in the Code
have been applied in our corporate governance structure
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board has
taken actions and measures to make sure that the Company is in
all aspects in strict compliance with the Listing Rules and the
Code. The current practices are reviewed and updated regularly
to be in line with the local and international corporate
governance practices.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. In response
to the specific enquiry made to all Directors by the Company, all
the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 34 to 39 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships
between Board members, and in particular, between the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with one-third of the Board
comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who had
exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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Meetings 23

The composition of the Board and the Directors’ respective #HE-E-—F+-_A=+—HIIEEHEESS
attendance in the general meeting and the Board meetings KE#HESLREEEEANREACRETS S
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: fEREERIATN ¢

Number of meetings
attended/held during the

respective tenure
REBEBBBEHE
BITWERRE
General Board
meetings meetings
BERAE EZE28F
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) [EELRE(EE) 11 9/9
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZEZZFNAZ+—HEZME)
Mr. Guo Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer) SRR S A (7T ARZL) 11 9/9
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZZE—NFHLATEAEZT)
Ms. Wang Jing T #Hrx 1/1 9/9
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZEZZFNAZ+—HEZME)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) F Bt 11 9/9
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZE2E—NFNA+EtREZT)
Mr. Wang Jun T #EEE 0/1 9/9
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZE—NFHLA+CREZT)
Mr. Guo Jianfeng Eilfess 3o 11 8/8
(appointed on 7 January 2022) (R—BE-—F—A+HEZT)
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Jiang Hongging EAERE 11 9/9
(appointed on 2 February 2015) (R=ZEB—RE_A_BESZME)
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TERRLEAE 11 9/9
(appointed on 30 December 2014) (R—ZE—NMFE+—_A=+BHEZT)
Mr. Ma Lishan Bk 11 8/9

(appointed on 28 June 2016)
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board's primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required, otherwise daily operational
decisions as well as the implementation of the Board’s policies
and strategies are delegated to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Independent Views and Input

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive directors. The nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) strictly
adheres to the independence assessment criteria as set out in
the Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and the Board is
mandated to assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive Directors to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement. No equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements will be granted to
independent non-executive Directors as this may lead to bias in
their decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence. In addition, independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve as the chairmen and majority members of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) , the
remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee. Through
participation in Board meetings, providing valuable perspectives
to the Board discussions, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on various

BEEERE

EEeCRRUTESEEARAEBNBEREE
o R EEHABEREARFNKINER
HARAEERERARANEZHEHRRER -EF
EIZBER/AREGELREER - BERE
REBEEENKRE - At - EFSFIRES
 TBEHERKE BEXSZMEMEREE
EH U ERSRAEREARKEFRELY
REFBITEFEER ANABEERRAR
HITEESOBRERBHAEERTEFTAR
BEEERE -

BUBHERR

ARRERI AR GIARREES A EFEE
HLER EFERRZERD =RBIIERT
EXEREFRI=DZ—RERBIIFNTES -
ExeREZBEe((REZBQDERETLM
RAFMESEBRENEEBLIFNTESNEY
RS ER BV ERESFHEBILIENR
TESFZEUIE - BRESEFEFL LA -
BYFNTESYEER THABEMKRERRET
ENRADEHH AAGRFHNSEHER
RIFBLFZEEZBIEMIBILE o 1o - B IE
WTESMERETESeEtR82 (&%
Egl) Exev¥MZBe((FHEZEe)) kI
FEBENIFERARZHKE - BR2EEES
% REFeTWRHEEAR  AEEEA
BENaEREEMNESTEE TZRZESR
% 2RBUFNTEFTHARAZBREFS
R ER - BRI RRERN TR EBRES S

—m-—eR|grmsirsgerss 43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEARE

Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors are
contributory to the effective running of the Company, and free to
express their views in an open and candid manner. The Chairman
annually holds meeting(s) with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors. Should the
circumstances require, independent non-executive Directors
have open access to interact with the management and other
Board members including the Chairman outside the boardroom.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skill.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors were
provided with regular updates and presentations on changes and
developments of the Group’s business and the latest
developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to director’s
duties and responsibilities.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Directors

confirmed that they have obtained sufficient continuous
professional development training.
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Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors
have participated in continuous professional training as follows:

RPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXRELRHRS

REBEE-ZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—HULEFE E=
E2MNFEBREEIERDOT

Type of
continuous professional

development training @

Name of directors Y FEEXBRENER 0@
Mr. Liu Weixing RlmRLE A&B
Mr. Guo Weigiang LR A A&B
Ms. Wang Jing T #xt A&B
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) * T+ A&B
Mr. Wang Jun T &RE A&B
Mr. Guo Jianfeng Cilf=s= 3t

(appointed on 7 January 2022) (R=ZE_—F—AtHEZMT) A&B
Mr. Jiang Hongging ERESE A&B
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE A&B
Mr. Ma Lishan Bz A&B
Notes: Bzt

(1 A: Attending seminar(s), conference(s), forum(s) and/or training
course(s)

2) B: Reading materials provided by external parties or by the Company
including but not limited to updates relating to the Company’s business
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory update, Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the Code requires that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.

According to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.
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Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision B.1.3 of the Code, the Board should review
the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s policy
on Board diversity on an annual basis.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 1 January 2019 and reviewed the implementation of it
on an annual basis. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

For the purpose of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the
Board has set the following measurable objectives: (1) female
Directors will continue to play a significant role in the Company
and the Board will ensure there is a balance of male and female
representation at Board level; (2) the Board will continue to
comprise of members with working experience in other
industries and knowledge and skills in different aspects; and (3)
the Board will continue to comprise of members from different
age groups.
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The Board currently consists of two female Directors and seven
male Directors, and Directors are at ages ranging from 41 to 72
years old with four of them between the age group of 40-49, two
of them between the age group of 50-59, two of them between
the age group of 60-69 and the remaining one at the age over 70,
serving on the Board for different tenures. The current Board
members are well-experienced in different areas including
banking and finance, digital construction, real estate, business
operation and capital market. In view of the present size of the
Board and the Group's operations and the nature of the risks and
challenges it faces, the Board considers that the Company has
achieved gender diversity as the Board has two female members
and has struck a right balance of skills, experience and
knowledge among the present Board members, hence the above
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy have been
satisfactorily implemented and that there is sufficient diversity in
the Board for the Company’s corporate governance and business
development needs. Further, the Company has one male senior
management in the age group of 60-69 with extensive experience
in architectural design and property. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group has a 3.5:1 ratio of male and female in the workforce.
The Group will strive to maintain a balance of gender diversity
when recruiting and selecting key management and other
personnel across the Group’s operations.

Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Company
and its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for Director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria,
which are not exhaustive, in recommending to the Board
potential new Board members, or the continued service of
existing members:

— reputation for integrity

— accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company

— commitment in respect of available time

— merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

— in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (i) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in code
provision B.3.4 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in
the “Corporate Governance Guide for Boards and Directors”
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— Board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The position of Chairman is held by Mr. Liu Weixing, and the
position of chief executive officer of the Company is held by Mr.
Guo Weigiang. These two separate positions have clear
distinction in responsibilities.

Mr. Liu Weixing, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

Mr. Guo Weigiang, being the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
and the implementation of business policies, objectives and
plans as formulated and adopted by the Board, and is
accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authorities
and duties. The primary role and function of the Audit Committee
is to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the
Group’s financial reporting and risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal and external audit
functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
held five meetings to review with the management the Group'’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

HE_ T4+ -_A=+—HBILFE  B&Z
BERTRANGE  HERERIMNEZEA LR
BRAEEAMEAN ST RAIRER - NEPEE
rGEREEE  HPRERBELFEREF
MBEERRE BRZESNHUE EER
BRERIELFH  FRRAERESF KUK
[ESRBAE A ENER BETEREREHELRRH -
URBIFEINEIREREHEERERE
EREZESUENEREEINEZEM T EHEES
EWEAANER L SEZEZESNENLE
OIS ¢

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REEE HESERE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (Chairman) TEBPLEE(EE) 5/5
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHRERE 5/5
Mr. Ma Lishan B EAE 4/5

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authorities
and duties. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis (including the skills, knowledge and experience), to
recommend to the Board on the selection of suitable candidates
for directorships and on the succession planning for the
Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Ccommittee held two meetings to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REAR HESRRE
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) BIEmESE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHERE 2/2
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FERALAE 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its
authorities and duties. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Company, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, and ensure no Director or any of his associates
may be involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration.

From 2023 onwards, the Remuneration Committee will also
review the share option scheme and other share schemes (if any)
of the Company on annual basis. During the year ended 31
December 2022, since there was no share option granted under
the share option scheme of the Company, no material matter
relating to the share option scheme has been reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management.
The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
is set out below:

HE-_ T4+ -"A=+—BItFE  FHE
BERTHUAGE  UWERATESERNERE
AEBRFHEGRETR - SFHZESKENTF
FOEREATE -

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REAE HEEERE
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman) EHRELRE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Liu Weixing BIBmE%E 4/4
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREAE 4/4

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company (including senior management of the
Group) are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interests and the Company's assets. The Board
has the responsibility to evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and to ensure the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. It formulates the annual internal audit
plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on
the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities
and risks, develops action plans and recommendations to
address the identified risks.

The Board conducts a review on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has
the responsibility to maintain an effective risk management and
internal control system. The review involves all material
monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.
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The Company has implemented its anti-corruption and bribery
policy which provides guidance to employees of the Group on
how to recognise and deal with bribery and corruption. Any
employee found guilty of misconduct such as fraud, dishonesty
or serious neglect of duty will be summarily dismissed. The
Company has also implemented its whistleblowing policy, which
is intended to encourage and enable employees of the Group
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to report or raise concerns about, in confidence and
anonymity, violations or suspected violations or any possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting, internal control or
other matters to the Audit Committee. Any person who is found
to have victimized or retaliated against those who have reported
or raised concerns under the whistleblowing policy will be
subjected to disciplinary sanctions.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates
the inside information according to the related policy to ensure
that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and conformably.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established
a proper risk management and internal control system which is
effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. During the year ended 31 December
2022, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group was
approximately HK$3,492,000 and HK$36,000 respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year ended 31 December 2022. Save as the
conditions disclosed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, details of which are set out on pages 120 to 126, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements of the Company. The
statement made by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 102 to
112 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company. For the year under review, the company secretary
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1) Under the Company'’s bye-laws
Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by Shareholders of the Company, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.
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Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

@)

to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@a)

either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.
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Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

(@ a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 7708A,
77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with its Shareholders. To ensure that the
Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company and to manage its relationship
with its Shareholders and the investment community, the
Company communicates through publication of announcements,
circulars and annual and interim reports. Such information is
disseminated through the Stock Exchange at its designated
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk), and can also be accessed via
the Company’s website (http://dit.aconnect.com.hk). The
Company's corporate information is also made available on the
Company’s website. In addition, annual and special general
meetings provide a forum for the Shareholders to make
comments and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management. The Company keeps on promoting investor
relations and enhancing communication with the existing
Shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions,
inquiries and questions about the Company from investors,
stakeholders and the public to the Company by email at
ir@cmdrawin.com, or by post to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong , or by raising questions at general
meetings. Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. The
Directors, Company Secretary and other appropriate members of
the senior management will also respond to inquiries from the
Shareholders and the investment community put to the Company
in the manner as mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’
Rights" in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy on an annual basis and
considered it to be effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not
make any changes to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Bye-laws, the current versions of which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Company’s annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, granting licenses, consulting services, sales of
equipment, decoration and landscaping services in the People’s
Republic of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group'’s revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and mainland China.

A fair review of the Group's business, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company, the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 2022 and the likely future developments, is set out in
the Business Review and Financial Review sections of this annual
report.

Disclosure related to the Group’s environmental policies and

performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 and the state of affairs of the Group and the

Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 113 to 251.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$0.01 per Share).
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Eligibility to Attend and Vote at
the Annual General Meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 19 May 2023 to Wednesday, 24 May 2023, both dates
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 May 2023.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming 2023 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 24 May
2023. A notice convening the 2023 AGM will be published in due
course in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 252.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The decrease in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$423,000 (31 December
2021: fair value gain of HK$29,000) has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 117 and Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company'’s distributable reserves
were HK$126,931,000 (31 December 2021: distributable reserves
HK$157,955,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased 1,065,000 Shares in total in open market on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HK$439,000. All repurchased Shares were not yet cancelled on
31 December 2022. Details of the Shares repurchased are as
follows:

g AR

BE_T-_—_Ft+_A=t+—HLFENEARA
BRAFHIBEN A M RERMTE26

i

AEBEARBANBE_T-__F+-_A=1—
BIEEENFEESFEBEDRERNF 17 BrHE
BB RIS M ERKRMEI7 -

HE_Z_—_#+_-_A=+—8  x2a875H
K 8 5126,931,0008 T( 2 = —F+ = A
—+—H : A5 IKFE A 157,955,000 7T)

BE LWEREEES

HE_Z-_—_F+ZA=1+—HLFE XRF
B R BT AR T 45 48 F£ B8 B 1,065,000 i Jx 15+ 48
REDNAL39,0008T - FIEBERHR T
FHZA=+—HMARFEHE BORHOOFBLD
T

Total number of Aggregate
Month Shares repurchased Price paid per Share consideration
R [ &8 IR 17 42 21 BRZNER wBRE
Highest Lowest
4] R
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
(8t) (C8t) (8t)
October 2022 —FE-—F+H 125,000 0.450 0.410 54,000
November 2022 —E-—F+—A 380,000 0.440 0.415 161,000
December 2022 —E-=F+=A 560,000 0.415 0.385 224,000
Total 4BE 1,065,000 439,000

The reason for implementing the Share repurchase is that the
Board believes that the trading price of the Shares does not
reflect their intrinsic value and that this is a good opportunity for
the Company to repurchase the Shares, thereby increasing the
value of the Shares and improving the return to Shareholders.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Weixing (Chairman)

Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jing

Non-executive Director:

Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua)

Mr. WANG Jun

Mr. Guo Jianfeng (appointed on 7 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JIANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every Director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and as of the
date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Weixing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Mr. Liu Weixing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 21
August 2020
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Mr. Guo Weigiang has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as an executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 3 May 2022.
Ms. Wang Jing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Ms. Wang Jing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 3
May 2022.

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) has signed a letter of appointment
dated 16 September 2022 with the Company pursuant to which
she agreed to act as non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 17 September 2022. Mr. Wang Jun has
signed a letter of appointment dated 16 September 2022 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as non-executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2022. Mr. Guo Jianfeng has signed a letter of appointment dated
7 January 2022 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed
to act as non-executive Director for a term of three years with
effect from 7 January 2022.

Mr. Ma Lishan has signed a letter of appointment dated 21
August 2020 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to
act as independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 21 August 2020. Mr. Lee Chi Ming has
signed a letter of appointment dated 21 August 2020 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as independent
non-executive Director for a term of three years with effect from
21 August 2020. Mr. Jiang Hongging has signed a letter of
appointment dated 14 June 2022 with the Company pursuant to
which he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years with effect from 30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest remuneration are set out in Notes 11
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Our employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

ARRERA—HBRETEEFRESNAER
RENRE - AR EFBEN T X B S]]

E=y

FERP°

EENTRESFIA OIS FBEEHRGAHT
EHRERMFE1TI R -

AEECRERFIEAESHIGISETER
BRABRHMEAEEE([REERFE]) - A%
BERBEZEEHAMARESE - HR
BRREBEAFHE 2R —BOLIEL  WRIE®RE
SRFBIZRAUNNE TN RESE WSER NG
AEBE R HRBNFRE S B D HRE
2HRERES -

AEBRPEZMEARERPEZERER
2E-BEREEBAEHBTRLE 2 RIKEF
FHE - RBARFME T B O L RRKEN S
EHER  AXNHZERT - REBHZRIKE
MErEIMME— R EARIEFTEELREHR -

EERKRG - HEARGRESFNEDR
RiR=

RZEBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—8 THEZFEAR
Al m TBA B EN AR R s K A0 EE
(EERBBEOES7I ZEHRPEEN ([EFFHF
KERERM)) EXVER) B - HERN REH
REER AR EE S (VIR BR B A KA E GAIE XV
EDE7 K8 EE A& AN A R) KB A P 0 2 Bk
B (BEREIERF B KRIEREIRSREE
SR AEENESIAR)  H()VBREEHFLKAE
P EIEERARARFEMNELMAERS
Kogg  iNiRiE EmRAIRETAIE Z1TAE
RRB R FTE S SOAR °

“®_—esR|grgsirsesras 65



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company

RARBROREABRDPFENGE A

Percentage
Name of Director or Number of Number of of the Issued
chief executive Capacity Share Options held Shares held Share Capital
HE#1T
EEYgRRTHRAEEE 517 BFEBREZR BHERGHAE BRAEBFDL
(note 2) (note 1)
(Hia2) (Frat1)
Mr. Liu Weixing Director 28,000,000 5,660,000 1.08%
BEELAE ok
Mr. Guo Weigiang Director 21,000,000 2,930,000 0.77%
AR EF
Ms. Wang Jing Director 8,000,000 - 0.26%
T Bt BE
Notes: Bifet -
1. It was based on 3,102,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2022. 1 BRZZTZZF+= A =+—H3,102,400,730 I i&
MErE
2. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 2. BUERGOERTDBREFNGTE(ERR T ORBNE

granted under the New Scheme (as defined below), the details of which
are disclosed on pages 71 to 74.

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract,
transaction or arrangement of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance had been entered into between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2022 and no contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of

the Company

EERRNRGREARGIESR

)

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—8"

BEEXARQA

RETHRABMA - TIAB(BEEHARAKD
TTBRABRINRAR B I RAARER D FHEER
EEF LB GOIEXVEE2 %37 BIEX AR
ARE W EHRIEE 75 R E R G5 336 AR
AATRENECMATRENERIRR

RAERXTRGRAEABROFFENER

Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

BT

BRRERE 14 BEROEE BRAEBFDL

(note 1)

(Frat1)

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 1,470,110,000 47.39%
=R (B IRERR AT ([F=IR]) E=EAA

Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 80,000,000 2.58%
ERX(ER)KREBRLDA EmBEAA

Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 77,500,000 2.50%
Fan (BR)IREBR LA EmEAA

Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 68,500,000 2.21%
=iz (ER)IREBR LA ERfAA

Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 67,250,000 2.17%
R (ER)KREFR A EnEE A

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 16,250,000 0.51%
EH(ZER)REBR LA EmEAA

Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.97%

2R (ER)REERAT]

68

REARER

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
LB 1T
BREEE g4 BFERGOEE BAEABS L
(note 1)
(Ftat1)
Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.97%
=2 RN T
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
=& (BB REFR AT RN
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Industry Group Limited R U/NC
EREENREEEBBRAR
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Technology Industry Group Limited R U/NGI
EEREENBEEXSEBR AR
Henan Hongdao Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Consultancy Company Limited R U/NGI
RSB BERH AR AR
Henan Jianye Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Consultancy Company Limited SN AR
FRRERBEEHZRNERAA
Construction Development (H.K) Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Limited SN TR
BEERE(EB)BRAA
Construction Housing Group Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Limited SN TR
BEFEEEBRAT
Jianye Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
EEERERAT SRR TR (notes 2 and 3)
(Hiat2k3)
Joy Bright Investments Limited Beneficial owner 245,567,425 7.92%
BERERRATA Em#EA A (notes 2 and 3)
(Hfat2k3)

———
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

HE&T

BRRERB g4 BHERGEE BAEBFDL

(note 1)

(Ftat1)

Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest of controlled corporation 2,025,177,425 65.28%
HEAREE S U/NE (notes 2 and 3)
(i 2R%3)

Youdao Development International Beneficial owner 1,624,345,000 52.36%
(Hong Kong) Limited EmHEA A (note 3)
FEERBEER(BE)BRAT (F1:E3)

Henan Tongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd Interest of controlled corporation 1,624,345,000 52.36%
AHRREXERAA YR N AR (note 3)
(Fta£3)

Henan Railway Construction & Investment Interest of controlled corporation 1,624,345,000 52.36%
Group Co., Ltd. RN (note 3)
SR ERIREREFR AR (F17£3)

Glodon (Hong Kong) Software Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 9.67%

EHE (BB BEER AR Ema A
Glodon Company Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 9.67%

EMEMZBE O BR AR (AE3)

Notes:

HEARER

Kt

1. It was based on 3,102,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2022.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright
Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited.

3. Youdao Development International (Hong Kong) Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Henan Tongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Henan Railway Construction & Investment Group
Co., Ltd.) acquired a security interest in 1,624,345,000 Shares from
corporations controlled by Mr. Wu Po Sum.

4. Glodon Company Limited is a company established under the laws of

the PRC with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002410).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7 August
2013 (the “0Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 July
2020. A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in place
of the Old Scheme was adopted pursuant to such resolution with
effect from 17 July 2020 which has a term of 10 years. The
purpose of the New Scheme is to provide participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. The New Scheme will provide
the Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to participants.

Under the New Scheme, the employees of the Group (including
the executive Directors) and such other persons as the Board
may consider appropriate may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company,
up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at 17 July 2020, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval
from the Shareholders to renew the limit as described below or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option within 10 business days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to him is HK$1.00 (or its
equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to the
Company).
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options
which would result in the number of the Shares issued as
aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting at which such participant and
his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors, excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, which shall not exceed 10
years from the relevant date of the grant subject to provisions of
early termination thereof. The Board at its discretion may impose
such terms and conditions of the grant on a case-by-case basis
including but not limited to the minimum period for which the
share options must be held or the performance target which
must be achieved before the share options can be vested. As at
the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the New Scheme is 153,050,000,
representing approximately 4.93% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least
and the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of a
share option which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share (whichever is the highest).

The New Scheme will expire on 16 July 2030.

No shares option have been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Old Scheme.
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Movement of share options granted by the Company under the REZE-—_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HIFFERN ' &
New Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2022 was as A FRIEFT 2B LERE ST ¢

follows:
Exercise  Vesting Asat  Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat
Name or category of price period 1 January during (uring during (uring 31 December
participants Date of grant perShare  (Note 1) 2022 theyear  theyear  theyear  the year 2022
e b3
R R=B=Zf +25
SREN AR RiBH ERRE  (WE1) -B-B  FRRE  ERAR FAEE  FARR =t-A
Directors
Bz
Mr. Liu Weixing 30 Noverber 2020 HK$1.09 6 years from 28,000,000 - - - - 28,000,000
the date of grant
s ZEIRET-ACTA 1098 ARUBHRE
Mr. Guo Weigiang 30 Noverber 2020 HK$1.09 10 years from 21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000
the date of grant
DEREE “ECERET-RZR 109n BRHABRI0E
Ms. Wang Jing 30 Noverber 2020 HK$1.09 10 years from 8,000,000 - - - - 8000000
the date of grant
T Bt “EIRET-RR 109n BRHABRI0E
Senior management andother 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 10years from 126,710,000 - - (351700000 (6,690,000 84,850,000
employees of the Group the date of grant (Note 2)
(H3t2)

TEERREEARRAMER —T-RET-A-TRE O 109ET ARLASE0E

30 November 2020 HK$1.09 6 years from 12,200,000
the date of grant

CROEET-ASTE 1WA BRHBHRE

- - (666,668) (333332 11,200,000
(Note 2)
(Hit2)

195,910,000 - - (3583608 (7,02333) 153,050,000
Notes: Kt -
1. The share options granted will vest annually in equal instalments over 1. BHNBERESEREHNGFUSEIARE

the vesting period subject to the achievements of the applicable
performance targets and the Board'’s approval. Once vested, the share
options are exercisable within 3 years from the vesting date.

2. The exercise price per Share underlying the cancelled share options 2.
was HK$1.09.
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The number of options available for grant under the mandate of
the New Scheme (taking into account the number of options
lapsed) was 84,330,073 and 91,353,405 as at 1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022 respectively. The Company did not grant any
share options during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Additional information in relation to the New Scheme is set out in
Note 28 to the financial statements of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

EPC Service Arrangement, Park Design Services
Arrangement, Supply Arrangement and PC Design
Service Arrangement

On 18 March 2021, (i) the Company and Drawin Intelligent
Construction Technology Group Company Limited (formerly
known as China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology
Group Company Limited) (“Drawin Construction Technology”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Drawin Construction
Technology Group”) entered into the Framework Agreement | in
relation to the provision of engineering, procurement and
construction (“EPC") general contracting services by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group, namely the EPC Service
Arrangement; (ii) the Company and Drawin Construction
Technology entered into the Framework Agreement Il in relation
to the supply of prefabricated construction components and
products to the Drawin Construction Technology Group, namely
the Supply Arrangement; (iii) the Company and Drawin Intelligent
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited)
(“Drawin Construction Design”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Drawin Construction Design Group”) entered into the Framework
Agreement Il in relation to the provision of design services by the
Drawin Construction Design Group in respect of the Group's
technology parks in the PRC, namely the Park Design Service
Arrangement and (iv) the Company and Drawin Construction
Design entered into the Framework Agreement IV in relation to
the provision of design services by the Drawin Construction
Design Group in respect of the prefabricated construction
components and products sold by the Group, namely the PC
Design Service Arrangement for a term commencing from 26
May 2021 (i.e. the approval date of the Framework Agreements
by the independent Shareholders) and ending on 31 December
2023.
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Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contract price for
EPC general contracting services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group to the Group should be
determined with reference to the estimated costs of a
construction project plus a profit margin and management fee of
not more than 8% of the construction costs and should not
exceed RMB2,780 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.
As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimated that the maximum value of the transactions
under the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement | may reach RMB550 million, RMB450
million and RMB450 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$658.40 million, HK$538.70
million and HK$538.70 million).

Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the Drawin Construction Technology
Group should be the prevailing market price of each unit. In
principle, the provisional unit price should not exceed RMB3,400
per cubic metre (inclusive of tax). As disclosed in the
announcement dated 18 March 2021, the Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the term of the Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such
Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il has been determined to be RMB400
million, RMB500 million and RMB500 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$478.80 million,
HK$598.50 million and HK$598.50 million).

Pursuant to the Park Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Design Group to the Group should be determined
with reference to the estimated costs of the design services plus
a profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
design costs and the provisional contract price should not exceed
RMB25 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimates that the maximum value of the transactions
under the Park Design Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Ill may reach RMB6.50 million, RMB7.00
million and RMB7.00 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.80 million, HK$8.4 million and
HK$8.4 million).

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

BIREPCRR G L - EREERZMEEEER
RNEGFTIREEPCRAABIRG 2 A NEBIRBESE
FEEETE B 2R 5 00 F) R SR RO 8 38 R SR A
K% MFBI ETERBBE T ARARE27807T
(BREBEBE)ZEEEMET - HWBHA-ZT
Z—HF=ZATNBNAEHEE - RAFUEE - EPC
REZHEBETRINER G —BRNSRSEE
REBEEZE=-_—F+=-_A=+—R1 ===
+ZA=F+—HBERZE==F+ZA=+—H1E
FEARENFIZEARESS0RSE T - ARKASOH
BTRARBIS0BEET FHERL658.40H &%
JC ~ 53870 B & T 53870 BEETT) °

REHEELZY - AEEHREREERRBHRE
EHE s ERREAREEERGRERZGEE
NEREASEMZBTME R L YT
M EN ERTEBBEY S KARE34007T (8
FERIE) o REATEEEMMNER SR &K BEMA
BERAFAFARE - HUWBEHA-_T - —F=4
TNANEHRAEHEE  NARERELTRIE
14A B3GR EZR Hhak — BRI R E FE LR - FHut -
RERBZ RN AR HETHFEE LR
EEEABE_E-_—F+=-A=+—H =%
4+ -_A=+-BRZ-EBE-_=ZF+=A
“t+t—HLEFEMNDSHARBIO0EET AR
B500E Btk ARBS008 BL(HE R
478.80E BB TT - 59850 H B /B L k59850 E 8
BT °

BEREERARE L FREERFEEH
MASEARERTRE 2 EWERBELEZRET
ARFS Z (A 5T AR 53 00 1) R AN A A8 38 3% A 2R 5%
ZEBEBEMETMNEEASLOERRR L TEBS
BFYFRARB2T(BEMRE) - HMBABHA=
T -F=ZATN\BNHRERE - ARRMHET
PIERHZE =M TR - BEREERRER
Rz BEREE T -_—4F1+=A
=—t+—B ZEZZF+ZA=+—HEKZZ
TEFTZA=+T—HIEFEASREARK6.50
BEL ARE7TOEELRARE7OEE T
(FHERN780BEEETL 84EEABLLSLAE
EIT) o

B —geR|ArESENEEEsRAE /9



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Pursuant to the PC Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services in respect of the prefabricated
construction components and products to be sold by the Group
to third parties should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of the design services plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the design costs and
the provisional contract price should not exceed RMB70 per
cubic metre (inclusive of tax) in principle. The Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap over the term of the Framework Agreement IV. Accordingly,
such Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap has
been determined to be RMB2.50 million, RMB4.50 million and
RMB6.00 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.00 million, HK$5.40 million and HK$7.20
million).

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Group
Limited (“Drawin Manufacture”) indirectly holds approximately
57.36% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive
Director). Therefore, Drawin Manufacture is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Technology is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture, and therefore a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, each of the EPC Service Arrangement and the
Supply Arrangement under the Framework Agreement | and the
Framework Agreement Il constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture, and therefore a connected
person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, each of the Park Design Service Arrangement
and the PC Design Service Arrangement under the Framework
Agreement Il and the Framework Agreement IV constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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As the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement are both capital in nature which involve different
aspects in the construction of a technology park and Drawin
Construction Technology and Drawin Construction Design are
either direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Drawin
Manufacture, the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement require aggregation under Rule 14.22 and
Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the estimated maximum values of the EPC
Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service Arrangement
under the relevant Framework Agreements in aggregate exceed
5% but are less than 25% on an annual basis, the contemplated
transactions under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park
Design Service Arrangement constitute (i) discloseable
transactions of the Company which are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules, and (i) connected transactions of the Company which are
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap exceed 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Supply Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to the annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders'
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further, as all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap are
less than 25% and the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement
Annual Cap is less than HK$10 million, the contemplated
transaction under the PC Design Service Arrangement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction which is only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempted from the independent Shareholders’ requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 26 May 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, Shareholders confirmed, approved and
ratified the Framework Agreements dated 18 March 2021 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the estimated transaction
values under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement).
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Property leasing Agreements

On 11 May 2021, Changsha Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited (“Drawin Changsha”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Drawin Manufacture
(where Drawin Manufacture and its subsidiaries but excluding the
Group are referred to as the “"Drawin Manufacture Group
Entities”) entered into the 2021 Property Leasing Agreement
pursuant to which Drawin Changsha shall lease to the Drawin
Manufacture Group Entities the properties within the Changsha
technology park for a term of one year commencing from 11 May
2021 to 10 May 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
usage as office premises, staff dormitories, finished production
warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and prefabricated
components manufacturing plants and provide to the Drawin
Manufacture Group Entities certain ancillary services.

Pursuant to the 2021 Property Leasing Agreement, Drawin
Changsha agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Manufacture
Group Entities the office premises, staff dormitories, finished
production warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and
prefabricated components manufacturing plants, and (i) provide
to the same certain ancillary services including the supply of
heating and hot water and the provision of technology park
environmental maintenance services (the “Leasing and Ancillary
Services Arrangement”). The rentals and service fees under the
2021 Property Leasing Agreement have been determined by
Drawin Manufacture and Drawin Changsha after arm'’s length
negotiation with reference to the prevailing market rates for
comparable properties in Changsha. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 11 May 2021, the Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the value of the annual payment by Drawin Manufacture to
Drawin Changsha under the Leasing and Ancillary Services
Arrangement over the term of the 2021 Property Leasing
Agreement. Accordingly, such Proposed Property Leasing Annual
Cap over the term of the 2021 Property Leasing Agreement has
been determined to be RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,760,000).
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On 13 September 2022, Drawin Changsha, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Drawin Manufacture
entered into the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement pursuant to
which Drawin Changsha shall lease to the Drawin Manufacture
Group Entities the properties within the Changsha technology
park for a term of one year commencing from 13 September
2022 to 12 September 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose
of usage as office premises, staff dormitories, finished production
warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and prefabricated
components manufacturing plants and provide to the Drawin
Manufacture Group Entities certain ancillary services.

Pursuant to the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement, Drawin
Changsha agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Manufacture
Group Entities the office premises, staff dormitories, finished
production warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and
prefabricated components manufacturing plants, and (i) provide
to the same the ancillary services including the supply of heating
and hot water and the provision of technology park
environmental maintenance services. The rentals and service
fees under the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement have been
determined by Drawin Manufacture and Drawin Changsha after
arm’s length negotiation with reference to the prevailing market
rates for comparable properties in Changsha. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 13 September 2022, the Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap over the value of the annual payment by Drawin Manufacture
to Drawin Changsha under the Leasing and Ancillary Services
Arrangement over the term of the 2022 Property Leasing
Agreement. Accordingly, such Proposed Property Leasing Annual
Cap over the term of the 2022 Property Leasing Agreement has
been determined to be RMB12,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,234,000).

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

RZBE-—FAA+=0 EAPEERRQEMEE
FEEMBAR) HEREEI VS _FY
HER® BURIEEBSMERSEEEETE
EHEDRERANYE  HHEBE S =__FN
A+=BZ=_Z-_=FhA+-B(BEEEMA)
BE—F  UEAERDIBERONAZSH -
BIES MR E - AEBE - 5IE - K5
ENFERERABRAERERE A RAEREE
SEERREETRER

BES-_—_FYEREHZ  EPTERE(
MERER S ESEEBLENAEEM BT
BE BEEREE - AREE - AIE - RIIER
TEREREABREGRERE  Ri)MERERE
AR7% - BIEE BRI RUK M R IR EBHE BIRIR AR
BR% - BE_ZS-_—_FHEHAEHBEIESR
REEBTHERBERRDPEESZERD LR
EHEZRITMSHES%E  KATEREE - #
MBAZZE-_—_FNAT-"HHNAEMHEE -
REZBEZ—FYXAERZHARABREBEHEERE
ERBLH - A RRIRE _ ETRAIS 14A 53178
MEASEFTFRARPERI N2 HEEBERTE
FELR - At RZEZ—_FYERSHES

N BBRREZMEMEFELREETAARE
12,500,000 7T (FHE 72 %9 14,234,000 7T ) °

“E_—esR|grgsirsasras /9



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 57.36% of the
issued Shares, hence a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-
executive Director). Therefore, Drawin Manufacture is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions under the Property Leasing
Agreements constitute a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the Property Leasing Agreements
is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated transaction
under the Property Leasing Agreements constitutes a continuing
connected transaction which is only subject to the annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements and is exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Supply Arrangement and the PC Design
Service Arrangement and the Property Leasing Agreements and
confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement I,
the Framework Agreement IV and the Property Leasing
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the
Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap and
the respective Proposed Property Leasing Annual Cap are
fair and reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement II, the Framework Agreement IV
and the Property Leasing Agreements are and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into
and will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (a non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Framework Agreement |, the Framework Agreement Il, the
Framework Agreement lll, the Framework Agreement IV and the
Property Leasing Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
PC Design Service Arrangement, Property Leasing Agreements
and Supply Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 for provision of prefabricated construction
components and products design services by Drawin Intelligent
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited) and its
subsidiaries, supply of prefabricated construction components
and products to Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, and leasing of properties to
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (but excluding the Group):

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;
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b.  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping
Service Arrangement

On 7 July 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into (i) the
Framework Agreement | in relation to the provision of decoration
service by the Group to CCRE Group for their property
development projects, namely the Decoration Service
Arrangement and (i) the Framework Agreement Il in relation to
the provision of landscaping services by the Group to CCRE
Group for their property development projects, namely the
Landscaping Service Arrangement, for a term commencing from
9 September 2021 (i.e. the approval date of the Framework
Agreements by the independent Shareholders) and ending on 31
December 2023.

Under the Decoration Service Arrangement, the contract price
for decoration services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a decoration project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 18% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Decoration Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement I. Accordingly, such Proposed Decoration
Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement | has been determined to be RMB200
million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$240 million, HK$360
million and HK$480 million).
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Under the Landscaping Service Arrangement, the contract price
for landscaping services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a landscaping project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 20% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Landscaping Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of
the Framework Agreement Il has been determined to be RMB200
million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$240 million, HK$360
million and HK$480 million).

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Wu Po Sum indirectly held 65.28%
of the issued Shares, hence an indirect controlling shareholder of
the Company, and indirectly held 41.88% of the issued shares of
CCRE. Mr. Wu Po Sum is also the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore, CCRE is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and each of the
Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service
Arrangement constitute a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping
Service Arrangement are of revenue nature in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, and the counter-parties
are the same; therefore, in accordance with Rule14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement shall be aggregated when
calculating the applicable percentage ratios.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Decoration Service Arrangement Annual Cap and the Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap in aggregate
exceed 5%, the transactions contemplated under the Decoration
Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service Arrangement
are subject to the annual review, reporting, announcement,
circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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On 9 September 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under
the ordinary resolutions, Shareholders confirmed, approved and
ratified the Framework Agreements | and Framework
Agreements Il dated 7 July 2021 and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement and confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement |
and the Framework Agreement Il are on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Decoration Service Arrangement Annual
Caps and the Proposed Landscaping Service Arrangement
Annual Caps are fair and reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement | and the Framework Agreement
Il and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
entered into and will be conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and are in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Mr. Liu
Weixing, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
directly holds approximately 0.41% of the issued shares of CCRE;
(i) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), a non-executive Director, directly
holds approximately 0.48% of the issued shares of CCRE and is
also a non-executive director of CCRE and the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum (who is an indirect controlling shareholder of CCRE)
and (iii) Mr. Wang Jun, a non-executive Director, directly holds
approximately 0.55% of the issued shares of CCRE. Save as
disclosed above, no other Directors has a material interest in the
Framework Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.
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Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service
Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued
an ungualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 for providing decoration and landscaping
services to CCRE Group:

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b.  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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Patent Licence Agreements

On 26 November 2021, Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Investment Limited (“Drawin Investment”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered
into the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement with Drawin
Construction Technology, as licensee, for the grant of the right to
use the 2021 Licensed Patents in the PRC by Drawin Investment
to Drawin Construction Technology for the period commencing
from 26 November 2021 to 25 November 2026. The licence fee
payable by Drawin Construction Technology to Drawin
Investment for the right of use of 2021 Licensed Patents is
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,565,000). The
licence fee under the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement is arrived
at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with
reference to, among other factors, the market price range of
patents comparable to the 2021 Licensed Patents offered in the
market and the prevailing market condition. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 26 November 2021, the Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
caps in respect of the license fee under the 2021 Patent Licence
Agreement. Accordingly, such annual caps in respect of the
license fee under the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement over the
term has been determined to be RMB30,000,000, RMBO, RMBO,
RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31 December 2021,
31 December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024, 31
December 2025 and 31 December 2026 respectively (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,565,000, HK$0, HK$0, HK$0, HK$O and
HK$0).

On 29 June 2022, Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered into the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | with Henan Drawin Labour Center
Construction Development Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Henan
Drawin Construction Labour Co., Ltd.) (“"Henan Drawin Labour”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Henan Drawin Labour Group”),
as licensee, for the grant of the right to use the 2022 Licensed
Patents | in Henan Province, the PRC by Drawin Investment to
Henan Drawin Labour for the period commencing from 29 June
2022 to 28 June 2025. The licence fee payable by Henan Drawin
Labour to Drawin Investment for the right of use of 2022 Licensed
Patents | is RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000). The licence fee under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | is arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties with reference to, among other factors, the market
price range of patents comparable to the 2022 Licensed Patents |
offered in the market and the prevailing market condition. As
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disclosed in the announcement dated 29 June 2022, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual caps in respect of the license fee under the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement I. Accordingly, such annual caps in
respect of the license fee under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | over the term has been determined to be
RMB15,000,000, RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31
December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2025 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000, HK$0, HK$0 and HK$0).

On 29 June 2022, Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered into the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement Il with Drawin Construction Design, as
licensee, for the grant of the right to use the 2022 Licensed
Patents Il in Hunan Province, the PRC by Drawin Investment to
Drawin Construction Design for the period commencing from 29
June 2022 to 28 June 2025. The licence fee payable by Drawin
Construction Design to Drawin Investment for the right of use of
2022 Licensed Patents Il is RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,556,000). The licence fee under the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement Il is arrived at after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties with reference to, among other
factors, the market price range of patents comparable to the
2022 Licensed Patents Il offered in the market and the prevailing
market condition. As disclosed in the announcement dated 29
June 2022, the Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the
Listing Rules to set an annual caps in respect of the license fee
under the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il. Accordingly, such
annual caps in respect of the license fee under the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement Il over the term has been determined to be
RMB15,000,000, RMBO, RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31
December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2025 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,556,000, HK$0, HK$0 and HK$0).

Each of Drawin Construction Technology, Henan Drawin Labour
and Drawin Construction Design is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Drawin Manufacture. Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds
approximately 57.36% of the issued Shares, hence a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is also
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father of
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore,
each of Drawin Construction Technology, Henan Drawin Labour
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and Drawin Construction Design is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under each of the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il are both
in relation to the grant of the right to use certain patents on
prefabricated construction technologies by the Group which are
of similar nature, and Henan Drawin Labour and Drawin
Construction Design are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Drawin Manufacture, therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement Il require aggregation under Rule 14A.81 of
the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transactions contemplated under the 2021
Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement |
and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il is more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the contemplated transactions under the 2021
Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement |
and 2022 the Patent Licence Agreement Il are only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022
Patent Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il and confirmed that:

(i)  the terms and conditions of the 2021 Patent Licence
Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement | and the
2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable;
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(i) the annual caps in respect of the license fee under the
2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence Agreement Il are
fair and reasonable; and

(i)  the 2021 Patent Licence Agreement, the 2022 Patent
Licence Agreement | and the 2022 Patent Licence
Agreement Il and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were entered into and will be conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company and
its subsidiaries, and are in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Patent Licence Agreements and the transaction contemplated
thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Patent Licence Agreements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 for granting Drawin Construction Technology,
Henan Drawin Labour and Drawin Construction Design a non-
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exclusive, non-transferable and non-sub-licensable right to use
the Licensed Patents:

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b.  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Design Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2022, the Company entered into the Design
Framework Agreement with Drawin Construction Design in
relation to the provision of landscaping and decoration design
services by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the Group'’s
landscaping business and decoration business for a term
commencing from 17 June 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both days
inclusive). Pursuant to the Design Framework Agreement, the
Drawin Construction Design Group shall provide landscaping and
decoration design services, including building of the relevant
design model, to the Group for its landscaping business and
decoration business in the PRC, for which the Drawin
Construction Design Group will charge the Group landscaping
and decoration design fees (including material costs incidental to
the building of design model, ancillary tools costs and other fees).
The Drawin Construction Design Group shall not quote a contract
price that is higher than the market rate within the industry.
Under the Design Framework Agreement, the annual contract
price for landscaping and decoration design services to be
provided by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the Group
for the term of the Design Framework Agreement shall not
exceed RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,594,000).

The contract price for landscaping and decoration design
services is determined by the parties following arm’s length
negotiations and sets with reference to the average landscaping
and decoration design services quoted from the other market
participants in 2021 and the projected level of demand for
landscaping and decoration design services of the Group for the
term of the Design Framework Agreement.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 17 June 2022, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual caps in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction
amounts under the Design Framework Agreement over the term
of the Design Framework Agreement. Accordingly, such annual
caps in respect of the contract price for landscaping and
decoration design services fee under the Design Framework
Agreement over the term has been determined to be
RMB 15,000,000, RMB15,000,000 and RMB15,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022, 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2024 respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$17,594,000,
HK$17,594,000, and HK$17,594,000).

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture. Drawin Manufacture indirectly
holds approximately 57.36% of the total issued Shares, hence a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is
also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father
of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director).
Therefore, each of Drawin Manufacture and Drawin Construction
Design is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Design
Framework Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transactions under the Design Framework
Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated
transactions under the Design Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions which are only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Design Framework Agreement and confirmed
that:

()  the terms and conditions of the Design Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Annual Caps in respect of the transaction
amounts under the Design Framework Agreement is fair
and reasonable; and

(i)~ the Design Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were entered into and will be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Construction Design), none of the Directors has a material
interest in the Design Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Design Framework Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.
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The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 for provision of landscaping and decoration
design services by the Drawin Construction Design Group to the
Group:

(@ have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

(b)y  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement

On 16 May 2022, the Company entered into the Labour
Subcontract Framework Agreement with Henan Drawin Labour in
relation to the provision of labour subcontracting services by the
Henan Drawin Labour Group to the Group’s landscaping
business, decoration business and prefabricated construction
components manufacturing factories for a term commencing
from 16 May 2022 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement, the
Henan Drawin Labour Group shall provide labour subcontracting
services to the Group for its landscaping business, decoration
business and prefabricated construction components
manufacturing factories in its green construction technology
parks in the PRC, for which the Henan Drawin Labour Group will
charge the Group labour subcontracting fees (including labour
wages, subcontract service fees, management fees, social
insurance expenses, taxation, auxiliary materials and tools costs,
and other fees).
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Under the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement, the
contract price for labour subcontracting services to be provided
by the Henan Drawin Labour Group to the Group should be
determined with reference to the estimated labour costs plus a
profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
labour costs. Pursuant to the Labour Subcontract Framework
Agreement, the Henan Drawin Labour Group shall not quote a
contract price that is higher than the market rate within the
industry.

The proposed profit margin and the contract price for labour
subcontracting services are determined by the parties following
arm’s length negotiations and set with reference to the average
labour costs quoted from the other market participants in 2021
and the projected level of demand for labour subcontracting
services of the Group for the term of the Labour Subcontract
Framework Agreement.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 16 May 2022, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction
amount under the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement
over the term of the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement.
Accordingly, such Proposed Annual Cap in respect of the Labour
Subcontract Framework Agreement has been determined to be
HK$95,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (equivalent
to approximately RMB82,138,000).

Henan Drawin Labour is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Drawin Manufacture. Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds
approximately 57.36% of the issued Shares, hence a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Drawin Manufacture is also
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is the father of
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore,
each of Drawin Manufacture and Henan Drawin Labour is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Labour
Subcontract Framework Agreement therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transactions under the Labour Subcontract
Framework Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
contemplated transactions under the Labour Subcontract
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions which are only subject to the annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements and are exempt from
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement
and confirmed that:

()  the terms and conditions of the Labour Subcontract
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are on normal commercial terms which are fair
and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Annual Cap in respect of the transaction
amounts under the Labour Subcontract Framework
Agreement is fair and reasonable; and

(i)~ the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into
and will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Henan
Drawin Labour), none of the Directors has a material interest in
the Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.
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Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Labour Subcontract Framework Agreement in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information”, and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The external
auditor has issued an unqualified report containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the disclosed above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a
copy of the report to the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 for provision of labour subcontracting services
by the Henan Drawin Labour Group to the Group:

(@ have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(c) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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Sublease Agreement

On 1 April 2020, Central China Properties Development Limited
("Central China Properties”) (as sublessor) and the Company (as
sublessee) entered into the Sublease Agreement, pursuant to
which, Central China Properties agreed to sublet the Subleased
Portion to the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 (both days inclusive) for
usage as office premises. Pursuant to the Sublease Agreement,
the rent is HK$413,199.00 per calendar month (exclusive of air-
conditioning and management charges, rates and other outgoing
of a non-capital nature, which are payable by the Company) and
the air-conditioning and management charges are HK$42,652.80
per calendar month.

In accordance with HKFRS 16, the Group will recognize the value
of the right-of-use assets on its balance sheet in connection with
the Sublease Agreement, this transaction will be regarded as an
acquisition of assets by the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.
The value of the right-of-use asset to be recognized by the Group
during the year ending 31 December 2022 in relation to the
Sublease Agreement shall amount to approximately
HK$1,256,381 (2021: approximately HK$6,281,906) in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

Central China Properties is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CCRE. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Wu Po Sum indirectly held
65.28% of the issued Shares, hence an indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company, and indirectly held 41.88% of the
issued shares of CCRE. Mr. Wu Po Sum is also the father of Ms.
Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-executive Director). Therefore,
Central China Properties is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Sublease Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest of all of the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the Sublease Agreement is more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the Sublease Agreement is only subject to
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Mr. Liu
Weixing, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
directly holds approximately 0.41% of the issued shares of CCRE;
(i) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), a non-executive Director, directly
holds approximately 0.48% of the issued shares of CCRE and is
also a non-executive director of CCRE and the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum (who is an indirect controlling shareholder of CCRE)
and (iii) Mr. Wang Jun, a non-executive Director, directly holds
approximately 0.55% of the issued shares of CCRE. Save as
disclosed above, no other Directors has a material interest in the
Sublease Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Provision of financial assistance

On 30 March 2020, Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited (“Tianjin
Drawin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Mortgage Agreement with Yuhua Sub-branch of
Changsha Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”), pursuant
to which Tianjin Drawin agreed to provide the Mortgage in favour
of the Bank as security for the repayment obligations of Drawin
Manufacture (an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company)
under the 2020 Loan Agreement in respect of a loan facility of up
to RMB15,000,000 (the “2020 Loan”) granted by the Bank to
Drawin Manufacture for on-lending to Drawin Investment (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) on the same
terms as the 2020 Loan Agreement.

On 29 March 2021, Drawin Manufacture entered into the 2021
Loan Agreement with the Bank in respect of a loan facility of up
to RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,754,000),
which represents an increase of RMB5,000,000 from the principal
amount in the 2020 Loan. Save for the increase in the principal
amount, the 2021 Loan Agreement is on the same terms as the
2020 Loan Agreement. The 2021 Loan will be on-lent to Drawin
Investment on better terms than those offered in the 2021 Loan
Agreement. Pursuant to the Mortgage Agreement, the Mortgage
will continue to be in force to secure the repayment obligations
of Drawin Manufacture under the 2021 Loan Agreement.
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Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 57.36% of the
issued Shares, hence a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-
executive Director). Therefore, Drawin Manufacture is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the provision of the Mortgage by Tianjin Drawin
under the Mortgage Agreement therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the provision of the Mortgage are more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the provision of the Mortgage is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The on-lending of the loan from Drawin Manufacture to Drawin
Investment also constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempted from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the equity interests in Drawin
Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Mortgage Agreement, the Shareholder’'s Loan and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transactions as disclosed above, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, which is required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2022:

()  The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 3.6% and 14.3% of
the Group's total turnover respectively.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 2.0% and 7.9% of the Group'’s
total purchases.

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Limited, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a key customer of
2.1% sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The connected transactions with Drawin Intelligent Construction
Technology Group Limited have been approved at the Board
meeting and Shareholders’ meeting (if applicable) of the
Company.

Save for this, none of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
beneficial interests in these major customers and suppliers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company’s Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the New Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIT Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of DIT Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which are set out
on pages 113 to 251, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

30
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LK EETT N ELIT  BEFRAFAEN —1#

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that as at 31 December 2022, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$271,834,000. At the same date, the Group’s current
borrowings amounted to HK$916,732,000 while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$25,120,000 only. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group failed to repay an instalment of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,389,647) for one commercial
bank borrowing due on 31 December 2022, which constituted an
event of default and resulted in the mentioned borrowing

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
i WVR 3 S S
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REZ REHE -
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(AT R IR - BB BEXKE - ¥E
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HEBESEERNEATREM
BB TR MM BRARME21 - ERiEL -
RZZZZF+=ZA=+—H80 ESENRHPE
BB ERB) & & 271,834,000/8 7T - REH » &
EERFEEHE916,732,0008 7T MEFRE KR
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amounted to RMB115,000,000 (equivalent to HK$128,740,470)
and the Group’s other certain borrowings amounted to
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$27,987,059) as at 31 December
2022 becoming immediately repayable if requested by the lender.
As at 31 December 2022, there were various litigations against
the Group which claimed by certain suppliers with respect to
overdue payables amounted to approximately RMB130,122,000
(equivalent to HK$145,669,000) in total. In addition, the Group
failed to repay another three commercial bank borrowings
amounted to RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to HK$36,942,918) in
total subsequent to 31 December 2022. Such conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

1. Impairment provision for trade receivables

2. Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

104

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report

KRk E

7 128,740,4707% 7T ) & & & B A K ¥ 25,000,000
TC(FEE 127,987,059 7T ) < H A& T E AR
BEFRANEREIHNEE - R_TE-__F+—-A
=+—B E5£E@EG ETHEARSHES
RERAEEERIRENSRFR  BBLUAA
FR#5 130,122,000 7T (B & 7 145,669,000 7T) © It
S BRERER-_Z__F+HA=+—H#%&
8 & @3B AR 3300000075 # & »
36,942,918 B L) M BIN= B ERITIER - ZF
BRERLRA M EREN 2.1 T8 Ea FIBEE R
FESATHMEER A EEEBELER"
NEXERRE - BMOERLERZZEIED
Bk -

BAREEE
BRESEERRBRMOT LA - RABA
BRANBREANBHBAEENEH - ELE
ARG RMES SRS ARG RRL L AT LS
EITREN  RMTEHELBRREEBNE
Ho

BAER T HR A ERES FEBANT

1. BIRUSIRBERRE

2. BE- BELERREMEREEENRER G



&
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
i WVR 3 S S

B Rk E

Key Audit Matter 1
BRBETEIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMET MRS ERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
B 2R EEE

Refer to notes 4.1 (Critical accounting estimates
— Impairment of trade receivables) and Note 21 (Trade
and other receivables and prepayments) to the
consolidated financial statements.
2HGREMBRENT L1 (FEESEG — EZEKEK
TERME) K21 (B 5 R H h e FRIA R FEFRIR)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$2,245,450,000, against which
an impairment provision of HK$125,560,000 was provided.
RZBEZ—F+-—A=+—H  ESBEEZREWFIEL
#H /3 2,245,450,000 74 7T - #f 1bE 5528 (B # % 125,560,000
PBTT °

For trade receivables with remarkably different credit risk
characteristics and occurrence of credit impairment, the
Group measured the expected credit loss individually.
HREERRFHEZTRAEZREEERENE S EK
HIE - AEEEFERHEESE -

Our audit work in relation to impairment provision for
trade receivables included:
BMEREZERFERERENET TERSE

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment provision for trade receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

o BMTHEEREHNE D EWGIRR BN NIIE
HIFET RN @A E BT N EE A E M E A R
BRI T8 B REGHXEEE
RASHGFZE)NEE - FHE TERERNEB R

B e

e For trade receivables assessed individually, we
reviewed documents for supporting management'’s
assessment of the historical credit of the customers,
subsequent settlement, and other relevant market
information in order to assess the reasonableness of
expected credit loss allowance provided by
management.

o BMERFEHNEZRKKEMNS  EBENETER
BELEE  BEFEREMBEATSER  HMRF
T X EZAHEE RO - A B R ERE A TEE
EEEERENSENT -
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Key Audit Matter 1 (Continued)
BRETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ET A EEERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables (Continued)

B 5% BWRIERERE (&)

For trade receivables without occurrence of credit
impairment or the expected credit loss cannot be estimated
for an individual financial asset at a reasonable cost, the
Group grouped trade receivables in accordance with credit
risk characteristics and measured the expected credit 10ss
based on groups. When measuring expected credit losses,
the Group had considered historical default loss rates, and
adjusted it by taking into consideration of forward looking
macroeconomic data.
HRARBEEERENEEAZSERAN G ENEHE
ERBEEBENESRIGUE  A5BREEERR
BHEESRERFIEETHE WIS HEFEBHEE
BB NAEHEHEEEER  AEBEERELEN
BRE  WEBEAEERBCBESIE AR EELFE -

We focused on this area due to the high degree of

estimation uncertainties and the subjectivity of

judgements involved in determining the impairment

provision for trade receivables.

BMBERZES - THRGHRREENTETE
K RETE S EEFIBREREN B8N -

A
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e For trade receivable assessed collectively by making
reference to the credit risk characteristics:
o ,fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂfwf* BEHR BB E SR ERIAT

i

we assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and major assumptions adopted in expected credit
losses of trade receivables, including the historical
default loss rates and the adjustments for the
historical default loss rates based on forward
looking macroeconomic data.
. ﬁfﬁ:ﬂaT:‘—tgﬁ@)\%&ﬁmAﬁ MIARE S FEK
HEEREEERETRANZERSE  BEEL
L%ﬁ%ﬁ%rﬂgﬁéﬁuﬁﬁ MRBSESIREE L E
HEREFAE o

e We tested the accuracy of the ageing analysis of
trade receivables by tracing items in the ageing
analysis, on a sample basis, to the relevant
supporting documents.
BMEBEMBEAHXHENRERSITIAR - #
BORIF & 5 W SRIE AR i AT B ZE 1 o

e \We tested the expected credit losses calculation
schedule for mathematical accuracy.
o HMARTEREEESETERHROSEERE -

e We checked subsequent settlements relating to
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022, on a
sample basis.

o HMUAMBEAABRER T __F+=-_A=1+—

AESRERBFIBENEBRELS -

Based on the work performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in assessing the impairment
of trade receivables were supported by the evidence we
gathered.

BEBEMETHNIE  RMRREEBENHE S E WK
TR {E 7 E A E S 2R PR B B IR S -
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Key Audit Matter 2
BRETEIR2

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMET MRS ERETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Mk BERRBREREEENREMG

Refer to notes 4.1 (Critical accounting estimates
— Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets) and Note 15 (Property, plant and
equipment) and Note 16 (Right-of-use assets) to the
consolidated financial statements.
D2REGREMBBRERWT LI (EE SR EET — WE - BE

SR REEERE) K15 (W - BB REE)
KM 16 (ERREE)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") and right-of-use
assets (“ROU") of the Group were HK$2,894,335,000 and
HK$894,791,000, respectively. The Group recorded a total
impairment provision charge of HK$6,005,000 against
PP&E and ROU to the consolidated income statement of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
RZZEZZF+-A=+—H ' E£EOYE - BEX
ZE((E BEERXBDRERAEEE(CREEE])
7 BR EE 5 Bl A& 2,894,335,0007%8 7T & 894,791,000/ 7T °
HE_T-—F+-_A=+—HLLFE BEEER &
SEFAWRERPHYE  BERREBEREAEEER
1S B 48 =2 HH 4888 6,005,000 8 7T,

Our audit work in relation to impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
included:

BPBEWE - BB RRENAREAEEEREN G
BT LIERLE -

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment provision for PP&E and ROU and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

e LMTHEBEREEHNME BERXEBEARGHAES
ERER AN ASZES MR R BB E R AEFT
BEUMAMEERRE=(REMNE - T8 &
tREESXERERANMRFLE)NEE - 511G
TERERHEERR

e With regard to the recoverable amounts of the
underlying CGUs with impairment indicators:
o FARARETFRHMEREELEMAATKRESHE

e \We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
model adopted by management.
o M TEEEERNMGERAENEEM -

e \We evaluated the appropriateness of discount rates
by comparing them with the costs of capital of
comparable companies as well as considering
territory specific and other factors.

o HMMAERLIIR KR L RN A E R ARETEL
BRA K 3B R 5 b [ A0 L th (R =R AT A BE 3R R A9
BEE -
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Key Audit Matter 2 (Continued)
HRENEH2 (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ET A EEERETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Y% - BERREREREEENRENG (&)

Management has assessed whether any impairment
indicators of PP&E and ROU existed as at the balance
sheet date and has identified that impairment indicators
of the PP&E and ROU existed for certain subsidiaries with
operations which are loss making. Management
determines each individual subsidiary as a separately
identifiable cash generating unit (“CGU").
EREENEYE BEARBREAEEENEER
BEXRARSHFEAMBELRR  WE#HNE TEZEER
BB ARINYE  BERREREAEEEFERE
TR -BEHEERSHBARETE AR B HRESE
HBA ([REEEER]) -

For the purpose of impairment assessment, management
identified the relevant CGU and estimated the recoverable
amounts of these CGUs based on the higher of their fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use (“VIU")
calculations. The key assumptions used in estimating the
recoverable amounts of related CGUs include revenue
growth rates and discount rates.

BRETENES  BEEEBIBBEREELREN - WIR
BATFERLEEXNARFERAEBE(FERAEBAEDFTEZR
SEAHZERCEABN 2AKRE SR - A8
AREELESBUANESBENEZEBRREF/BABRE
NARERE o

We focused on this area because the estimation of
recoverable amounts of the underlying CGUs are subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the impairment assessment of PP&E and
ROU are considered significant due to significant
judgements and subjectivity of significant assumptions
used such as revenue growth rates and discount rates.
MRAABREELESMMN A KNE @B HTZE S E R
ATHEMNTE  BMAEENE—HE - ARMAES
MEANHBRERBRENEEN - KA RE KRR
. BRYE BERZEREAEEEREN GENE
BRBEEBERX -
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e \We evaluated the reasonableness of revenue
growth rates by comparing them with historical
operating results, budgets approved by
management and future business projections.

e BMBBAREWAEREBALEESR KER
B ENTEE RARREBTE AT - FEE UK
AEREHNEEMN -

e We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying present value of estimated future cash
flow calculations.

o HRMAIRTHFRRREREAENHBRED
EBAEREM o

Based on the work we performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements and assumptions used in
assessing the impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets were supported by the
evidence we gathered.

EREMAETHNIE  RMRABTEERTLYE -
B i A K i & E R E R P A Y # T R R B2
BRI ENEE SR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-—_F BE_ZT_—F
t=A=t—-8B +-A=+—~H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HfaE FET FE&T
Revenue WA 5 1,573,662 2,085,226
Cost of sales HEXA 9 (1,311,728) (1,561,071)
Gross profit EF 261,934 524,155
Government grants AT B 6 16,930 37,660
Other income HE YA 7 12,199 17,636
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518),Wes — F58 8 (9.439) 8,485
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHAY 9 (84,106) (91,180)
Administrative expenses THRAX 9 (187,584) (192,166)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & & &R (EF 18 /F 58 3.1.2 (85,383) 47,111)
Share of losses of associates & NE DG EE (18,259) (12,534)
Operating (loss)/profit e (BR) SRR (93,708) 244,945
Finance costs A& AN 10 (76,001) (56,912)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSHAT (B58), B (169,709) 188,033
Income tax expenses i3t 12 16,134 (49,056)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER) &R (153,575) 138,977
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Ht2E (FiE), W% -
which may be reclassified HETREBEEFIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss B
— Currency translation differences — NI E =R (266,341) 84,935
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHAtZME (F5i8),
for the year, net of tax W o HOBRBEIE
(266,341) 84,935
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEZ@E (F18) WHHEHE
for the year (419,916) 223,912
—E-CraR | wrsshressrss 113
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-S-__F BE-T-—F
t=A=+t-8 +=A=+-~

LEE IEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
HfaE FET FE&r
(Loss)/profit for the year, RUTALTFHENEE
attributable to (B8]),#F
— Owners of the Company — AR EHEEAA (148,150) 132,375
— Non-controlling interests — eI A A (5,425) 6,602
(153,575) 138,977
Total comprehensive (loss)/ BUTALTHENEE
income for the year, attributable to 2@ (F18) W E5E
— Owners of the Company — RREHEEA (414,696) 216,979
— Non-controlling interests — R (5,220) 6,933
(419,916) 223,912
(Losses)/earnings per share BARFEBEAFMEER
attributable (BR]) &R
to owners of the Company
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (AFRBILZ5)
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 14 (4.78) 4.66

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other — _Fit4R & 1825 K& E fih 2 [F U 2 5% JRE B BB BT B 53 —
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the — #+B333& -
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e ERRR

As at 31 December 2022 A-ZE-—-F+_-_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=—T=—Z= RZZT=—%F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 15 2,894,335 2,951,508
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 894,791 1,119,436
Investment properties KEMEHE 17 16,344 18,591
Intangible assets B AE 18 4,351 4,346
Deferred income tax assets EEFTISIREE 30 77,317 61,745
Investments in associates BN NG 19 209,593 241,514
Financial assets at fair value through NAREBEFEBEED
profit or loss FTABENEREE 23 41,002 52,003
4,137,733 4,449,143
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 20 143,180 211,424
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N b e W kI K TR
prepayments g 21 2,328,642 2,238,936
Financial assets at fair value through UAREEFAEAHE
profit or loss TABRHEREE 23 = 12,231
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeSEER 24 25,120 461,351
Restricted cash BRHEE 25 55,251 187,717
2,552,193 3,111,659
Total assets EERE 6,689,926 7,560,802
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AFTEER
of the Company
Share capital (nominal value) B (EME) 26 1,240,960 1,240,960
Reserves e 27 987,916 1,425,619
2,228,876 2,666,579
Non-controlling interests IR ER 29 689,568 694,718
Total equity e 2,918,444 3,361,297
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CONSOHDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
le-\ jiﬁﬂk Ri

As at 31 December 2022 A-ZE-—F+_-A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZBE=-— MN-TE - —4F
t=A=t—-8B +-A=+—~H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FEIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Amount due to a related party FE 1~ @S 77 5K IE 36 77,438 -
Deferred income TEIEWA 1,562 2,672
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSRaE 30 14,097 14,323
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 = 105,472
Borrowings BE 32 854,358 1,341,120
947,455 1,463,587
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk EH b RIE 31 1,792,277 1,772,008
Contract liabilities aEHEE 72,342 60,890
Current income tax liabilities MEFTEHAE 41,275 51,113
Lease liabilities HERE 16 1,401 13,749
Borrowings BE 32 916,732 838,158
2,824,027 2,735,918
Total liabilities EE8E 3,771,482 4,199,505
Total equity and liabilities EEREEARE 6,689,926 7,560,802
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be AR A B TS AR 2R FE B BE BT B s E — OF ROAE o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 251 were  ZE 1132251 AMGAMBHRERN T - =F = A
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and were =+tHRK=ZS# i THUTTEERRESS

signed on its behalf by: #=E
Liu Weixing Guo Weiqgiang
ZEE R R
Director Director
e £
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ - —

Attributable to owners of the Company

NSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AEOE=EER

FH-A=+—RHIFE

RRTEE AR
Undistributed
Contributed profits/ Non-
Share Share  Exchange surplus Other (Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total  interests equity
REWER/
R RGEE  EXRE BARREE  HbRE  (BHER) g  EREE  RRHE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TA7 TAT TAT Tir TA TA FAT TiEr TH
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B--5-F-RAfER 1,120,960 863905 87,340 131,166 24810 (78,162) 2,150,019 671,565 2,821,584
Profitfor the year R - - - - - 132375 132375 6,602 138977
Other comprehensive income:  Eb 2N :
Currency translation differences EnEEE - - 84,604 - - - 84,604 k4] 84,935
Total comprehensive income FE2ANEAE
for the year - - 84,604 - - 132,375 216979 6,933 23912
Transactions with owners: RERARTNRE
Issuie of ordinary shares LRk 120,000 168,000 - - - - 288,000 - 288,000
Share-based compensation DR AERNES - - - - 11,581 - 11,581 - 11,581
Transactions with NCI: REERESETNRG
Capitalinjection bynon-controlling ~~ JEERREIAES
shareholders - - - - - - - 16,220 16,220
Total transactions with owners ~ REAAZRZEE 120,000 168,000 - - 1581 - 299,581 16,220 315,801
At 31 December 2021 R=§=-§1=fzt-B 120000 101905 7198 131166 %31 M3 246519 GATI8 331297
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZBZZ5-A-AMER 1,240,960 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54,213 2,666,579 694718 3,361,297
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (148150)  (148,150) (5425)  (153,575)
Other comprehensive loss: Et2EFR:
Currency translation differences EnEER = - (266,546) = = - (266,546) 205 (266341)
Total comprehensive loss FEREHREE
for the year - - (266,546) - - (148,150) (414,696) (5,220) (419,916)
Transactions with owners: HEFARTNRE
Capital inection by ownership RREEDTE
Interests = 74 = = - - 74 - 74
Share-Dased compensation IR AERME - - - - 8,382 - 8,382 - 8,382
Dividends paid BfRE - - - (31,024) - - (31,024) - (31,024)
Share buy-hacks %R - (439) = = = - (439) = (439)
Transactions with NC: FERERETNRS
Capital injection by non-controling FERRREAES
shareholders - - - - - - - 70 70
Total transactions with owners BB AZRZHE = (365) = (31,024) 8,382 - (23,007) 70 (22,937)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+ZB=1-A 1,240,960 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 44,773 (93937) 2,228,876 689,568 2,918,444
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should — _Eit4zr & fE2S B 5% FE EARE M s — TR -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
B CEsR | wrgeigsEsseas 117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-—-F BE_T_—F
+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LHEFE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hta FET FAT
Operating activities KETE
Cash generated from operations KEMSNIRE 33 141,675 179,727
Income tax paid BRFATEE (20,872) (65,188)
Net cash generated from operating BB TS AR & 558
activities 120,803 114,539
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of properties, plants BEYX BERZE
and equipments (267,224) (890,234)
Purchase of land use rights EE TP — (31,751)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEAE (694) (103)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth o 65 2 B O O TS RIE
management product 11,643 (13,315)
Investment in associates e N /NE] (9,896) (40,747)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEHEB ARG
A - 4,693
Proceeds from disposal of equipments & SRR TS 3R 13,236 24,476
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEERNE
investment properties SRIE 265 486
Interest received EYFI & 2,039 5,398
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFTAMR S F8E (250,631) (941,097)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-—F BHE_T_—F
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid EfTALE (94,406) (98,273)
Increase in deposit for bank borrowings — $RITREER B LN 130,000 =
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (638,306) (329,748)
Proceeds from borrowings BEERATSRIE 405,780 972,549
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBEMNRIA (9,139) (32,677)
Amounts due to a related party P& — %2 B 5 5k I8 (52,431) -
Proceeds from issuing of ordinary shares 217 E A FT1S 7R - 288,000
Share buy-backs % 15 B 1=l (439) =
Dividends paid to company’s S FARR RS
shareholders (31,024) -
Capital contributions by IR E
non-controlling interests - 16,220
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEER (FTA) EER
financing activities e F5E (289,965) 816,071
Net decrease in cash and HeRkBEEEEER
cash equivalents WA MR (419,793) (10,487)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYIWRe MEeFEERE
beginning of the year 461,351 443,882
Net exchange (losses)/gains on cash and 3¢ MIREEHETEE HIE K
cash equivalents (B518), W= F8E (16,438) 27,956
Cash and cash equivalents at end of £XRHWERERREZEER
the year 25,120 461,351

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FER { EREENZEEERAT

A A B 8 R A S 9 — B0 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

1

120

wﬂ'\

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
February 1991 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 7708A, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are prefabricated construction work,
decoration and landscaping services, granting licenses,
consulting services and sales of equipment in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2022, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wu Po Sum.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(@) Compliance with HKFRs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Compliance with HKFRs and HKCO
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$271,834,000. At the same date, the Group's
current borrowings amounted to
HK$916,732,000 while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$25,120,000 only.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group failed to repay an instalment of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,389,647)
for one commercial bank borrowing due on 31
December 2022, which constituted an event of
default (“Bank Borrowing Default”). This event
resulted in the mentioned borrowing amounted
to RMB115,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$128,740,470) as at 31 December 2022
becoming immediately repayable if requested
by the lender, of which RMB60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$67,168,941) represented bank
borrowing with scheduled repayment dates
within one year, while the remaining
RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to HK$61,571,529)
represented the non-current portion with
original maturity dates beyond 31 December
2023 that were reclassified as current liabilities.

This Bank Borrowing Default also triggered
certain terms specified in the Group's other
borrowing agreements and resulted in the
Group’s other borrowings amounted to
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$27,987,059) in
total as at 31 December 2022 becoming
immediately repayable if requested by the
lenders.

2 EXETHERBE @

2.1 REEE(E)

(a)

(b)

BT HFR | EREENZEEERAT

BIEBUBHEEAREEBR
Atxp) ()

RETT A BB BRE LR M
BHRERFTERE TR G
e MBEEBERERAAREDY
SETBRBIEPITEEAE D -

HHERE R
RZB-_—F+=-A=+—H "
AEEMTBAGEBLELREE
EE271,834,000/ 7T - A A » &
BB A 916,732,00058 7T -
mMESERSSEEEEA
25,120,000 7T °

BHE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—
B AEBREEE—EN_F
——E+-A=1+—B3HNn
¥ R77{8 5 A R ¥ 20,000,000 7T
(P Z7422,389,647 7 7T ) » L1
R—EEHNESHTRITER
BHD - ZEHBHR-Z
——F+-A=+—8u i
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128,740,470 L) ERE R AE
kEVHNEE HFARK
60,000,000 7T ( 18 55 72 67,168,941
BIT) B EEREHE—FR
RSRITRER . ME S ARK
55,000,000 7t (48 55 72 61,571,529
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F+-—A=+—RHENIERSI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'.R jiﬁ*ﬁ%lxﬁ-‘;

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EARXETHERBE @

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBIE%E(4F)
(b) Going concern basis (Continued) (b) FHFELEEE(E)
As at 31 December 2022, there were various RZE_=ZF+=-A=+—8"

AEBEHRGZHFR BT HE

122

litigations against the Group which were
claimed by certain suppliers with respect to
overdue payables amounted to approximately
RMB130,122,000 (equivalent to HK$145,669,000)
in total.

In addition, subsequent to 31 December 2022,
the Group failed to repay another three
commercial bank borrowings amounted to
RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to HK$36,942,918) in
total according to the scheduled repayment
dates (“Bank Borrowing Default 2").

Such conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors
have given careful considerations to the future

B ENRERNAEE
RERE BREHRARE
130,122,000t ( # & ®
145,669,000/ 7T) °

AN - AEERGER T
T A=+ BRIRRFEER
FHEERLREARARE
33,000,000 7T (48 & 74 36,942,918
BIL)MRIN=FBARRITER
(MRTTEFER2)) -

ZEMRRNBRFEERNTETE
- ATREH AR BEMREZE E AL
NBREREM -

BERL  ESEFEARER
DA RAV BT RF B L

liquidity and performance of the Group and its B tﬁ%ﬁ$%lﬂixﬁ’7m§bé
available sources of financing in assessing EREREREATARENRR - &
whether the Group will have sufficient financial BERDECR I RN EREE

sources to continue as a going concern. The
following plans and measures are formulated to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
the financial position of the Group:

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) Going concern basis (Continued)

i)

In respect of borrowings that are either
overdue or in default (including Bank
Borrowing Default and Bank Borrowing
Default 2), the Group has been actively
negotiating with the relevant lenders for
the repayment, renewal and extension of
the overdue borrowings. The Directors
are confident to convince the relevant
lenders not to exercise their rights to
demand the Group's immediate
repayment of the borrowings prior to their
scheduled contractual repayment dates.
Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the
Group has repaid RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$5,597,412) and
successfully extended RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to HK$145,532,706) of these
defaulted borrowings and the Directors
believe that the Group will be able to
timely fulfil the repayment schedules
under the extended borrowing
agreements.

The Group has also been negotiating with
various banks and financial institutions to
seek renewal, extension of the other
existing borrowings and obtain new
borrowings. The Directors believe that,
given the Group's long-term relationship
with the banks and financial institutions
and the availability of the Group’s long
term assets as collateral for the
borrowings, the Group will be able to
renew or extend existing borrowings and
obtain new borrowings when needed.

2 EBEAXEHHEERBE @)

2.1 REEE(E)
(b) FEEELEE(HE)

i)

BT HFR | EREENZEEERAT

B HISE MM E R (B IER
TEREORBITENRE
#92) - 7N & [E 35 15 B2 AR
ERABBERZE
B EENEHEMAE
HeEZEEABELOHRMBA
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REBRHEFEIEHNER
HEARTENR BB E K - B
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A R #5,000,000 7T ( 48
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i H A R 5 130,000,000 7C
( 18 % 5145,532,706 7%
TT) c EEREAERE KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'.R jiﬁ*&%lxﬁ-‘;

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEAXEHHERBE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEXE(E)
(b) Going concern basis (Continued) (b) HFELEEE(E)

124

i) Inrespect of the outstanding litigations for
overdue payables to the Group's
suppliers, the Group is negotiating with
suppliers for revised repayment schedules
and actively arranging settlement.

i ARAASEHERRBS
BN RERASERE LD
RORFER - NEEEMEE
AR A ERTEERE
VERLZHEE - R_F

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, certain 4 +=-HA=+—8H
overdue payables have been settled and % ETHHENZED
the Directors are confident that the Group CEERHEEASERE

is able to reach revised repayment
schedules with suppliers and settle the
overdue payable accordingly.

iv)  The Group will continue to implement
measures to increase the sales of its
prefabricated construction units and
decoration and landscaping services, and
to speed up the collection of trade
receivables.

V)  The Group will seek opportunities to
dispose of certain assets and investments
at reasonable prices to generate cash
inflows and mitigate its liquidity pressure.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash
flow projections prepared by management,
which cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2022. They are of
the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months
from 31 December 2022. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements
0n a going concern basis.

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report

S B {1 FE R S AIE AT (E&
FHEl - YR EEBHE
e

V) AN SR E AR AR PR ERHE B R
BEBREEAZEEL
R K&K ENRB RS
BEHE - AW ANRIEE 5
FE YRR

V) AEESSEEEUAAE
BERHEETEERK
B REERERARRK
HERHESES -

ERCENEEERENAEH
Ren=eRA EREEZZT
—=F+—A=Ft—HEBTLR
TZEAREE - BERAE &
ZR L E REREE - AEE
BERHEEES AHEERE
B VTR _ZBE-_—_F+_-A8
=+—BEsT=EARETE
HMPBEEE - Bt - EFEN
RRESEEERUGE M BH
XEHEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEAXEHHEERBE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)
(b) Going concern basis (Continued) (b) FHELEEE(EF)

Notwithstanding the above, significant
uncertainties exist as to whether the Group is
able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the following:

(i)  the successful negotiations with the
Group's lenders in respect of the
borrowings that were either overdue or in
default, so that the relevant lenders will
not exercise their contractual rights to
demand immediate repayment of the
borrowings; the timely repayments
according to the scheduled repayment
dates as stipulated in the extended
borrowing agreements;

(i) the successful negotiations with the
banks and financial institutions for
renewal of or extension for repayment of
the other existing borrowings and the
successful obtaining of additional new
sources of financing as and when needed;

(i) the successful settlement of litigation
against the suppliers for overdue
payables; and

(iv)  the successful and timely implementation
of the measures to increase the sales and
speed up the collection of trade
receivables, and the successful disposal
of relevant assets and investments at
reasonable prices and timely collection of
the proceeds.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the
above-mentioned plans and measures and
operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying
values of the Group's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEHHEERBE @)

126

yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards,
amendments to accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards, amendments or
interpretations are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)

(¢c) New and amended standards of HKFRSS () ZTEFBR-ZE-—FEHEMNNEE
adopted by the Group in 2022 Bl % 3R & 2E B 7T 2E B R A& 5T 2K
The Group has applied the following REBENZZE-_—_F—HF—H
amendments for the first time for their annual 46 Y F 2 s B & R e AR A
reporting period commencing 1 January 2022: INCHES
e Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds o YE - BERKRE: KT

before Intended Use — Amendments to AT E5E— &S
HKAS 16 FTERIZE 16 SIS ET A
o Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a o EEAK— EBITAARIK
Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37 K — BESFERIFE 375
CHIES
e Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards o EEEHREERN - F
2018-2020, and —NEFEZ-_ZF—F ﬁfﬁ"]fl—c
EE R
e Reference to the Conceptual Framework o BIREZEmIER — BB
— Amendments to HKFRS 3. TR EZERFE SFNERTA »
° Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions o —E-_—FNNA=+HZ
beyond 30 June 2021 — Amendment to ‘e F R IEIHEHE T E
HKFRS 16 (March 2021) (the “HKFRS 16 " ‘@%‘%ijk#ﬁi_‘gﬁlj%
Amendment (March 2021)”) 16HIEFTA(ZFE=—F =
H) ([EEHHREERE
16T AR (ZF=Z—F =
H)J)
e Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting o B IES| ESFNEFT A —
for Common Control Combinations HEFEH T & G 8 251
I
The amendments listed above did not have any L/U:FWIJ BT AN 9 3B 1 HA Rl 1
impact on the amounts recognised in prior RO RAEMFE  WHTE
periods and are not expected to significantly .quT\ HEHS ARKAEEAS
affect the current or future periods. A&
(d) New standards and interpretations not (d) [ RN FT2ER R 2 FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
Ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the group
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@

Business combinations (Continued)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

1 28 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(©

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

1 30 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”)
that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHHEERBIE@®

132

2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 IEIRE

(a) Functional and presentation currency (@) TEERZIEH
Items included in the financial statements of FFAREE S EEMBHRERNIE
each of the Group's entities are measured using BEFAZEREEMTEEELE
the currency of the primary economic RENER. (e atE -
environment in which the entity operates i? B HmERIABILZEY] - BT
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated DRIBARARNNEEEE RAE
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong BEHE5E% o
dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional
and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZREE
Foreign currency transactions are translated HINEZ PR S B HANERFTE

into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the

RNERR - RAEX5EE R
RERERFTEAINETENE
KEENMABRELNINE RS

settlement of such transactions and from the MESEE—REGa B NEMm
translation at year end exchange rates of 2EWEE i%EF R - MEFEE

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedge and qualifying net investment
hedge or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a
net basis within “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value

BRESREHTRAERKE
bR AR SR (S BN E B R
BB —8n AREEE
L o

P NE W as R B BN 4R & 18 as
REMEEIK SR AN [ EibU
=/ (B1R) — 8] FEE
5] o

BRAREEAELUINEEZ
FEBMRBEREEAAEE
ERAZEXRFHE - mAR(EED
ReBERABENTEEZRER
BARBERIEZ —&D - O
e EERMEERABHIA
BARBEFABRDEOER) N
NTEEZRHEBRERTERRDLL

through profit or loss are recognised in profit or BEABN—HD  MIEFEH
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and BEPIMHEREANEES
translation differences on non-monetary assets AEMEEmBAZER) WITE

such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(c)

(@

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 N¥E BERSEE

134

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements

ME - BFE RRBRE LKA R
FERREERIE BEELKAEE
WiETH B WEREHRAX -

REEHEERGHNRREEMNZE
A BE R R AN SR B N T8 B BCANRE A] 3¢
AER HRRAT 8 ABERA
BERERLS-—BBYLEAE(HER) °
EEREMHAEREERNSGEUSHER
FrBERMEEREERANIREES
FEMBRBRARARakEtE®E
Yeaa R AR AER

FEEMERETE  BREKALE
HRMEE (IR ERIGREE) £ E A
AAERFRANE  BEREEY
XERERETHERE K&REMS -

and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter BHEMBEERRNT

lease term as follows:

— Buildings 30 years —EF 304
— Computer equipments 3-6 years — BN EMAE 3E6F
— Motor vehicles 5 years —RE 5%

— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years — R EEE 5&74
— Equipments 10 years — &fE 104
— Leasehold improvements 3-5 years —HEEE JEEH4E

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less provision for
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss
as part of a valuation gain or loss in “Other gains/
(losses) — net”.

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

136

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through OCI, or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OClI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B B SRR I AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

2.10.4 Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
2.10.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or l0ss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

2.10.5 Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.10.6 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
2.10.6 Impairment (Continued)

For trade receivables with remarkably different
credit risk characteristics and occurrence of
credit impairment, the Group evaluated the
distribution of expected cash flows based on
historical experience of credit losses, current
situations and forecasts of future conditions of
contract counterparties under different
situations, and made corresponding provision
for expected credit loss. For trade receivables
without occurrence of credit impairment or the
expected credit loss cannot be estimated for an
individual financial asset at a reasonable cost,
the Group groups the receivables based on its
judgement whether there are significant
differences in customers’ credit risk
characteristics and measures the expected
credit loss based on groups. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Group had
considered historical default loss rates, and
adjusted it by taking into consideration of
forward looking macroeconomic data.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

144

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the
interest rate differential between borrowing costs
that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing
costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on
interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.18 Income tax (Continued) 2.18 FRii5%i (&
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Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
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recognised in other comprehensive income or B e
directly in equity, respectively.
() Tax incentives (i) FEEE

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and
Development Tax Incentive regime in Oneland).
The Group accounts for such tax incentives as
tax credits, which means that the tax incentives
reduce income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward
as deferred tax assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.20 Share-based payments 2.20 ARG AREBRNNTR

148

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the DIT Group Employee Option Plan.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
note 28.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for litigation and onerous contracts, etc.
are recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

2 EXEHBREE@®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction units

Sales of prefabricated construction units are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

Revenue from granting licenses

The Group enters into granting licenses
agreements with the customers. The terms of
these arrangements typically include non-
refundable upfront payments and milestone
payments.

For non-refundable upfront payments, revenue
is recognised at point in time, when the license
is transferred to the customer, and the
customer is able to use and benefit from the
license.

For milestone payments, at the inception of
each arrangement that includes milestone
payments, the Group assesses whether the
milestones are considered highly probable of
being achieved and estimates the amount to be
included in the transaction price using the most
likely amount method. The Group recognises
revenue from milestone payments as or when
particular milestones are highly probable to be
achieved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEHBREE@®

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 W AFER (#)

(iii) Revenue from decoration and landscaping (iii) 7% 5 42 8 A E AR A7 1L BR 7 B9 A
services
Revenue from decoration and landscaping HRBEAAEAEBETHR
services is recognised over the service period BF 35 0 BOOR B 2 s A E M AR b
when the service are render to the customers RIS ATE MR IR RS
as the customers can benefit simultaneously as RIEEAANFER o
the Group performing.
When the outcome of decoration and BRI RMER LIRS & LM &
landscaping services contract can be BemuSEtER - KEE4OH
reasonably measured, revenue from the WS A AR — KRR R
contract is recognised progressively over time R BRI A N TIENE
using the output method, i.e. based on the BREE A o
completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.
If at any time the costs to complete the contract i PME AT B R (i 5T 2 A & KA AR
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount BRANREE#STE  AIRE
of the consideration under the contract, then a MI5E2.21 RSN BUR FERR R -
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.21.

(iv) Revenue from sales of prefabricated (iv) REHEARZEXEEREY
construction equipments WA
Sales of prefabricated construction equipments T8 R AT SR AR A il
are recognised when the control of the PEBRemREEERERRN

prefabricated construction equipments has
transferred, being when the prefabricated
construction equipments are delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 W AFER (#)

(v) Revenue from consulting services (v) REZHBREHRA
Revenue from consulting services is recognised 70 BR 7% &9 WA TE PR 7547 ) h
when or as the control of the services is BEEPRER  RIES LK
transferred to a customer. Depending on the = RS ETLeA—B
terms of the contract, control of the services B A s E X AR B ER - i
may be transferred over time or at a point in AREBNREN AR FIRERBU
time. Control of the services is transferred over B EOEFERFTE A - BIARTSHY
time if the Group’s performance provides all of | A — R N ER o MR
the benefits received and consumed TSI I RE N — R N TS
simultaneously by the customer. If control of BB AR WAES L EAER
the services transfers over time, revenue from BZENEIFHTHREEER -
consulting service is recognised over the period ZDH| - 2EREEFREER
of the contract by reference to the progress 7% N AR 22 A5 B SR 1 B ] B e T
towards complete satisfaction of that R B BARIEAUA
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
from consulting service is recognised at a point
in time when the required service and related
deliverables are provided to the customers.

(vi) Financing components (vi) BEZS
The Group adjusts the transaction prices for the AEEREEEOBREERARE
time value of money and recognises financing RSB IWHE b Wz A FE R
components in other income. BE o

2.23 Dividend income 2.23 BEWA

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEHBREE@®

2.24 Leases 224 HHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of property, plant and
equipment for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received.

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEHBREE@®

2.24 Leases (Continued) 2.24 1HE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the Company.

2.26 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to assets are included in
non- current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

2.28 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if;

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if

that person:
()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is @ member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk
(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group's transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HEEREERSMTAE @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥RKREE#F)
3.1.1Market risk (Continued) 3.1.1 8B ()
(@)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@ SMER (&)

(b)

Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions
when necessary.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$9,700 (2021: HK$4,200) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD denominated bank deposits. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2022 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in
2022.

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest
bearing assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

Management does not anticipate
significant impact to interest-bearing
assets and bank borrowings resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank deposits and
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, if
interest rates on interest-generating bank
deposits and borrowings with floating
rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 would have changed as follows:

3 HEEMEERSBMIAE@®

3.1 B¥RKREZE#H)
31175 Rk (E)
b) BELHERAALEEFZE
Bk (4E)
BEEREANEEEFT
EHHEEERRITEE
EREAFE REATHE
HRIT R REENF =
BreHIRENEE) -

RZBZZFR-FT-—F
+=—A=+—8 ' izt 585R
I KA Z B 5T B
BERBFIR EF RS0
EEBE M AT A H B S 15
T AEEREEZZT
TZERZE—F+ZR
=t+—HIEFERFEEIE

IR T &
2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) #i1&5a AN, Cmid)

— 50 basis points higher — FF50{EE 2, (1,793) (1,127)
— 50 basis points lower — T8k 50 {8 &2, 1,793 1,127

3.1.2Credit risk
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group'’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and
other receivables and bank deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables amounted to
HK$85,383,000 (2021: HK$47,111,000).

31218
RZEZ=ZFR-ZZT=_—F+=
A=+—8 ' A*5£BNEREE
[R5 B 5 K EL At FE W3R8 e 8R
T1FRK °

BE_T-_—_F+=-A=+—H
IEFE - NEBEERE S REAM
JE 15 5K TB R {8 4% 8 85,383,000 78
TL(Z T = — 4 : 47,111,000
TT) e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

162

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applied the simplified approach as
permitted under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 — Financial Instruments to measure
expected credit losses which used a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables,
grouped by shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. Expected credit losses are
determined based on historical default rates and
also incorporate forward looking information.
The Group identifies GDP growth rate, fixed
assets investment growth rate and producer
price index as the key economic variables
impacting the expected credit losses. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance
provision was determined as follows.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivable with
amounts that are individually subject to
separate assessment for provision are analysed
as follows:

HEEREERSMTAE @)

B R & ()
3.1.21=EmE: (&)

BB E
EEERBAEBSM B RE LR
F — M TAATNBLS
EETEREEEEE - HERM
BE S REWHIBR 2 ETEAIE IR
B REZEERREHLE
A4 - EHEEBEDLE
RBEENORETE - TEEAIE
MER o AEBE K GDPIG R X -
BEEERBEHRREEEYE
BT A EEHEEBED
FELESE - RZT__FK
T —F+ZA=+—8 " #
RET R EEBENT -

R-—ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
BB EWFAEE B IEME R
BEDT

2022 2021

—E-= —T-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

Lifetime expected credit loss rate FHIFEEEEBEE 100% =
Gross carrying amount WBEREE 23,195 -
Loss allowance B 1E R 23,195 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 HM¥REMREEREMIAE@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥REKRREEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21ERk (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B EINFE ()
As at 31 December 2022, trade receivable that RZEBE-_—_F+—_HA=+—8 "
are subject to provision for bad debts on the JEWBR AL B AERHENE
grouping basis are analysed as follows: BEBIT ¢
Less than 6 months More than
6months  -1year 1-2years 2-3years  3years
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
AHOR AHAER BAN-£ AYRE BUEE
mg ANERA -5 EWE BZ% =F FH)
As at 31 December 2022 H=ZE==f
+=B=t-H
Expected loss rate BEHEEX 1.4% 6.8% 9.3%  19.3%  81.1%  100.0% -
Gross carrying amount EmafE 1,478,821 301,952 328,499 102,276 6,825 3,882 2,222,255
Loss allowance EERE 20,825 20,669 30,505 19,744 5,535 3,882 101,160
As at 31 December 2021 RW=F=-%
+=B=t-H
Expected oss rate EHEEX 1.0% 5.2% 10.9% 15.8% 17.7% 50.9% -
Gross carrying amount Emaf 1,666,167 183,026 79,604 58,141 23,766 2413 2,013,117
Loss allowance EEAE 17479 9,585 8,705 9,169 4217 1,228 50,383
= —gaR | grsshregsras 163
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 BEEMEERSBMIAE@®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEREHE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 31.25ERR (&)
Notes receivables FEWEE
As at 31 December 2022, notes receivable that RZEZ=—F+=RA=+—8H"
are subject to provision for bad debts on the JEWE B AEE AERGHRAE
grouping basis are analysed as follows: BEBIT -

Less than 6 months
6 months  -1year 1-2years
Current pastdue pastdue past due Total
BHOR BEAER  AH-F
R AEA E—F EWE st

As at 31 December 2022 R=-B==%f

+=B=+-H
Expected loss rate TEHEER 1.2% 6.3% 9.6% 15.3% -
Gross carrying amount REAE 26,121 2,188 1,795 3,794 33,898
Loss allowance BiEkEE 315 138 172 582 1,207
Bank Deposits RITIFF
The credit risk on bank deposits are limited WTFRNEERRER  BA
since they are substantially deposited with PRC HBERBO TR BEEERTT
state-owned banks and other listed banks. As REM EWERTT o Fut - THER
such, no significant credit risk from bank TERBTEELAEAEER
deposits is anticipated. B o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 BEERMEENSAIA @)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREEHE)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 31218 R (&)
Bank Deposits (Continued) RITZ (B)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is EaEERBARE VKRR
represented by the carrying amount of each NEEEREENREE °

financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

REXHERNEELEEZRTH
CRHE - TREIR ===
FR-_FE-_—F+-_A=+—H
RISRITIE R AE &R

2022 2021

—E-=F T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

Counter party REHF FET FHEIT
Deposits with the state-owned banks A BHRITHF

of the PRC 5,817 131,725
Deposits with other listed banks R B E A iR TR

of the PRC T3 19,047 328,290

Deposits with other banks REAIRITH T 256 1,336

25,120 461,351

Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance of these counterparties.

———

=~ J—
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 BBEMEERSMIA@®)

3.1 HMREBREE#)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amounts due from related parties, land auction
deposits and receivables relating to disposal of
subsidiaries. The Group closely monitors these
other receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each
of those categories. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group's

3.1.21=EmE: (&)

Ht W TE
ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁEI%&%EW%%

HHIA - THERRE S R AR
ﬁEW% 7] B0 FE MR IR © NS
B & = ) B YRR 5 H At R R
A - DARECRIE HIR AR K A2
R BRERFE e A 100 1 S R 3K

7N 5% [ B P EL 4 PR M R TR A = (B
B REBREGEERRREES
BRI EEREN L - AEE
BHMEEERERENNRRE
B

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Basis for recognition of Basis for calculation
Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision  of interest revenue
Ll EEHERENER BARHEEFRRENEER FERAGEER
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected losses. Gross carrying amount
default and a strong capacity to Where the expected lifetime of an
meet contractual cash flow asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
EM&ER RPENRBREEARNEE AR 2EANBHEL - HRE LKAEE
BRZRNB LR HBEERE12EAZANEE
BB ENEERRF AR
& o
Stage two Receivables for which there is a Lifetime expected losses Gross carrying amount
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition
E&ER BEARARGERRBEEN FEHANESREX BHREE
ol 3eerE
Stage three Receivables for which there is Lifetime expected losses Amortised cost carrying amount
credit loss since initial recognition (net of credit allowance)
2 BEARACELEGEEENE FEHANEREXL BN AEREE (NREE
WA BEL)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provides
for loss allowance for other receivables as

3 HEEMEERSBMIAE@®

3.1 FERRREZEF)
3.1.21=ERE ()

Hth W TE ()
AEERBLRBARBEER
BEEIEREBRIAAREER
e EEHEANGEEBHEX
B NEEEEERBEKIA
HFE 248 K R SR ATIE 1 A0 R
ROBBURMEHL AR -

R—ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
7R £ B Y H At B U SR OB B B 1R B

follows: =P OENE

Estimated Carrying

gross Carrying amount (net

amount at Loss of impairment

Category default allowance provision)

EOMMEE REE

Bal HEREE EBEEE (MEREHERE)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Amount due from related parties Stage one 56,867 (1,219) 55,648
JE Ut B B 5 3R E—REER

Land auction and other deposits Stage one 32,972 (531) 32,441
THBERREE REMEZES E—PEER

Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 1,895 (42) 1,853

subsidiaries

BRALENBA RN EKZIE E—EE

Others Stage one 48,550 (910) 47,640
Hith E—HER

Others Stage three 10,711 (10,711) -
Hith E=FEER

150,995 (13,413) 137,582
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

168

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provides
for loss allowance for other receivables as

3 BEEMEERSBMIAE@®

3.1 FERERREZEFE)
3.1.21 Rk (&)

Hth W TE ()

R—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
7 £ B Y H At B UK SR OB B9 B 1R B

follows: (EPOENE

Carrying

Estimated gross amount (net

Carrying amount Loss  of impairment

Category at default allowance provision)

ERRhE REE

LWl BIREE BERE (MRRERE)

HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$000

FHET FET FET

Amount due from related parties Stage one 39,638 (826) 38,812
JE Ut BB 5 SRR E—EE

Land auction and other deposits Stage one 37,300 (650) 36,650
THBERREE REMEZS E—PEER

Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 2,071 (45) 2,026

subsidiaries

BRALENBA RN EKZIE E—EE

Others Stage one 44,892 (2,609) 42,283
Hith £—RR

Others Stage three 9,567 (9,567) -
Hith E=EER

133,468 (13,697) 119,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance
department of the Company. Group finance
monitors rolling forecast of the Group'’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank and other borrowings.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 HEEMEERSBMIAE@®

3.1 BBEREZE#E)
31.3nBEZEE

BEnETRR B AR E AR
el - SEMBEEHANEEN
MBESBIETREIER - A
BEREEE MRS RN ZEM

AEENBRABBERRITR
HEREESORFELERE)
1z R FF 1 o

TRAIMASENCREE I
DRBRER=ZZT_—_FEK=_F
——F+-A=1+—HZ&47%
HIH IEs T MR E @R E#®
IO - RNEBRNSEREH
REVIRIRERE ©

Total
Less than Between Between Over  contractual
1year 1and2years 2and 5 years 5years  cash flows
RS
PR-F -EERE  HERLE SREE REBE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FET FET

As at 31 December2022 ~ R=ZB==f

+=A=t-H

Trade and other payables ZHREMERFE 1,792,277 - - - 1792277
Amount due to related parties e BaEE 7 5B - 77,438 - - 77,438
Borrowings fEE 877,413 332,028 709,455 - 1,918,89%
Lease liabilities HERE 1,368 - - - 1,368
2,671,058 409,466 709,455 - 3,789,979

As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-F

+ZA=t-
Trade and other payables B REMENTE 1,772,008 - - - 1,772,008
Borrowings BE 875,426 425,862 829,367 237,363 2,368,018
Lease liabilities HERE 19,851 15,362 41,898 76,760 154,371
2,667,285 441,724 871,265 314123 4,294,397
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

170

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings, obligations under finance lease, lease

HEEREERSMTAE @)

32 EXmERER

AEBERBEAEEREARERE
REMRES  RBBRRIBH DRI
REBEARRBBREARNKA o

REFRFBREARR 1% ZN-
BRM FTRROBESHE  BITHK
R EEE LB ETR °

AEBENEERBLRERER - %
LEEDUF B BERINESEETE - F
BENBEE BEHNE HEaE
REAFBRETEERESRES

liabilities and interest payable less deposit for bank LESZEBEE
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2022 AREBR-_ZE__FR_ZBE_-_—F
and 2021 were as follows: +=A E—i— AMEEBFELENT :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Rn=2== R-T_—F
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Total borrowings BEE 1,771,090 2,179,278
Total lease liabilities fﬂlaié%# 1,401 119,221
Interest payable FEHF B 221 256
Less: Deposit for bank borrowings B IRITIEERE - (130,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BRekReE (25,120) (461,351)
Net debt FEIR 1,747,592 1,707,404
Total equity AR 2,918,444 3,361,297
Gearing ratio BEXRBEL 59.9% 50.8%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 HEEMEENRESMIE@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME

The table below analyses financial instruments TERMABEEEDTIRALEBEAR

carried at fair value by valuation method. The MemITHE - TRERNERDT

different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HREEXEEEERMSNR
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). B CRERARE)(F14) °

—  Inputs other than quoted prices included within — BRTENGABEHMEIN - Z
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BESEBBMNAERE AHME -
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or A AERE(BIMER) M5 (BDR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BER) BABE(FE2H)

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — BEREBBEVIEREUVHERMS
based on observable market data (that is, R A SE (BN 3E A Bk g
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). ABE)(F3R) -

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AEBMEAAREBEFTEBEEEEHET

of the Group are measured at fair value by Level 1 ANEHZERMEEFTRAZ 1RREIR

and Level 3. BARBEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- F24K F3IR FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FET FET
Unlisted equity instruments  JEEmERTE - - 41,002 41,002

At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-——F

+=A=+—H - - 41,002 41,002

Wealth management product 284 2 & 12,231 - - 12,231

Unlisted equity instruments ~ JE LMz TR - - 52,003 52,003

At 31 December 2021 R-EBE-—F

+=A=+—8H 12,231 - 52,003 64,234

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 during
the year.

FRAEE1VREF 2R 2 HOER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HEEREERSMTAE @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME(HF)

172

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The instrument
is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2022.

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 BEERMEENSAIA @)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAEEMLSTE)

Range of Relationship of

Fair value at Valuation  Unobservable  unobservable unobservable

Description 31 Dec-22 technique(s) inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R-ZE-—% TABEY

+=-A=+-H AAEE TABEY ABBED R

g HAREE EER % BAEE AHBNEE EBENEE

(HK$'000)
(F#7)

Equity instruments 28,194 Income approach Long-term 0%  The higher the Long-term
ERIHR WA growth rate growth rate, the higher
REERE the fair value

REEREYS -

AREEER
Discount rate 8.48%~894%  The higher the discount
RE rate, the lower the
fair value

FHEgS
AREEBIE
12,808 Asset-hased N/A N/A N/A

approach TER NER NEA

BEEME
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174

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(@) Impairment of trade receivables
For trade receivables with remarkably different
credit risk characteristics and occurrence of
credit impairment, the Group measured the
expected credit loss individually.

For trade receivables without occurrence of
credit impairment or the expected credit loss
cannot be estimated for an individual financial
asset at a reasonable cost, the Group grouped
trade receivables in accordance with credit risk
characteristics and measured the expected
credit loss based on groups. This assessment is
based on the credit history of its customers and
other debtors and the current market condition
as well as forward looking estimates such as
macroeconomic data at the end of reporting
period, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management reassesses the provisions at each
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
Management has assessed whether any
impairment indicators of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets existed as at
the balance sheet date and has identified that
impairment indicators of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets existed for
certain subsidiaries with operations which are
loss making during the year. When the carrying
value of an asset or a group of assets exceeds
the recoverable amount (the higher of the net
amount of fair value less cost of disposal and
value-in-use (“VIU") calculation), it indicates that
an impairment has occurred. The net amount of
fair value less cost of disposal is determined by
reference to the agreed sales price or the
observable market price of similar assets in
arm’s length transactions, less incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the
disposal of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4 BEEIHEFRAE @)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)
(d) Fair value of financial instruments

4.1 EEEFHAE (&)

176

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation technigues. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

(d ZBITANAREE

VIR ERTSEENESRMIA
(Bl BHINR BETET ) AR
BEDABEESEAETE - A%
EREEHERETR A I
FERBERBEREHRNEE
TS ERIEERE

(e) Fair value of investment properties (e) REMEMENAALEE
The fair value of investment properties is HEEFHENRAEBETFA
determined by using valuation technique. Such HEFEEE - ZaHE IRER
assessment is made based on certain TSBABA [ 2= PR il f 7] ge B B R 4L
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties REEAEZENH THRFAEL -
and might materially differ from the actual PEL M  BEAEEETE
result. In making the judgement, reasonable BIEAREHBANIRETEBER
consideration has been given to the underlying MmyEL F B RER - ZEAETE
assumptions that are mainly based on market HA B T I8 M) B R TH B B L B R
condition existing at the reporting date. These TS E ©
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the
market.

(f)  Estimated useful lives and residual values () YERREHFEATEHRERHR
of property and equipment FIerEE

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group's
property and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE (PN
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-—_F gE_T-_—F
+=—HA=+—-—H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from sales of prefabricated R E s E AR S Al RS
construction units UL 1,080,961 1,322,633
Revenue from decoration and landscaping 3k B 2 & F & R AR 75 89 Y A
services 376,750 551,472
Revenue from granting licenses RE R T EREAME AR
L'ON 40,420 98,069
Revenue from consulting services R BB RRIE U A 35,770 79,020
Revenue from sales of prefabricated KRB SHETRRR AL RERE
construction equipments HIUA 26,013 12,697
Rental income AW A 13,748 21,335
1,573,662 2,085,226
notes: Btet -
(@) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (a) FHEHEBENKICEZ

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

TRENAHERAFFERECIBEFE
ENNEERNEBERENRTERNEAS
e

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-—F — T
+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Revenue recognised that was included inthe ~ REFBEEANEBEEHADN
contract liability balance at the beginning of BERERIA -
the year:
Sales of prefabricated unit construction TRRUR AL A A E
contracts =X 39,164 14,731
Sales of granting licenses contracts B MEAEBEESLD = 614
39,164 15,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

5

REVENUE (continued)
notes: (Continued)

(b) Unsatisfied sales contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations

5 YA
Btat - (&)

(b) KREAHEEH

TREIAHESHMEENRENEOE

resulting from sales contracts. f£e
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CHF —ET-—4F
+=A=+—H8 +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Sales of prefabricated construction TRRER A REENHESRD
units contracts 2,247,878 2,259,845
Sales of decoration and landscaping services — #&i & EMIRISHHE A4
contracts 384,781 502,372
Sales of granting licenses contracts HRRMERAEEESLD 81,060 67,880
2,713,719 2,830,097
6 Government grants 6 IXATFHHBL
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-ZE-—_F gE_T-—F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-~
ILEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Research and development subsidies It B AL 11,351 2,434
Industry support funds EXRBES - 25,997
Others B 5,579 9,229
16,930 37,660

1 78 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5

maRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME 7 HiwugA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-—_F gE_T-_—F
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
ILEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Financing component from a related party & & B8t 75 B9 @& 205 7,507 10,778
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRF B2 UA 2,039 5,398
Others Hith 2,653 1,460
12,199 17,636
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 8 Hiti(&#E) s — FEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-_—F gE_ZF-_—F
+=ZB=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE 1EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Gains on early termination of lease RARIEREA SRR
contracts 6,234 1,199
Overdue interests to suppliers SRR 2 BRI B (3,496) =
Provision for onerous contract EiEME LRE (3,371) (2,009)
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets #Z AR EBEF AEBZATRE
at fair value through profit or loss ENAREE(SE) WS (6,860) 3,217
Gains on disposal of equipments HE R ER W (756) 5,449
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment REMEHENAAEE
properties (B8E), Wz (423) 29
Net exchange gains/(losses) bE W s (E518) F 58 431 (1,148)
Others HAh, (1,198) 1,748
(9.439) 8,485
T g% | wxgsngEEsKEas 179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

9

180

wZI'\

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as

follows:

9 EHE

JEI A HIRX

WanT :

FX BREREENA  HERDHAX RITK
)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-ZS-—_F gE_T-_—F
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H
ILFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials and consumables used ERARME KRB 589,817 774,617
Changes in inventories of finished goods, &M * FRE M RERD
goods in transit and work in progress GFEEH) 23,484 (68,973)
Subcontracting charges in relation to ER 4 N B AR AR TS AR RE AV SN
decoration and landscaping services == 306,494 436,133
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) BIRMAZ (Mt @) 244,060 280,844
Labour outsourcing BN 68,179 84,589
Depreciation e 119,193 108,690
Amortisation of right-of-use assets AL EREHE 28,065 35,501
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E R 333 451
Short-term leases and low-value leases EHHERMEEEEERS
expenses 2,379 3,450
Impairment of property plant and VI~ R KRR E
equipment 6,005
Transportation B ER 65,041 76,193
Land use tax and value-added tax TR AR I ER N E
surcharges 25,707 23,403
Utilities NEEEBH 19,020 16,714
Legal and professional fees FREREEER 18,302 16,749
Entertainment and travelling expenses BEkEIRER 8,716 8,473
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN <
— audit services — ZER 3,492 2,236
— non-audit services — BRI 36 =
Bank charges |ITUE 1,726 2,323
Office expenses WAERT 1,536 1,377
Registration expenses BB 295 223
Provision for inventories impairment FERERE 135 1,984
Others Hfb 51,403 39,440
Total of cost of sales, selling and distribution $5& MK « $5E Ko 85
expenses and administrative expenses LARATE A 4258 1,583,418 1,844,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 BHEEESHRMXZ @)
notes: Btat -
(@) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (a) EBIFIFAX(BRESRESTBRASHS)
chief executive’s emoluments)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z=-—fF HEZZ-_—F
+=—A=+—8” +=A=+—H
ILFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages and salaries ITERY® 219,658 254,770
Share-based compensation PARRAD AETR & B & 8,382 11,581
Pensions BIRE 6,566 6,504
Other welfare benefit expenses Hib @A 2R 9,454 7,989
Charged to statement of profit or loss AT AR B R HE A2 EREERA
and other comprehensive income 244,060 280,844

(b)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 include three (year
ended 31 December 2021: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 11. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022 of the
remaining two (year ended 31 December 2021: two) highest paid
employees (including the one senior management) are as

(b) EEBEHFHMAL
HE_T__F+_A=1+—HILFE K&
ERissadiiAtd  2E=2#HE2=Z
&+ ZA=1+-—HLEFE: =R)EE"
BENMEE R T2 DT RER
HE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HIFE  H#
MEHEHEZE_—F+t_RA=T—HIFE:
ME) MR MES (BE—2aREEA

follows: B)MHMFBET ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z=-—fF HE-T=——F
+=H=+-—AH +=-—A=+—AH
LHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

Salaries and other short-term FekEMEHEERT
employee benefits 1,688 3,124
Contribution to pension scheme BIRESFEIME K 72 72
Share-based compensation PARR 15 BERER B & 81 296
1,841 3,492
—z-—Fa%| wxasizsEeseas 181
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

n'.R

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 IHE

M - ()

gk ol A )

notes: (Continued)

AERREHMAL (A
HEH#fpMA(BE_T-_—F+-_A=+t—H1

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b)

The remuneration to the remaining two (year ended 31
December 2021: two) highest paid employees (including the one
senior management) fell within the following emolument band:

FE : MR &S
AB)RFIE T8 E

SHHES (BE—2mRER

Number of individuals

AB

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BE-_Z—_—f% HE_T——F

+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—H~H

LEE IEFE

Nil to HK$500,000 £ 500,000 7T 0 0
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,000% 7T 1,000,000 7T 2 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 7T Z 1,500,000 8 7T 0 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T, 2 2,000,000 78 7T 0 1

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BEERA

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BE-ZT-—F BHE_T_—F

+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H

IEFEE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Interest expenses on borrowings BEMERAX 94,392 97,929
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBGENRERX 4,046 4,648
Less: Interest capitalised W BAMEFE (22,437) (45,665)
76,001 56,912
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 11 EEEFIRE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERERESTHRAENME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREERESTHAENNSEHT
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive T e FE&RRITERABHABARR A
who is not a director of the Company. A
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of services METEARARKENB AR EEREM
provided by the director, whether for the Company or RSB ER S ¢

its subsidiaries:

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE-_E-—_F+=-B=+—HIF
=38
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension compensation Total
NRBA
Name i e e &S Bfre  EENHE CEl

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TEn TEn FEn FEn FEx FEn

Executive Directors HTES

Liu Weixing (Chairman) UBE(ZE) 2,220 - - 18 1,120 3,358

Guo Weigiang P () 1,318 250 - - 565 2133
(Chief executive officer)

Wang ling IF 1,710 - - - 215 1,925

Non-Executive Directors FUTES

W Walls T 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun T 60 - - - - 60
Guo Jianfeng Eijesrs 58 - - - - 58

Independent Non-Executive Biu&TES

Directors
Lee Chi Ming 358 240 - - - - 240
Jiang Hongging ZEE 240 - - - - 240
Ma Lishan Syl 240 - - - - 240

6,146 250 = 18 1,900 8314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B B SRR I AE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 11 E=ZEFREZS @)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERERSTHRAENMS (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BT -_—F+_-_HA=1+—HIt%F
E
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension  compensation Total
IRHE
Name % ik e FRS fhe  ERO#S fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL AL AL AL FET
Executive Directors b Ky
Liu Weixing (Chairman) UBE(ZE) 2,000 - - 18 2268 4286
GUo Weigiang D (HER) 800 2058 - - 1,082 3,940
(Chief executive officer)
Wang ling I# 1,567 - - - 0?2 1979
Non-Executive Directors ~ J&I{TES
Wu Wallis T 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun Tk 60 - - - - 60
Independent Non-Executive Buk&HTES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming 58 20 - - - - 20
Jiang Hongaing e 20 - - - - 20
Ma Lishan vl 20 - - - - 240
5,207 2,08 - 18 3762 11,045
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
There is no retirement benefits paid by the Company.

Directors’ termination benefits
There is no directors’ termination benefits paid by the
Company.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

11 EEREAREX @)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

B FERIE

ESRKERN
AR B ST RIRARF o

ESBRBERN
ARBA T EERERARH o

MEHESREMROE=ZLFRYN
RE
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HL®HF
B BMEREREERBEMNE=FE
HRECZEZ—F:8E) -

FHANES ESNZEFZEEAR
HEERASEANENR  EEX
REMRZNER

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B HBENES EFNIZEGEE
LMAEERAI T ANER  EEX
REMZFH(ZT——4F : )

EERXS ZHIASHANERE
#

RELBIFRERESRHE  BTIEE
ERIBEARBTLMARREETRE
FHEEARG (TRERXER) A
ARARXBAEBNEARS -~ TH

BH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The emoluments of the directors are decided by the Board
of Directors, having regard to the Group's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics
as well as the recommendations of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

11 EEREMRES @)

EEHEHEFTELERAKTHENRER
B EARBRAE LTI 5 BIE A K
EXSFMEEeNEBERRETE -

RABEEHENRARF DL EAREE R
BRABANFRAREBE_T__FR-_F
——Ft A=t HLEFERAEREFE
MEBRS  RHERENTHEBEEIFNERE
B o

12 FrfEHRAX

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-—ZE_—F H=—_ZT——%F
+=H=+—8 +=—BA=+—H

LFE LEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEITL
Current income tax IREFTISHL
— PRC corporate income tax — R B FEATS
— Current tax on profits for the year — BLE R A A BV ERTE I8 11,575 59,749
— Adjustments for current tax of prior — AU HABNEARA IE A B
periods (541) 10,209
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBFIER = -
11,034 69,958
Deferred income tax EREFTIS R (27,168) (20,902)
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMEHAXEE (16,134) 49,056
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies

within the Group as follows:

12 FREHAYX @)

ANER BB RR P15 250 Bk A 6 P 15 25 2458 AR A
SEET ARMERRKERMHTRAER
BEREBAMTR  FEHIWT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-_—F BE_Z—_—%F
+=B=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FE&T
(Loss)/profit before income tax B TS RLAT (B518), & 7 (169,709) 188,033
Income tax calculated at respective LAE B EE MR ER TSN
statutory rates (41,208) 49,288
Preferential income tax rate BEMEHE 19,906 (2,932)
Previously unrecognised tax losses BAERERMIBEERANEE
recognised in current year as deferred REELEHIBEE
tax assets (1,547) (129)
Non-deductible expenses AT AR SZ 2,570 1,167
Non-taxable income BAERRBA (313) (9,397)
Research and development expenditure BN EE S
additional deduction (10,405) (12,680)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax @1 RFER T 8 E 18
losses (26) (563)
Tax losses and temporary differences not  KER AELEFIEE EMNFIE
recognised as deferred tax assets EERER M ERE 15,430 14,093
Prior year's tax filing differences BEFERMER (541) 10,209
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMSHASL B (16,134) 49,056
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2021: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law”), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
established in mainland China is 25%, while certain
subsidiaries are applicable to the preferential tax rate of
15%, those subsidiaries were required to apply for renewal
every three years from first year of approval.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside PRC for earnings generated beginning 1 January
2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1
January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax. A
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Company’s mainland China
subsidiaries did not have plan for distributing dividend to
the Company in the foreseeable future, thus no such
withholding tax was accrued for the year ended 31
December 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

12 FREHAX @)

ERAFNEH

HE - Z- —F+-A=+—HIFEKER
BEEGTERTEFERANEEFEHRE
RE165%(BE-_T-_—F+_A=+—
BIEFE : 16.5%) °

H Bl f TS B
RIBPHECEMRETE(EEREBED
ANER B A B b RS2 RO BB R B R b
KSR ER25% - hETHBRRER
15% 2 BEBRE - QEAE —F’  ZFW
BRRAFEG=FHBFEH R -

TEMAETEAREERARRFBEE RS
RZZEZN\F—A—BRABEENENME
PR BRSNS B 1 IR A R AT 0 IR B AR
B 10%TEMH - MR =ZEZNF—HA—H
RIEE R D IR B A ER R AEETEN
o IRIBPBIEFENREHELHE - HE
B A RREBRI - BT A RIER
S%TFEHFLE o FEA] R HIARIK - AR FHH
B b Bt &8 A A I AT E M AN A B 9 R AR
B HWEEZT-_—_F+-A=+—HIF
EiEatk FENH(BE_ZE - —F
+—A=+—HLEFE:E)-

13 DIVIDEND 13 R
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-—F BE_ZT_—F
+=ZA=+—-8B +t-A=+—H
LEFE IEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Proposed no final dividend (2021: HK$0.01  EZETNIRZEREAR S
per ordinary share) (ZE=—F : gREBER
0.01%7T) = 31,024
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In addition, no interim dividend has been declared during
the year (2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@

(b)

Basic

Basic (losses)/earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the consolidated earnings of the
Group attributable to owners of the Company by the

14 BREF

(@ EXF
FEEREARN(EE) BFITBEAR
REVHEE AR A S B4R E B FIBR A
FABRITEBRNMEFLHHGE

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BH o
during the year.
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-ZE_—F H=—_ZT——%F
+=H=+—8B +=—A=+—H

LFE IEFE

Consolidated (losses)/earnings RABEE AFTILERE

attributable to owners of the Company (B#B|),BF(F%5rT)

(HK$000) (148,150) 132,375
Weighted average number of ordinary BT R e N

shares in issue (‘000) EHE(FAR) 3,102,400 2,837,743
Basic (losses)/earnings per share BREXR(EBE), BT

(HK cents) CBMW) (4.78) 4.66
Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the calculation of diluted
earnings per share excluded the share options
granted to directors, senior management and other
employees on 30 November 2020, as their inclusion
would have been anti-dilutive. Therefore, diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are equal to respective basic earnings
per share.

BREERN B BABFEITENY
BRH T EBABEATE BT S
SBERRDELBMEE RBEZ
T FRIE—F+ZRAR=+—
HIEFE SRETRNNGETE
FRZZEZTF+—A=THETE
£ SREEEREMESNERE
AAMAZEERESAEREFER
fEeAlt BEZZ__FR=F
T+ A=+—HLEFENER
HERMNENS B 2 BRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

190

15 Y% - BERRE

Plant under
development
for
prefabricated
Computer Motor  Furniture & Leasehold  construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures  Equipment  improvements husiness Total
BHEREES
BEEHN
B E By hE  GHRRE Ey] HEEH EERR 3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEn F&7 Fin 71 FiEx 71 FEx 71
At 1 January 2022 R-8--£-5-H
Cost A 1,423,364 8,046 26,050 64,425 521,763 81,880 1,165,249 3,290,717
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (134,905) (4,743) (10,106) (25,014) (131,613) (32,388) - (339,269)
Net book amount FEAE 1,288,459 3303 15,944 3941 390,150 48,992 1,165,249 2,951,508
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-S-CE
TZRZT-BLEE
Qpening net book amount ENEERE 1,288,459 3303 15,944 39411 390,150 48992 1165249 2,951,508
Addtions HE 80,600 202 1,485 6,011 2,798 11815 22791 340,702
Transfers upon completion TSR 96,674 - - - 27,616 - (114,290) -
Disposals i3 - (157) (381) (1121) (5,703) (6,629) - (13,991)
Depreciation charge TEER (47,483) (1,149) (5,185) (10,402) (53,925) (1,089) - (119,193)
Impairment oss HEEE (5,185) - - - (820) - - (6,005)
Currency ranslation cifferences NEREER (113,559) (185) (1,194) (3112 (32,857) (3,879 (103,900) (258,686)
Closing net book amount FXEEFE 1,289,546 2014 10,669 30,787 352,259 9210 1159850 2,894,335
At 31 December 2022 WBZZETA=t-A
Cost A 1,463,627 7452 24,722 61974 522,855 79,685 1,159,850 3,320,165
Accumulated depreciation and ZMERRESS
mpaiment loss (174,081) (5,438) (14,053) (31187) (170,596) (30475) s (425,830)
Net book amount FEAE 1,289,546 2014 10,669 30,781 352,259 49.210 1,159,850 2,894,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 V£ - BERZE @)

(Continued)
Plant under
(evelopment
for
prefabricated
Computer Motor — Fumiture & Leasehold ~ construction
Buldings equipment venicles fixtures Equipment  improvements business Total
RRBERER
BEEHH
B¥ B g GLRRE R HEXE ERER &3
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TR T AT TA7 AT TA7 AT FAT
At 1 January 2021 R=%=-%£-A-A
Cost HA 1,194,759 6,619 1246 4611 400960 29055 523622 2212102
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE %2,389) (3,59) (5,686) (15953) 93939) (223 - (233790)
Net book amount FEAE 1,102,374 3085 6730 28658 307,025 6818 52362 1978312
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-s--F
TIA=T-ALEE
Opening net book amount FEAFE 1,102,374 3085 6,730 2,658 307,025 6818 52362 1978312
Addtions AE 3910 1314 1307 23,609 13203 51992 922,060 1,029,699
Transfers upon completion THRER 196677 - - - 118,501 - (305,178) -
Disposals e = (364) = 4,938) (13,725) = - (19,027)
Depreciation charge ERR (39,209 (133 4.189) (8923 (45,028 (10,018) - (108,690)
Currency translation differences NEREZE 3707 91 3 1,005 10,134 20 U785 7120
(Closing net book amount EXEEFE 1,288,459 3303 15944 D 390,150 48992 1,165,249 2951508
At 31 December 2021 RoB=-F+2f=t-H
Cost i 1423364 8046 26,050 04425 521,763 81,880 1,165,209 320,111
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (134,905) (4743 (10,106) (25,014) (131613) (32.889) = (339,269)
Net book amount SETE 1,288,459 3303 15944 D 390,150 48992 1,165,249 2951508
—E-—FaR | wrssnpxeesras 191
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

15

192

AR IR RMIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$119.2
million (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$108.7 million)
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2022, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$395.8 million (31 December
2021: HK$400.8 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group'’s borrowings HK$339.5 million (31 December 2021:
HK$210.4 million). Among the collateral, property ownership
certificate of the Group's building with a net book value
HK$237.1 million (31 December 2021: HK$281.1 million) is
under China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. These buildings
were pledged as collateral for two bank borrowings of
HK$145.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$171.2 million)
which was secured by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

Interest expenses of HK$22.4 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2022 (year ended
31 December 2021: HK$45.7 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's certain
subsidiaries with operations were loss making during the
year. Management determines each individual subsidiary
as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and carried
out impairment assessment for the subsidiaries which have
indicator of impairment. The Group estimated the
recoverable amounts based on the higher of their fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions include revenue growth rates and
discount rates. The key assumptions used in the cash flow
projections are revenue growth rate and the discount rate.
The revenue growth rate ranges from 2.0% to 1,187.0%,
and the discount rate ranging from 12.2% to 16.2% is pre-
tax. As a result, the Group recorded a total impairment
provision charge of HK$6,005,000 against property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to the consolidated
income statement of the Group for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 FHEEE
This note provides information for leases where the Group HAEE BEMEA - BIAKGEGASIZEE
is a lessee. o
(@ Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBRRERFTERZEH
financial position
The statement of financial position shows the ARV RATBEBEHRE &5

following amounts relating to leases:

Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
L/ E
ERAEEE RHE LiERARE HE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—H—H 127,173 992,263 1,119,436
Disposals e (98,592) - (98,592)
Amortisation charged into profitor — # izt AIBzS

loss (13,329) (14,736) (28,065)
Amortisation capitalised to plant BHENMCEERERE

under development - (6,004) (6,004)
Currency translation differences INEEAT A RR (8,725) (83,259) (91,984)
Balance as at 31 December R-B--%+=A

2022 =t+— Bzt 6,527 888,264 894,791
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

n'.R

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

194

(@

16 FRHEEE @)

Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBRRARFPERZEEE(F)
financial position (Continued)
Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
EREEE & o i B A #ast
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHET FAEIT
As at 1 January 2021 R=-ZE-——%—H—H 45,399 945,618 991,017
Additions NE 124,304 40,091 164,395
Disposals meE (23,531) = (23,531)
Amortisation charged into profitor ~ #k#zt Al8%s
loss (21,282) (14,219) (35,501)
Amortisation capitalised to plant BHEERCEERERE
under development - (6,715) (6,715)
Currency translation differences INEESAT = R 2,283 27,488 29,771
Balance as at 31 December R-ZE-—%+=A
2021 =t+—B &% 127,173 992,263 1,119,436
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Lease liabilities 2022 2021
R-B-=-F RZIZT_—%
HEaE +=-—B=+—8B +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current D 1,401 13,749
Non-current FERED = 105,472
Total lease liabilities HEaEERE 1,401 119,221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Amounts recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

The statement of profit or loss and other

16 FHEEE @)

(b) REZRHMEZEKRBERTERZ

BREMkEMEARERITATERH

comprehensive income shows the following amounts BE45m:
relating to leases:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-Z_—fF H=—_ZT——F
+=H=+—8B +-—A=+—H

IEFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Amortisation charge of right-of-use FREESEHEER
assets
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BB MRS 13,329 21,282
— Land use right — s A 14,736 14,219
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEAGBRMAEMX 4,046 4,648
Short-term leases and low-value EEHEREEERERS
leases expenses 2,379 3,450

The Group’s leasing activities

The Group leases various property, plant and
equipment. Rental contracts are made for fixed
periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

As at 31 December 2022, right-of-use assets, with a
net book value of HK$369.6 million (31 December
2021: HK$433.8 million) were pledged as collateral for
the Group's borrowings of HK$1,536.1 million (31
December 2021: HK$1,532.8 million).

() ZAEEHEEH
AEEHESEYE  BE MEE -
HESNEIE10FHEE R AT
S o BRI (E B EHE LR -
W B EEBTR AR BRI -

R-E-_—F+_-_A=+—H" @
FEAIVOGAEABBT(ZTEZ—4F
+-_A=+—H:4338BEBT)H
FREEECEFEALREE,536.1
BEATERNERR(ZE=—F
+—A=+—H :1,5328@&BTT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

17

196

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17 REMBEHE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-_Z_—F #x_2—_—%
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H

IHEE IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Beginning balance FEEeR 18,591 18,298

Disposals = (265) (270)
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment REEFHENAAER

properties (E518), = (423) 29

Currency translation differences INEEHT AR (1,559) 534

Ending balance FRER 16,344 18,591

Investment properties held by the Group are all commercial
properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 by Graval Consulting Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The revaluation
gains or losses are included in ‘Other gains — net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value of
investment properties which was determined using income
approach by reference to the projected income, cash flow
or cost savings generated by the asset.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
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B I ERaR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The valuations were performed based on the income
approach (term and reversion method) or direct
comparison approach for those investment properties. The
following significant unobservable inputs for income
approach have been used:

17

fh{E# A BB R E

KREHEE @)

DNABENBE

ZEREMFEHETREBERAE(EHRE
R WER L BORETRE - XEHRKA
EERAATEATAIBRG AU

Relationship of

Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description ~ December 2022 technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R-B=Zf
+=ZA=t+-H FAER TUEHEHARE
R WAREE [“ERZE BABE FABERGABENEE HAABENBE
HK$°000
FET
Commercial 16,344 Income Term yield Term yield of 4.0% (2021: 4.0%),  The higher the term
properties (2021:18,591)  approach taking into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from comparable fair value
properties and adjustment to
effect the certainty of term
income secured and to be
received
Discountrate  The higher the discount
4.0-5.0% rate, the lower the fair
value
[EE2ES 16,344 WA TEH THNEZA (ZE=—F:  THkaExls -
(ZB——%F: 4.0%) + BEET R AT LB NABEBE
18,591) EEMBE KA R AR
B S KAV ES R E HR A
i O A
FHREL0-50% WHEXPS @ AAEEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to
increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate,
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31

17 IREMEME ®)
(HEHAREREA 2 EENEERE)
MR R EL NS RIS ERE R BT

RIBBEINERD10%  RZT - —_F K-
T —F+_A=1T—HNREEEHEDN

December 2022 and 2021 would have changed as follows: A LB A TES :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i e NZE-—F
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAEIT
Investment properties increase/decrease to & & MR EE I, B =
— 10 percent rental rate higher — 2N 10% 18,024 20,303
— 10 percent rental rate lower — 2R 10% 14,777 16,756
Investment properties increase/decrease to & & [ EHEE N, TR =
— 10 percent yield rate higher — Y ER I 50 10% 15,785 17,857
— 10 percent yield rate lower — W ER D 10% 17,016 19,203

The following rental income amounts relating to the
investment properties have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:

NTERREMEHENESWRABBEER
e Em A2 RS R R

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BE-T-—F BHE_T_—F

+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H

LHEFE IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Rental income HEBA 662 733
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 EREE

Computer software

B
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_E-_—_H+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYIRE A 4,346
Additions NE 694
Amortisation charge HIHE R (333)
Currency translation differences INEITE ERE (356)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFAE 4,351
At 31 December 2022 R=B-=—F+=-H=+—H
Cost %N 5,935
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (1,584)
Net book amount REDFE 4,351
Computer software
BBt
HK$'000
FHEIT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—H+-A=t+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYIRE A 4,567
Additions NE 103
Amortisation charge HHER (457)
Currency translation differences HNEE YT B = R 127
Closing net book amount FARREFE 4,346
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-—-%+=H=+—H
Cost B 5,726
Accumulated amortisation RETHH (1,380)
Net book amount REDFE 4,346
For the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation REBEE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE -

charges of intangible assets were HK$333,000 (For the year
ended 31 December 2021: HK$451,000).

ANEEEEEREHE M /53330008 7T

(BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BLEFE:

451,000 7T) ©
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n'.R jiﬁ*&%lxﬁ-‘;

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

19 IRENBEQT

31 December

R-EBE-—&F
+=BA=+—H

As at

31 December
2021
RZE=——F
F=H=+H—8
HK$'000

FET

Share of net assets
Less: Provision for impairment

FriGBEF#E
B ORERME

241,514

241,514

For the year

ended
31 December
2022
BE-—Z2=-_—
+=ZA= -I- =i
IEEE
HK$°000
FéET
At 1 January 2022 RZZEZ=F—H—H 241,514
Additions: NE
— Additional investments in associates — REEE D RIMEEINEE 9,896
Disposals: HE -
Share of net profit of associates iy NG 5%‘55?1?F|J 527
Elimination of transactions with associates % § BB < N\ A1 2 (22,344)
Net exchange gains/(losses) P& Wzt (B18) @%E (20,000)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 209,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 IREREZE DT #)
As at the 31 December 2022, the Company had indirect R-ZEBE-_—_F+-A=+—8 XEERT
interests in the following associates: 5| B 8 N B RS 2
Carrying amount
REE
Place of Asat 31 As at 31
incorporation Proportion of Issued  Principal December  December
Name and operation ~ ownership interest share capital ~ activities 2022 2021
R-E-ZF WIB=-%
HME LR t2A t2A
8 Ty FEEERLA BEIRA TEEE S Sqr=f
Held by the  Indirectly
Company held HK$000 HK$'000
BADTRE HERE TEn TEn
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology China - 49% HK$200,000,000  Construction 171,625 200,877
Company Limited* H 771.200,000,000 industrialisation
MIREERMEERAR BEER(
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent ~ China - 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction 12,262 4,962
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@)  HE AR 100,000,0007C industrialisation
EEEFEREERFBRAAQ BEEZEY
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming China = 30% RMB100,000,000  Construction 7,456 14,866
Technology Construction Limitedx = ARE100,000000  industrialisation
EEHRTRERNAAER A BEER(
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture - China = 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction 6,815 7470
Technology Limited* (3) i ARR100,000000  industrialisation
LR BENRERAT @) BEEEY
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology China = 40% RMB15,000,000  Construction 6,793 6,318
Company Limited* (a) i AR#15000000c  industrialisation
BEBEERRENRARRAQ BEEE
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent China = 20% RMB50,000,000  Construction 2,361 2,580
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@) AR#50,000,0007 industrialisation
AEEREENRERAR ) BEEEY
Shangaiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent China - 10% RMB100,000,000  Construction 2,028 2,215
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@) = ARE100,000000  industrialisation
AESREREENHERAT () BEEE
Henan Dongzhu Drawin Ecological China = 49% RMB10,000,000  Construction 253 833
Environment Protection Limited* (a) & AR#10,000,0007T industrialisation
MHRREREERRERDA() BEERY
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin China - 49% RMB20,420,000  Construction - 893
Technology Company Limited* (a) = ARE20420000  industrialisation
HERRERMEERELAT Q) BEEEI
*  For identification purpose only
Note: Hiat
(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group invested in (@ HBEZZ-_—_F+-A=1+—HLFE *%

certain associates. The total addition of investments in
associates amounted to approximately HK$9,896,000.

The financial year end dates of the above associates are

coterminous with that of the Group.

N8P/

PR FEARAER -

EiRER THE QA - B INAREERRIRE
& 459,896,000 7T

AP RFEEREBREEDN
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

202

(i)

(i)

19 BRENRBZE QT (@)

Commitments in respect of associates (i) HBEEBEBELQTRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-ZB-—F RZZT——%F
+=—H=+—8B +-—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
commitments to pay up the subscription Sz {28 &R 7 FdE
capital 43,190 57,583
Summarised financial information for an (i) HEQARAMEERBE

associate

The tables below provide summarised financial
information for the associate that is material to the
Group. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of
Zhejiang Anju Drawin and not the Group's share of
those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the Group when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policy.
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Summarised financial information for an
associate (Continued)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin

The Group recognised share of losses of associates
of HK$12,725,000 from Zhejiang Anju Drawin using
the equity method for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Losses of HK$5,801,000).

(ii)

19 RENVBIENE (@)

BEQRMBERHRE (&)

WILEER

BE_Z_—_F+-_A=+—HL*F
B AEERIREMILEER
REZEANRNEGHREAAEE
512,725,000 0 (ZE=—F : E#E

5,801,000 7T) °

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N-ZE-—— R-ZE——
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Summarised statement of financial Bt &R RPE
position
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEBIEE 8,854 19,950
Other current assets HEimEE=E 294,386 299,010
Total current assets MENEEBRE 303,240 318,960
Non-current assets IEmBEE 264,231 314,965
Current liabilities mEaE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade TREBE(TRIEES
payables) FERTFRIE) 246,286 220,156
Other current liabilities HEtmEaE 149,752 198,463
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 396,038 418,619
Non-current liabilities IERBasE 3,557 3,972
Net assets EEFRE 167,876 211,334
Group's share in % AEBFLDE(EDLL) 49% 49%
Group’s share in HK$ REB LD EE (BT) 82,259 103,554
Goodwill and adjustments EEE R 89,366 97,323
Carrying amount SREE 171,625 200,877

———
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

204

(i) Summarised financial information for an

associate (Continued)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin (Continued)

(ii)

19 BRENRBZE QT (@)

BEQRMBERHRE (&)

WIZEER ()
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-S-_—F BE-T-—F
t=A=+t-8 +=A=+-~

IEFE IEFE

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FEr

Revenue WA 466,831 458,513
Loss before income tax FREF1STATEE (24,231) (13,789)
Income tax expenses Frisfif X - (1,320)
Other comprehensive income HEme2mElas - -
Total comprehensive Losses FHBEBRE (24,231) (15,109)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 RENVBIENE (@)

(i)

Individually immaterial associates (i) {ERISEE KREE AT
In addition to the interests in a associate disclosed M FNHEENR —EEBE AR RS
above, the Group also has interests in a number of G AN B IR 1R Bl JE B KB A A
individually immaterial associates that are accounted REEREZS  WELFREREARS o
for using the equity method.
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-ZZTE-_—F R=ZT—_—F
+=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Aggregate carrying amount of &R FEE AR = A AR
individually immaterial associates RN 37,968 40,637
Aggregate amounts of the group’s REEEGATEIER
share of: BMEHE
Losses from continuing operations REFELEFEFHEER (5,534) (6,733)
Post-tax profit or loss from R E AR IR TS HIBR T
discontinued operations &5 F s B8 = =
Other comprehensive income H A2 ES - -
Total comprehensive losses ZHEIBERE (5,534) (6,733)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

20

206

INVENTORIES 20 &8
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i et R —%F
+=—A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R A7 # 63,605 107,897
Finished goods BURK fh 62,861 79,121
Goods in transit FrEm 2,986 12,358
Low value articles EESEm 13 33
Work in progress TE&m 16,933 14,785
Inventory provision GFERE (3,218) (2,770)
143,180 211,424
Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted BiEEZ5E FENTER3218000% T
to HK$3,218,000 (2021: HK$2,770,000). These were (ZZ——% :2770,000/87C) o ZERER

recognised as an expense for the year ended 31 December
2022 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year

ended 31 December 2022 amounted to HK$613,301 (2021:
HK$705,644,000). These were included in cost of sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21 ESZRHMEWRIERFANRE

PREPAYMENTS
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-—'=-= RZE——4F
+=A=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Trade receivables — third parties BORWFHIE —%=5 1,390,552 1,217,674
Trade receivables — related parties H 5 R GRIE — B 854,898 795,443
Amounts due from related parties JE U BE B 5 SRR 56,867 39,638
Notes receivable FE U E % 33,898 31,118
Prepayments — third parties BANHRIE—%= 28,564 20,999
Prepayments — related parties TR RIE — BN 281 1,570
Land auction deposits THEER IR E S 18,090 20,008
Value-added tax recoverable A (B R 15,379 119,873
Deposits b 14,882 17,292
Receivables relating to disposal of BT ENB AR ERGIE
subsidiaries 1,895 2,071
Government grants receivable FEUW B AT #E B 280 2,630
Others Hfth 52,029 34,700
2,467,615 2,303,016
Less: Provision for impairment of trade and & : & 5 K& H fth fE Y 78
other receivables (note (a)) BB (7 @) (138,973) (64,080)
2,328,642 2,238,936
note: Btet -
(@  As at 31 December 2022, such balance included provision for (@ RKR-ZT_=—F+-—A=1+—8 Z&HeEE

impairment of trade and notes receivables of HK$125,562,000
and provision for impairment of other receivables of
HK$13,413,000 (31 December 2021: HK$50,383,000 and

HK$13,697,000, respectively).

5 & WK TE I 8 IR 32 #% 125,562,000 78 7T A
B 18 18 % EL At 8 LR T8 13,413,000 78 7T YR (E
BE( T2 =_—F+=-_A=+—H

C DR

50,383,000 7% 7T & 13,697,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'.R jiﬁ*&%lxﬁ-‘;

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and notes receivables as at the end

BEZREMBUWRERFEMNRE
(#)

B 5 RYGIARERRENEE R A ER

of the reporting period, from the date when they were T HENEBOTOT
recognised, is as follows:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Rn=2== R_T_—F
+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Less than 1 year DR—F 2,173,283 1,943,446
110 2 years —EMF 74,719 74,610
Over 2 years BB 31,346 26,179
2,279,348 2,044,235

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the
following currencies:

RZEBE—_—_FR_F-_—F+_A=+—H
Frm e = B R A bt =58 5l fE W ZoE
RERTE(E ©

W_E::E&_v_—i-i— A=1—
B REMBYRIEN A EBERER
Eﬁ*ﬁ%

REEE R E 5 K H At UK IR A S BN 3008
HRREEA T HIERHE -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-ZBZZF RZZ—_—%F
+=A=+-H +=A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 4,080 10,907
RMB AR#E 2,324,562 2,228,029
2,328,642 2,238,936

The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I ERaR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

22 MEQRINER

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at (@ TRAR-Z-_—_F#+-A=+—8H
31 December 2022: MNEZHEBARBE :
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREREE REERE FERERER
HRAIREELS EERLA  WERERHA HEERLA
£ DREARRER  FEEH BRITRARE (BAk) (BAL) (BAt)
% % %
Benelux Property Development China, limited liability  Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
(Shanghai) Limitec*"® company development 5,000,000% 7
EREXER(LG) BRAR mE - BRAR ES
South East (Shandong) Property Ching, limited liability  Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% -
Limited'@ company development ARE
RB(LR)EXBRAR mE - BRAR ES 15,000,000 7T
Perfect Gold Investments Limited HongKong, limited ~ Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% =
SRRERRAT liability company & 2K 28T
&5 ARAT
Shangheng Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% =
HEARAH company RERR (E
EBRRES BR
N
Commit Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
NEREERAT] liability company &K BT
B8 ARAT
Giant Achiever Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
ElERARAA liability company &K BT
B8 ARAT
Fame Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
EEREERAR liability company &R 181

&% ARLA

———

=~ J—

Frg | grasnressras 209
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e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

210

(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

22 MIBATINER @)

@ TRAR—ZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
NESHBARRBE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FEREESE
ARMAIRESLE EERLA  WERRHA  HEERLA
£ NREARRER  IEEEK BRAREKFE (BAk) (BAk) (B4
% % %
Noble Walk Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100% 100% -
WITERAR company RERR %7
ZERIES ER
G
Noble Tide Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding N 100% 100% -
HEERAT] company RERR 1%L
ZERNES ER
A
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
MREEBRAE liability company ~ RER 10000%7
&5 ARAA
Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
EREERRAR liabiity company K &ER 10,000357C
&8 ARAA
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Investment Limited** company industrialisation 1,530,000,0007% 1T
SREENBRRERRAR" ME - BRAR REEX
Shenzhen Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
MIERBENRERAA® ME - BRAR REEX
Lux Property Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Technology (Shanghai) Limited*® company industrialisation 200,000,000/
FERENR (LB BRAR® ME - BRAR REEX
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

@)

=
=a

B I ERaR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

22 B ATIMNER @)

@ TRAERZ-Z—-_Z

F+—-A=+—8H

MEBMBARRE : (B)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of ~ Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE ARERE FEREERE
HMALR &S LRRLA  WEERLH  WEERLA
£ DREABRER  FTEE BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAL)
% % %
Nanjing Drawin Inteligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 97% 3%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
(note (j) mE - ARAR BEEEL
ARERBENRARARC
(k)
Hengyang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 100,000,00077C
HEEREENHERAR® mEl - BRAR BEEZY
Foshan Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 100,000,00077C
RLERBENRER AR mEl - BRAR BEEZY
Hefei Drawin Intelligent Manufacture - China, limited liability ~ Construction HKD95,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 95,000,000/ 7
AREREENRERAR® mEl - BRAR BEEZY
Changsha Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD?1,108,000,000 = 51% 4%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ~1,108,000,000 7
(note (j) mEl - BRAR BEEZY
RYERBENBBRARC
(W)
Kunshan Drawin Intelligence Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation A #%50,000,0007C
EERBERERBBRAT BB ARAA BEER(
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n'.R

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

212

22 MIBATINER @)

(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZ-ZZE-_—_F+-A=+—H
31 December 2022: (Continued) MEEMBAREZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE AEERE FERERER
AMHIRE S EERILA  WERRUA HEERLA
£ DREARRER  FEEH BEL e (BAL) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD23,650,000 = 100% =
Intelligent Technology Umited*@ company industrialisation 23,650,007
EREEEENRARAR mE - BRAA REEX
Huizhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
EMNERBENRBRRR® mE - ARAR REEX 60,000,0007
Huidong Drawin Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction RMBA40,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
BREREENRARAR® HE - BRAR BEEE 40,000,000
Yuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  Chin, limited liability - Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*2 company industrialisation ARE
FRERBENMBERATC mE - ARAR BEEEL 100,000,000 7T
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB137,250,000 = 51% 49%
Intelligent Manufacture company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limited*2 (note ()~ I+ ARAF BEEEL 137,250,007
FEMBMERBENEARAR®
(it ()
Xiangtan Drawin Intelligent Chin, limited liablity ~ Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
HEERBERBARAR® ME - ARAH BEEZY 70,000,0007C
Jiaozuo Drawin Intelligent Chin, limited liablity ~ Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
EFERBENRBRAR® ME - ARAH BEEZY 70,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

22 B ATIMNER @)

(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TFTRAR-ZE_—_F+-—A=+—H
31 December 2022: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERRE
AMEIRESEL S LRRWA WEERLH  WEERLA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (Bat)
% % %
Huai'an Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limitec*® HEl - BRAA BEEZY 70,000,000
EREREENHERAR®
Chongaing Shi Qijiang Qu Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Inteligent Manufacture Technology ~ company industrialisation ARE
Limited® HE - BRAR BEEX 100,000,00070
BETRAIEEREERRARARS®
Wuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ~ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limiteg*® T ARAA REEX 100,000,0007C
BAEREERENRARLA®
Chengdu Dayi China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Drawin Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
RARERRERMBEERAR®  HE - BRAF BEEZY 100,000,000 7T
Wuhan China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability - Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Limited@ company industrialisation ARE
REPRERBERHERAR HE FRAF BEEZY 100,000,000 7T
Chengdu China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability - Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Limited@ company industrialisation ARE
RHTRERBENRERAR  HE FRAR BEEZY 70,000,000

———

=~ J—

FER | grashregeras 213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

214

(Continued)

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

22 MIBATINER @)

@ TRAR—ZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
NESHBARRBE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE ARERE FEREERE
HMRLRE R H LRRLA WEBERLA  WEERLA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRITRAZE (BAL) (BAL) (BAL)
% % %
Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited*® ~ China, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -
RERREREENRERARC company industrialisation ARE
mE - BRAR BEEZY 150,000,000 7T
Langfang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited®®  company industrialisation ARE
BHER BEREARAR® mE - BRAR BEEZY 150,000,000 7T
Nantong Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 60% 40%
Manufacture Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limited*® (note () hE - BRAA BEEEL 100,000,0007C
HRERBENRERAT®
(it ()
Zhoukou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
ARERBEREARAR® mE - BRAR BEERY 70,000,000
Zhengzhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB300,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE
PNERBERBARAR® mE - BRAR BEERY 300,000,000
Zhengzhou Drawin Construction China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Limited*e company industrialisation AR#
PNERBERNERAT® mE - BRAR BEERY 30,000,0007
Drawin Intelligent Landscaping China, limited liability  Landscaping RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Co,, Lid.*® company services ARE
ERBERMTIRERAR® mE - BRAR Epvd v 50,000,000 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

22 B ATIMNER @)

@ TRAR—_ZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
NESHBARRBE : (&)

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of ~ Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BARERKE ARERE FEREERE

HMALR &S LRRLA  WEERLH  WEERLA

£ DREABRER  FTEE BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAL)

% % %

Drawin Intelligent Decoration China, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co,, Lid.*@ company services ARE
FRBERMIRERAF mE - ARAR RHRE 50,000,000

Drawin Construction Limited*® Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
EREERRIRARAG® company industrialisation ARE
HEl - BRAA BEEZL 100,000,000

Luoyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
REERBEREARARC mE - ARAR BEEZY 100,000,000 7T

Zhumedian Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
BEEERBENRBRARC mE - ARAR BEEZ(Y 60,000,000 7

Drawin Decoration and Construction  Ching, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Limitegxe company services ARE
LRBERNEBIRERAR® BB ARAA R 50,000,007

Henan Drawin Decoration Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB450,000,000 - 100% -
MEEREERDESRAERAA®  company industrialisation ARE
mE - ARAR BEEE 450,000,007

Haikou Drawin Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited* company industrialisation ARE
BOERRENRARAR® mE - ARAR BEEZ(Y 10,000,0007C
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n'.R

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

216

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

22 MEQRINER

@ TRAER-FT_—

(#)

F+—-_A=+—8H

MEBMBARRE : (B)

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BARERKE ARERE FEREERE

HMRLRE R H LRRLA WEBERLA  WEERLA

£ NREABRER  TEEH BRITRAZE (BAL) (BAL) (BAL)

% % %

Hainan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Construction company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limited*e mE - BRAR BEEEL 100,000,007

ARERBERENRERARC

Henan Delixin New Material China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Limited® company industrialisation ARE
MEENSTUEERARC HE - BRAR BEEE 30,000,0007

Luoyang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
REERBERNERAT® HE - BRAR BEEE 30,000,0007

Zhumadian Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
B EERBERN ERAR® HE - BRAR BEEE 30,000,0007C

Hefei Drawin Landscaping China, limited liability  Landscaping RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co., Ltd.*® company services ARE
AEEREANIRERAR® HE - BRAR Epvd v 10,000,000 7T

Hefei Drawin Decoration China, limited liability  Decoration RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co., Ltd.*® company services ARE
APERENHTRARAFC HE - BRAA EHRE 10,000,000

Henan DIT Green Technology China, limited liability  Construction RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation ARE
MHERGENRERAT HE - BRAR BEEZY 10,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2022: (Continued)

*  English for identification purpose only
AN Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC

law

@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law
# Registered as a limited liability company (invested by Hong
Kong) under PRC law

note (i):

note (ii):

The Group holds 97%, 51%, 51%, and 60% equity
interest of Nanjing DIT Limited*, Changsha DIT Limited*,
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited* and Nantong China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, respectively. The voting right
shall be exercised in proportion to the capital
contribution, according to the Company Articles. Except
for modification of Company Article, increase or
decrease of registered capital, company merger or
division and change of corporate structure, a resolution
to be made by the shareholders general assembly shall
be subject to adoption by more than half of the voting
rights held by the shareholders. Nanjing DIT Limited*,
Changsha DIT Limited*, Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT
Limited*, and Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited*
are owned by the Company and are accounted for as
subsidiaries by virtue of the Group’s control over it.

Pingdingshan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*, Shijiazhuang Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Limited*, Sunshine Universal
Development Limited and Xuzhou Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Limited* have been
deregistered or liquidated before 31 December 2022.

22 B ATIMNER @)

@ TRAR—_ZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
NESHBARRBE : (&

* EHES
N R BDEEEM BN E B AL

@ RIEFEEEFM BEANEREERF
# IRIBFPEAZEMBEREELF(GER
B&)

K - AEBDRFAERERS ERNE
BRAr RAEREERRAERA
A EEMBMNERTDENTAERA
AIMmEETRERSERKERAA]
97% ~ 51% * 51% ~ 60% H) A% 4 - 1R &
ARIER  RESAZHRFIZEE
EEBIFTEE FRORME - BRISER AR E AR
sk AR EMER - AEEHFk
DUREE QR FEHEIN  REKER
FHERRZHS 2 — U ERRERK
Ripid - ERAEEEHERERDE
BMEERAR RAOEREER TS
RAF - EEMBMNERBEREE
RARMEATRERSDEREAR
ARIMIESE - ZEFRAIBEADA
HEWERMBR R

Bat(i) - FIRILEREERRARAR > AR
HEREERRAR AR -~ Sunshine
Universal Development Limited 5 %
MEREENEERAAENR T
- A=FT—HBZAIEH -
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23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 URAEBEFIEEEEZEHTAR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

mNEMEE

NARBEFEAEESHTABENERE

the following: EVETYEE :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZB-=—F RZZT=—F
+=—B=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current: mE
— Wealth management product — B0 Em - 12,231
Non-current; JERB
— Unlisted equity instruments (note (a)) —EtmERTAAFE@E) 41,002 52,003
41,002 64,234
note (a): As at 31 December 2022, equity instruments are related to Mtet@: RZEZ_ZF+=-_A=+—H #=mITA

investments in seven (2021: seven) unlisted companies in
Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

B ERUARBEFENFEREN
M(ZE=Z—F : M) FLMAREM -

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 W NRKREL£EHIER
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

RZB-Z=—F RZZE—_—F
t=A=t—-8B +-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FéET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITGEREFERE
— Denominated in HKD — LUBITEHAE 702 18,024
— Denominated in RMB — UAREFHE 24,418 443,327
25,120 461,351
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25 RESTRICTED CASH

25 FIRFIRE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-ZE=-= RZEBZ—F
+=ZBA=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Restricted cash
— Deposit for bank borrowings —RITEEREZS - 130,000
— Deposit for bank notes — RITEZRZS 16,792 46,654
— Frozen for litigation (note (a)) — SFANRE (BaE(a) 38,459 11,063
55,251 187,717

note (a):  As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits with a carrying
amount of HK$38,459,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$11,063,000) were frozen due to litigation.

Hiat@: BE-—_—_FT-_—F+-_A=+—H0" KA
B 538,459,000 (= E=—F+ =8
=+—H : 11,063,000) % 7T) BERTTF KA

HRHVRAS -
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 BEA
Authorised shares ETE B AR

Number of
authorised shares
EERMER
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022 RoFE-—ER-—_FE-——F+=-HA=+—H 6,250,000,000

Issued shares ERITRG

Number of Ordinary shares
issued shares (nominal value)
(at HK$0.4 each) TER (mE)

As at 31 December 2021 and n=
2022 T

ERITRHOBE HK$000
(BR0.4%8T) TET
3,102,400,730 1,240,960

All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects.

PREERITERMES T EHZARFHEE -
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27 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

220

OF THE GROUP

27 AEEHEE ABILFHE

Attributable to owners of the Company

N E 2N 3
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R EE ELRE SARBREE HitE  ROWEH ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-s_-f
31 December 2022 TZR=t-BLEFE
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%—f—H 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54,213 1,425,619
Comprehensive income:; 2EKE
Loss for the year FNER - - - - (148,150) (148,150)
Other comprehensive income:  Ht2EKE :
Currency translation difference  HNEHEEE = (266,546) - - - (266,546)
Total comprehensive income for -~ FRZENEAE
the year - (266,546) - - (148,150) (414,696)
Transactions with owners: REFAETHRS
Capital injection by ownership HEEERTE
interests 74 - - - - 74
Share-based compensation KR BEROME - - - 8,382 - 8,382
Dividends paid BERRE - - (31,024) - - (31,024)
Others Htty (439) - - - = (439)
Total transactions with owners ~— EEAAETNR S (365) - (31,024) 8,382 - (23,007)
At 31 December 2022 i S—a
+-R=1+—H 1,031,540 (94,602) 100,142 44,773 (93,937) 987,916
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OF THE GROUP (continued)

27 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

27 AEEHEBE AEBGRE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHRE AER
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAOBE ERfE BARBHEE HitE  RIRER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEr FEL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED Hz-E--%
31 December 2021 +ZA=+-HLEE
At 1 January 2021 i S el =| 863,905 87,340 131,166 24,810 (78,162) 1,029,059
Comprehensive income:; 2HEKE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 132,375 132,375
Other comprehensive income:  Ht2EKE :
Currency translation difference  SMEREEE - 84,604 - - - 84,604
Total comprehensive income for ~ ER2 A LR
the year - 84,604 - - 132,375 216,979
Transactions with owners: HBREEAETHRS
Issue of ordinary shares BTEBR 168,000 - - - - 168,000
Share-based compensation KR BERGOME - - - 11,581 - 11,581
Total transactions with owners 285 AETTHR 5 168,000 - - 11,581 - 179,581
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—F
+-R=1t—H 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54,213 1,425,619
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28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 LAR{RMFFK
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of BEAATBRER_ZE-_FEF+HA++-HE
the Company on 17 July 2020, the Group adopted a new BHPRE S NEBE AN — B IEERSREET 2|
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). ([T &) - RIBBREE - &
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, a total number of 201,850 OOO{\Egﬂﬂg[s;gfggA_? THE+—
201,850,000 share options was subsequently granted to A=THEETLHERS - FRERE TRE
selected employees on 30 November 2020. Subject to RIEMSR[IEHE  BHNBREG =S
certain service and non-market performance conditions, “EF+—A=THRBEETIERE X
the granted share options can be vested in several B A 104 -
tranches since 30 November 2020 with a validity period of
10 years.
Movements in the number of share options granted and B ISR A R EABINEESITEEN
their related weighted average exercise prices were as BENIT :
follows:
Weighted average
Number of exercise price
share options per share option
SHBEREN
BREHE INEFITEE
Outstanding as at 1 January 2021 RZZE——F—H—H 199,900,000 HK$1.09
ﬁéﬂﬂiﬁﬁ 1.09%7T
Forfeited in 2021 RZEZ—FRRIK (3,990,000) HK$1.09
1.09%87T
Outstanding as at 31 December WZE-_—F+-HA=+—H 195,910,000 HK$1.09
2021 M ARTTE 1.097% 7T
Outstanding as at 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—H—H 195,910,000 HK$1.09
e ARTT1E 1.0958 7T
Forfeited in 2022 RZZBZZFREIK (42,860,000) HK$1.09
1.09 & T
Outstanding as at 31 December RZEZZF+=ZRA=+—H 153,050,000 HK$1.09
2022 M ARTTEE 1.09% T
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme as at 30 November 2020, the grant date,
was HK$ 27,794,000 and was determined by reference to
the market price of HK$1.09 per ordinary share on the grant
date.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 35,836,668
granted share options were cancelled and 7,023,332
granted share options were lapsed because of failure to
satisfy the non-market performance conditions.

The Group recognised an expense with a corresponding
increase in equity of HK$8,382,000 for the year ended 31

December 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$11,581,000).

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

28

LARRAR TR (@)

R-ZE-_ZTHE+—A=+HERHEBH)RE
ERESEEENERENLTER
27,794,000/ 7T« L ER N ARERE
BR1.09B T EETE °

BE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HItEE "
35,836,668 17 B 5 1 BB A& 42 1 7,023,332 0 E
KB EE ARG M E TS RAGHEmD
R FESH ORI -

AEERBE_TZ-_—_F+-A=+—H1t
F 5 e SR B 2 3 4B R 15 0 4 7= 8,382,000 7%

T(EHE_E-_—F+-_A=+—HILEFE:
11,581,000 7T) °

iz s

REBRFEERERNT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=B==F KT _—
+=ZH=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Changsha DIT Limited (“DIT Changsha”) ROPERBEREBR AR
(TRAELR]) 561,680 563,004
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited EEMBMERSERZER
NE] 73,445 74,829
Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited AR RER S ER
BERAFA 47,250 49,779
Nanjing DIT Limited AREREERFRBERAR] 7,193 7,106
689,568 694,718
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the DIT Changsha that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position —

29 FEFERRHEZS (@)

BEEAEEREZNHBARINMEE
BB
TXHEIEAERFEEHASEMEBEKX
HFEIER R R IS E R E -

MBRREME — RIER

DIT Changsha
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-B-ZF RZZT=——F
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
Current B
Assets EE 486,242 470,988
Liabilities afE& (148,734) (121,516)
Total current net assets BRE) & EFE 337,508 349,472
Non-current eI %))
Assets BE 594,733 672,002
Liabilities afE (21,967) (24,000)
Total non-current net assets BIEREEEFE 572,766 648,002
Net assets BEEFE 910,274 997,474
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

summarised statement of financial position —

DIT Changsha (Continued)

29 JFEIERRIERS @)

MBRRERBRE — RDER (F)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-ZE-_—_fF HgE_T-—F
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LLFE IEEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Revenue 1 ON 123,574 136,639
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETSBIAT (B518) SRR (4,074) 16,486
Income tax expenses PSR X 1,122 1,618)
Other comprehensive (l0ss)/income Hih 2 (&8) s _ _
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (BR) W EHE (2,952) 14,868
Total comprehensive (loss)/income PEREFEREZNEZE
allocated to non-controlling interests  (&18) W5 (1,447) 7,285
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ 3E 12 A% i 25 (< O A% 8. - =
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-ZB-—F gE_T_—%
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHFFMNESRE 28,242 19,037
Cash flows used in investing activities KEEBFIANRERE (985) (40,645)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing BMEER (FTA) 18R
activities REmE (41,657) 24,479
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash  BR&KIRESEEER (),
equivalents HEHNFRE (14,400) 2,871
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 REFBH
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
KRB RZT=——F
+=—A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
— 10 be recovered after more than — BRERE 1218 A & Uk [E
12 months 53,938 32,544
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk E 23,379 29,201
77,317 61,745
Deferred tax liabilities FEEBIEAE
— t0 be settled after more than 12 months — R #8:8 121& B & &1 (11,564) (12,200)
— t0 be settled within 12 months — B 1218 A RE (2,533) (2,123)
(14,097) (14,323)
Deferred tax assets — net EETIREE — F58 63,220 47,422
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account BEEFTSTERE BB Z BT -
is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z_—_F BE—_ZT—_—%F
+=—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
IEEE IHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
At beginning of the year RED 47,422 25,454
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (Note 12) =t A/ (30BR) 1Bz5 (K7L 12) 27,168 20,902
Currency translation differences INEEAT =R (11,370) 1,066
At the end of the year RER 63,220 47,422
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

30 EZERSH (@)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities RBE_E__FK_ZTE-_—%+_H
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, without =t+—HILFE BEMSHREENEBEDN
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within SE)(WEASRER BB EEEANIEKYE
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: BIAEER) AT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHER
Depreciation
Government of fixed
Grant assets Others Total
BR#E BEEERE Hit e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE--%#—-H—H 6,980 6,527 816 14,323
Credited to profit or loss FABE (439) (2,673) (1,432) (4,544)
Currency translation differences ~ JMNEHTE =5 (550) 4,793 75 4,318
At 31 December 2022 RIB-—F
+=A=+-H 5,991 8,647 (541) 14,097
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—-%—F—H 7,248 6,365 - 13,613
Credited to profit or loss FABE (474) 1) 804 319
Currency translation differences  SMNEHrE =% 206 173 12 391
At 31 December 2021 R-B=—-F
+=-A=+-8 6,980 6,527 816 14,323
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) IRIEFRB 5 ()
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFFBHEE
Elimination of
intra-group
unrealised Share-hased
Movements L) Tax losses profit  Provisions compensation Leases Total
EHEER
A IR E
REEE  AEREAN BE  EENH e ok

HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TR T FET FET FiET

At 1 January 2022 RZB-Zf-f-H 14,888 36,076 10,028 1,247 (494) 61,745
Credited to profit or loss AR 10,951 (2,372) 12,828 968 29 22,624
Currency translation differences SN EZE (1,414) (4,452) (1,527) (143) 484 (7,052)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+-A=1-H 24,425 29,252 21,329 2,072 239 77,317
At 1 January 2021 RZB--5-f-H 18,300 17,628 2,694 106 339 39,067
Credited to profit or loss AR (5,326) 19,036 7,364 1,121 (487) 21,208
Currency translation differences  SMEIEES 2414 (588) (30) 20 (346) 1470
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-E+ZA=1-H 14,838 36,076 10,028 1,247 (494) 61,745
Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have W TFAE RS ER DR M SEEFRIEEERA
been recognised to the extent that it is probable that FEFR  ARSARBEBBEELENEBRE
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such ERIBEECREEWBRER -

deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—0  A5ELE
unused tax losses of approximately HK$348.4 million on 31 HREBARSAREBENECHIBEEELN
December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately MABBBIL(ZE_—F+_A=1—
HK$169.3 million). H:%41693A8/BT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I SRR M RE
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As at

31 December

2022

R=-TE-—
+=—BA=+—H

HK$'000
TET

As at

31 December

2021

RZE=——F
F=H=+H—8

HK$°000
TET

B I ENHRIE —

B S EMNFRIE — @S

FEST B IR

M - BE RRERRER
B — B

M - BE REEERER
FE—F=hH

e BB 5 3R IB

Trade payables — third parties

Trade payables — related parties

Accrued tax payable

Accrued payable for property, plant and
equipment construction — related parties

Accrued payable for property, plant and
equipment construction — third parties

Amounts due to related parties

Notes payable

Accrued payroll

Provision for onerous contract BRSO G

Interest payable

1,326,121
18,818
104,877

92,773

43,334
63,466
34,016
28,179
10,075
3,241
221
67,156

1,223,820
10,015
62,399

64,786

68,338
205,769
58,977
11,493
15,989
2,318
256
47,848

1,792,277

1,772,008
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31

230

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, from the date when they were
incurred, is as follows:

31 ESZRHMEARIE®

BHRNFERRERRAELZ BN
AT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-ZTB-_=—F R=_T—_—F
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TF#ET

Less than 1 year DR—F 1,279,795 1,182,500
1t0 2 years —EMF 65,144 51,335
1,344,939 1,233,835

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of trade
and other payables approximate their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables are primarily denominated in
Renminbi.
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32 BORROWINGS 32 g8
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R=-=F== R-ZE_—F
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Non-current, secured: SEBNER - ﬁ%fii‘ﬁﬁ :
— Bank borrowings —RTER 1,304,645 1,672,723
— Other financial institution borrowings — Hfﬂi B RE B X - 18,366
Non-current, unsecured: FERNAR - MR -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 50,377 64,212
1,355,022 1,755,301
Less: Current portion of non-current B REEFRERNEE D
borrowings (500,664) (414,181)
Non-current, total FEENER - 485 854,358 1,341,120
Current, secured: BNER - AR
— Bank borrowings —RITEXR 376,998 174,902
Current, unsecured: BNER - IR
— Bank borrowings —RITER 39,070 249,075
416,068 423,977
Current portion of non-current borrowings & Hi & 2k &9 BNHAEE 500,664 414,181
Current, total BOER - 4Bt 916,732 838,158
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)

notes:

@

(b)

©

232

These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property,
plant and equipment (Note 15), right-of-use assets (Note 16) and
restricted cash deposit (Note 25) of the Group and/or
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or related parties
(Note 36(c)).

The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair values
approximate their carrying amounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group failed to repay
an instalment of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,389,647)
for one commercial bank borrowing due on 31 December 2022,
which constituted an event of default (“Bank Borrowing
Default”). This event resulted in the mentioned borrowing
amounted to RMB115,000,000 (equivalent to HK$128,740,470) as
at 31 December 2022 becoming immediately repayable if
requested by the lender, of which RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$67,168,941) represented bank borrowing with scheduled
repayment dates within one year, while the remaining
RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to HK$61,571,529) represented the
non-current portion with original maturity dates beyond 31
December 2023 that were reclassified as current liabilities.

This Bank Borrowing Default also triggered certain terms
specified in the Group’s other borrowing agreements and
resulted in the Group’s other borrowings amounted to
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$27,987,059) in total as at 31
December 2022 becoming immediately repayable if requested
by the lenders, which had been recorded as current liabilities.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group failed to repay
another three commercial bank borrowings amounted to
RMB33.0 million (equivalent to HK$36.9 million), these bank
borrowings had been recorded as current liabilities as at 31
December 2022.
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32 {BE @)

AEERFRTERALEEDE - BB k&
1 (M1RE15) ~ AR EE (FHFE16) RBERS
REFR (M aE25) (FEIR R AR RIS
R AR TT (P EE 36(C)) SR HELR -

FEREHUARREHE - RARBEREK
EERE °

HE_ZT__F+_A=+—HILFE K&
EXRgep—ER =T =F+=-A=+—HF|
Hp e 3 IR T8 R HA(E & A R %5 20,000,000
TC(H8 % 722,389,647 % 70 ) » H Ak iE # B 1+
(MRITEFEN D) - ZFHEBR T __F
+Z=A=+—H8 L&A R 115,000,000
TL(FE 1R 128,740,470 78) AR ERA B K
B BDEF(E 38+ H & A R 60,000,000 7T (1%
67,168,941 ) RTEEBRABMA—FA
B ERTTIE K+ M8k T A K ¥ 55,000,000 7T (48
ER61,571529% L) RREI BB BB T
—=Ff+=A=1+—B03kERBIHS  BEH
DERRBEE -

ZIRITIE BN T E R AR B E S K
BEETRK  BRAEER T __F1+=
A =+—B# M A4 A K 25,000,000
7L (FZ 12 27,987,059 7 7T ) BIA B sk A B KB
R EE - WELSARBAE -

BRE_T-__F+-A=+—RH% TEEX
BEEBSIIN=EMERTERARKIBOEE
T (HBER36IBEBT)  ZFRITEXER
B —F+-A=t+t—BAKRABRBEE -



NOTES TO TH

32 BORROWINGS (continued) 32

notes: (Continued)

(@) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's borrowings were
repayable as follows:

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR I RN GE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

nv'.R

BE #)
BfaE - (&)

@ KRBT _TE+_A=+—8"
REENEEEEERNAT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=TB==F R=ZF=—%F

+=HA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F&T

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIREK 916,732 838,158
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FRLRMF 286,897 412,626
Later than 2 years but within 5 years ZRMFERLRAF 567,461 784,516
Later than 5 years ZREF - 143,978
1,771,090 2,179,278

(e) The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

e BEZ_—_FrR-ZF-_—F+-_HA=+—H
I EREFRAT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=—ZB=—F R-E——4F

+=A=+-—H +=ZA=+—~

Bank borrowings RITERE 5.04% 5.18%
Other financial institution borrowings EHib e BB ER - 7.02%
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wZI'\

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n'.RAEE "; E% ﬁ‘I

(@) Cash used in operations (a) RKREFMARSE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-Z-—F BE_T_—
+=HA=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H
LFE LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT RLAT (B518), % F (169,709) 188,033
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation e 119,193 108,690
Amortisation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 28,065 35,501
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 333 451
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment ?ﬁﬁf'l‘i%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ’]’&ﬁ
properties BEBE (WK 423 (29)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial Lxﬂﬁ{ﬁﬁﬂriﬂﬁ 2k
assets at fair value through profit FFABENE mﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]
and loss AARBEEER, (W 6,860 (3,217)
Impairment loss of property, plantand ~ #1% - &= &% ﬁﬂdﬁ
equipment il 6,005 =
Gains on disposal of investment IR A B b EE W
properties - (216)
Shares of losses from associates FE(REGE A RIESE 21,817 28,965
Losses/(gains) on disposal of fixed PEBRTEEERR
assets (Yezs) 756 (5,449
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets  H & R#EEEWE (8,716) (1,199)
Provision for impairment of inventories & & R E & & 135 1,984
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 K H A W R IR
other receivables B 85,383 47,111
Interest income from bank deposits RITERAF BUA (2,039) (5,398)
Finance costs BbE R AN 76,001 56,912
Share-based compensation AR (7 B AR < 8,382 11,581
Operating profits before changes in EEE BB AL E BT
working capital 172,889 463,720
Decrease in restricted cash BRI S 2,466 31,896
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 37,903 (123,952)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K& H b FEUWFUIEL K
and prepayments TR FRIBE N (375,426) (1,139,249)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Eo A FE A BRI N 292,391 903,980
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEE N 11,452 43,332
Cash generated from operations REEERIRE 141,675 179,727
234 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 FERERERME@®
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) REFBEEMNAERE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HtEE HETHELNER
Amount
Deposit due to
for bank Lease Interest related
Cash borrowings Borrowings liabilities  payable parties Total
BITEE FEf
e RiEd B8 HEER EAFE BHARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAr TAL TAr FAr TAL
Net debt as at RZB=-F
31 December 2021 tZA=t-RAk
BEH 461,351 130000 179278 (119.221) (256) (05769  (1913.173)
Cash flows () REME() (419,793)  (130,000) 232,526 9,139 35 52,431 (255,662)
Disposal —lease liablites  HE—HEE(RE - - - 103,262 - - 103,262
Foreign exchange B R AR
adjustments (16,438) = 175,662 5419 = 12,434 177,077
Net debt as at e bk
31 December 2022 TZA=1-AH
FEE 25,120 - (1,771,090) (1,401) (221)  (140,904) (1,888,496)

0} Cash flows include non-cash transactions of additions in )
borrowings and settlements of trade payables.

REREBREFENLEZRNFRREETEIFRS
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34 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as
follows:

34 R

(@) BEFREE
RZEZZFRZZFTZ—F+=A
=+—H BiIfEHKRELEHNER
AT :

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R-BZ=—F RZZT_—%

+=-—B=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB REE 31,181 37,664

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease
commitments
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases related to short-term and low-value
leases not recognized in the financial statements as

(b) FAHUHEEHEERRE

REAATBUEREHE - AR H
TAERZEHREEEHREHEEN
REHEEMNFKEAT

follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZB-—F RZZT——F
+=A=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year —F A 42 50

35 Litigation

As at 31 December 2022, there were various litigations
against the Group which claimed by certain suppliers with
respect to overdue payables amounted to approximately
RMB130,122,000 (equivalent to HK$145,669,000) in total.
Based on the advice of legal counsel and/or information
available to the Group, the Directors are of the opinion that
no provision should be made for estimated liabilities for the
litigations.

236
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36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36 EBE RS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BABAINEBREHRBR
Name Relationship
28 B

Jianye Holdings Limited*
BEEERERAR]

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Group Limited*
EREENREEEEBRAR

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
EREEERHIREERR AT

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd.*
FRERNEIBRAR

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)
= (B IREBRAF ([F=IR])

Drawin Intelligent Construction Design
Company Limited*
FEREERERFTARRA

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.*
PRERABRLQR

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited*
MR RERFEREGR AR

Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material
Company Limited*
EREEHMER A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X A — F AR5 AR AR SR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

Al — AR AR PR AR A SR 42

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(R — S AR P2 P AL BR A 5

X

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [B) — S AR AR AR SR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
5 [A] — B AR AR AR TR 2 o)

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [B] — S AR AR AR SR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [Al — B AR AR AR AR AR 12

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(R — S AR PR AR SR A 5

X

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(A — AR AR P22 R A BR A%

ol
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36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36 EAEEA RS @)

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () B AMBBKREHBEREA)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
=y 2R

238

Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate
companies*
BEMERGERAT REN B AR

Henan Central China Property Management
Co., Ltd.*
AEREMXERFRAR

Zhengzhou One Family Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd.*
BN —REFREERAA

Henan Central China New Life Travel Service
Co., Ltd.*
T E R FE I S IRERS B R A A

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
EEBRTREZBRARAT

Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company
Limited*
WIREERBAR AR

Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Company Limited*
MARRERRBEREEAT

Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Company
Limited*
BEBEERBEERRBRAR

DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
S [A] — B AR R AR AR B 2 o)

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(A — AR AR PR AR A BR 42

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

M

B8] — B AR P2 AR AR BR 22
Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(R — S AR P2 P AL BRI 6

XA

An associate company of the Group
REEEHE A A
An associate company of the Group
NEEME S AR
An associate company of the Group
REREMEE AR
An associate company of the Group

REBONBE AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

36 EABtAE RS @)

Name and relationship with related parties () BEM AW BBKREHBERE)
(Continued)

Name Relationship

= 2R

Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
HEEREERBR AR

Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
MEEREERRAER AR

Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Limited*
BREBEEEREENMTIBERAR

Shanggiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
HMEEZEREENRARAT

Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction
Development Co., Ltd.*
AEERTIFEAREERERERAA

Henan Drawin Construction Engineering
Company Limited*
MAEREERRIERRAR

Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Industry Group Limited*
MEEREEMREXEBGR LA

Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction
Co., Ltd. *
AEERBEMNIEERAR

*  For Identification purpose only

An associate company of the Group

REEAEEE A A

An associate company of the Group

REREBEH S AR

An associate company of the Group

NEEREE S A A

An associate company of the Group

REEEEHEE QA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(A — AR A PR AR AR R R

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

R — 5 B R S

ol

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(] — B AR 422 i S BR SR 422

X

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

XH

[A] — AR A PR AR AR R R
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36

240

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has the following related party

transactions:

36 EAEEA RS @)

(b) HREBINXS

REBEE-ZT-_—FK
A=1+—HIFE "EBEUTHE
BHRS

— = —

— T —

—F1+=

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-_—_F g% —F
+=A=+—-HB +t=ZA=1+—H
EFE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Supply of prefabricated construction REEMHERERNERNEZER
components and products by the Group, HRER  BEAEMBA
including financing component recognized AERNBME R
in other income
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate  EEMERMDER AR L E
companies LopEEPNG 62,474 2,950
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS iEZ R EBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| 23,551 148,803
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Limited BEBEERBZEREER
NG| = 5,483
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology Group ZFEHR+TREZRFEER
Co., Ltd. AR] = 3,795
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBER AR - 1,345
86,025 162,376
Supply of decoration and landscaping EEHEL R B R
services by Group
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate ~ #EERMOER AR RE
companies NG 364,640 373,815
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS iEZ X EBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| - 1,250
Zhengzhou One Family Electronic Technology Co., ZFH—REFRIE AR A F
Ltd. - 394
364,640 375,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BABtA RS (@)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEEESNRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, REBEE-_ZT—_— —EBE-—F+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—HLEEE AEEBEUTH

transactions: (Continued)

BHRS : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
HE-ZT-_—_F H2-2-—%F
+=A=+-8B +=—A=+—8

LEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Leasing of properties to related parties HENXTEES
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREERREEXSERR
Industry Group Limited yNC] 4,746 2,827
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group £k ‘EEEREFEEER
Co., Ltd. NG| 3,662 9,861
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ERER AR D A
Limited 1,889 4,698
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREENV BB AR
Company Limited 1,461 1,512
11,758 18,898
Supply of consulting services by the Group A& B EEHHRHE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate ~ BEMERMNER DRI LE
companies NG 13,559 1,995
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS iEZRXREREBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| 4,392 5,369
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company WMIREEREHEERAA
Limited 473 -
Henan Central China Property Management AFRRENEERBRAR
Co., Ltd. 330 5115
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Limited BEBEERRERBEER
NG| 257 433
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ERERA AR D7)
Limited 180 8,161
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBER AR - 3,603
19,191 24,676
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36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

242

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b)
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has the following related party

transactions: (Continued)

36 EAEEA RS @)

HEAB TR S (&)
REBEE-ZT-_—FK

BhRS (&)

=
A=+ —RLFRE AEEEUTH

— T —

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-__F g5-%-—F
+=A=+—-H +=A=1+—8H
LEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Granting licenses to related parties HERFHUFEES
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design EREERERT AR AR
Company Limited 16,476 =
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction AEER TEAREER
Development Co., Ltd. ERAR AR 16,476 -
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ZEfEBEER S ERBZAR
Technology Limited AR] 7,468 4,547
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group &k 82 RRHREBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| - 34,099
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin Technology WA RERBHEEREE
Company Limited AR] - 11,594
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture MG ER S ERERERAA
Technology Limited - 5,456
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture RAEREERRARAA]
Technology Limited - 2,364
Shanggiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  BIE&EZEEATERAR
Technology Limited NG| - 2,046
40,420 60,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EABtAX S &)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEEESNRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, RBEE-_ TR T - —F+—
the Group has the following related party A=+—HLEEE AEEBEUTH
transactions: (Continued) BHR S : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
HE-ZT-_—_F H2-2-—%F
+=A=+-8B +=—A=+—8

LFE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Provision of engineering, procurementand BB SEENIE NI
construction general contracting services BEAERERYE
by a related party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group £k S iEZRZREREBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| 49,510 579,464
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR - 695
49,510 580,159
Provision of design services by a related B R AT RS
party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ERERFER AR
Limited 8,816 7,307
8,816 7,307
Provision of labor services by a related party BIE 5 124 B IR
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction AEERIERNEREER
Development Co., Ltd. BRAF 2,364 =
2,364 =
Leasing of properties by a related party BB RUMERE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate  ZEMERER A8 K EHTE
companies yNC] 4,790 4,506
4,790 4,506
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36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

244

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has the following related party

transactions: (Continued)

36 EAEEA RS @)

(b) EEEBLNXZ (&)

REBEE-_ZT_—_FK

— = —

— T —

—F1+=

A=+—BLEE AEEFUTH
BhRS (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-__F g5-%-—F
+=ZA=+-B +t=A=+—H
LEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasing of equipment by a related party BELREREHEE
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HREREBRAT 2,364 2,447
2,364 2,447
Payment on behalf of related parties by the ZAEBERKB@EH X
Group
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group £k ‘SRR BREEER
Co., Ltd. NG| 7,440 8,347
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREENREESEBR
Industry Group Limited yNC] 3,961 234
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HREREBRAT 1,094 2,265
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company £k B iR ER AR A A
Limited 598 523
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering Company il @5tk S 2 R TR AR
Limited yNC] 233 -
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction A A SR LI A 22 a8 3
Development Co., Ltd. EARR AR 8 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREENMARAR
Company Limited 7 -
13,341 11,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BABtA RS (@)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EERABEAMIRRE ()
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, REBEZE-_—FR-T=—F+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—HLEEE AEEBEUTH

transactions: (Continued)

BHRS : (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BE-E-—F - -—&
+=A=+-HB +=ZA=+—H~H

LEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Payment on behalf of the Group by a related BIEFREXLAEBI A
party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ERERA AR A7)
Limited 6,989 516
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group &R SRR HEEER
Co., Ltd. NG| 4,496 5,159
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREERREXEEAR
Industry Group Limited yNC] 1,443 22,446
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR 948 1,228
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Limited BEBEEREEREER
AR] 541 479
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology jalEI5E 7yi DERBEXEE
Industry Group Limited BRA 444 -
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate @%méﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ RARRE
companies U IIE=YNE] 69 =
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering Company il B 58k SeiEi2 R TR AR
Limited? NG| 60 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREEFMARD
Company Limited 45 20
15,035 29,848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

n'.R

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c)

246

Related-party balances

36 EAEEA RS @)

(c) EABETARR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i et o NZE-—F
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAEIT
Amount due from related parties FE UK BB 75 7R IE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its 2 HEMRMD AR AR M E

affiliate companies IEPNG 544,648 363,135
Drawin Intelligent Construction ék?i DR EE AR

Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG 240,262 136,909
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design EREERERFTAERA

Company Limited 33,039 21,531
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin HAFRERBEAERET

Technology Company Limited NG| 20,638 12,162
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction 5] F &8 & T [ A A4 22 3%

Development Co., Ltd.* ERARAH 13,440 =
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture E DERIREXEEFR

Technology Industry Group Limited NG| 12,290 7,775
Drawin Intelligent Construction New EREEFMAERA

Material Company Limited 12,165 11,298
Henan Drawin Landscaping Construction  Jal g 28 & Bk T2 A R A 7]

Co., Ltd. 12,090 -
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RRERBRAF 9,386 14,685
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming EEBRTREEREER

Technology Group Co., Ltd. NC] 7,140 7,801
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology I EERBEBRAR

Company Limited 3,330 6,019
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology ﬁﬁi?@%?ﬂ%&ﬂ&ﬁﬁi

Limited NC] 1,254 1,340
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. FFRER X AIGRE A 7 1,088 1,088
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green MR RERGEREER

Construction Investment Limited NC] 1,039 1,136
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering sk LERR TREAR

Ccompany Limited* NG 224 -
Zhengzhou One Family Electronic BN —REFRIEAERAA

Technology Co., Ltd. 1 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EABtAX S &)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) BAEES#eR(E)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-B-—F RZT=—%F
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Jianye Holdings Limited BREERBR AT 2 -
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture A B &R AR A A
Technology Limited - 29,354
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent EREBEIEREERBAER
Manufacture Technology Limited NG| - 24,462
Shangaiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent MESZEEREERBRER
Manufacture Technology Limited NS - 22,016
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture BRBZER S ERHEER A A
Technology Limited - 13,454
912,046 674,206
Amount due to related parties FE{TBAER 5 FIE
Drawin Intelligent Construction EREERIVEEBREAR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG 119,051 309,108
Jiayao Global Investments Limited =R (BER)REBRAA
("Jiayao") (Tz=1))
— Current (note (a)) — mE Kzt @) 3,550 77,438
— Non-current (note (a)) — BB (K5t (@) 77,438 4,000
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREEMREEEEFR
Technology Industry Group Limited NE] 33,260 101,683
Central China Real Estate Limited and EEMERMNDERAR R
its affiliate companies EHBAR] 26,121 9,778
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design EREERERFTBRAR
Company Limited 14,059 7,094
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FREKBRAR 8,708 6,838
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology MIZEERREBERAR
Company Limited 5,102 2,266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

248

36 EAEEA RS @)

(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) PBABES#eR(E)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Rn=2== RZT_—F
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Henan Drawin Labour Center Construction Ja/EISE & T IF A A& ER
Development Co., Ltd.* ERABRAA 1,011 =
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology BRI ERBER AR
Limited NC] 743 265
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture MHEEREERREEEE
Technology Industry Group Limited BRATA 324 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New ERBENMBRAF]
Material Company Limited 71 34
Henan Drawin Construction Engineering AR SEEZRTRAR
Company Limited* NG| 58 -
Jianye Holdings Limited BEERERAF] 7 8
Henan Central China New Life Travel V] B SR R AV IR 1 AR 7S
Service Co., Ltd. BRAE] 4 5
289,507 518,517

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, the amounts due to Jiayao

it -

Global Investments Limited of US$10.0 million (equivalent
to HK$77.4 million) and HK$3.6 million are unsecured and
bear no interest, of which HK$3.6 million will be matured
within one year and HK$77.4 million will be matured till

August 2024.

Save as disclosed in note(a), all other amounts due
from or due to related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and are repayable on demand or within one

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I ERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BAEtARS #)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREET 4Eeh (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-ZT-—F R=ZT=—_—F
+=—A=+—H +-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Guarantee/security for borrowings BB S IREMNESIER
provided by the related party Eiidii
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREENREEEBFR
Technology Industry Group Limited N 466,376 732,338
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAT 145,533 171,233
Drawin Intelligent Construction FREERZVEEBRER
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG 11,195 36,693
623,104 940,264
(d) Key management compensation (d) EEEEASME
Key management includes directors (executive and FTEEBEABBREES (T RIEH
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 7)) BFEVEE BEXERERED
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or B -REERBENXENEEZER
payable to key management for employee services is ABRMEFIRAT ¢
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BE-ZS_—F 2 ——%F
+=H=+—8B +-—A=+—H

IEFE LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & & E 52 #i (& & & 7
benefits 7,057 9,669
Share-based compensation LARE 0 A AT R B S 2,004 4,057
9,061 13,726
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37 AATMEBRRRREELE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
RZB-—F RZZT—_—%
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MERE 13 30
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,256 6,282
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIMEE 28,857 22,405
30,126 28,717
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H A e GRIB LA & T8
prepayments NGS5 1,760,978 1,792,297
Cash and cash equivalents He kBEeSEIER 629 17,899
1,761,607 1,810,196
Total assets BEE 1,791,733 1,838,913
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital PR 1,240,960 1,240,960
Reserves (note (a)) (Kt @) 462,231 507,920
Total equity e 1,703,191 1,748,880
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBASE
Lease Liabilities HESE - 5,234
Amount due to related parties FET ARG 75 5B 77,438 -
77,438 5,234
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b FIE 9,711 83,444
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,355 1,355
Dividends payable FEAT R B 38 -
11,104 84,799
Total liabilities BERE 88,542 90,033
Total equity and liabilities ERRBEREE 1,791,733 1,838,913
The statement of financial position of the Company was RARMMERAEZR T =F=H="
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and BgEsedhft YTHUTEERRESS
was signed on its behalf by: BE:
Liu Weixing Guo Weigiang ZEE SpeETR
Director Director EoEd o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DA IE R R 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —E -4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

note:

Reserve movements of the Company

n‘l'.R

37 ARRNBMBRARRKMEELE

()

(e

(@ AARNRELE

Contributed
Share surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
#MA

R4 5 1E BEARE Hith R RitER B

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZTZ—5—F—HANEH 815,125 157,955 1,026 (618,008) 356,098
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 168,000 - - - 168,000
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (27,759) (27,759)
Other comprehensive 0ss: Hit2EES : = = = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZEEEEE 168,000 - - (27,759 140,241
Share-based compensation AR BERNEE - - 11,581 - 11,581

Balance at 31 December 2021 RZZE=—%+-A=+—H

oFeR 983,125 157,955 12,607 (645,767) 507,920

Balance at 1 January 2022 RIZZZ5—A—BM&H 983,125 157,955 12,607 (645,767) 507,920
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (22,608) (22,608)
Other comprehensive 0ss: Hin2HEEE : - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZHEERAE - = = (22,608) (22,608)
Share-based compensation PABR (2 A E T B & - - 8,382 - 8,382
Dividends paid BARE - (31,024) - - (31,024)
Share buy-backs e (439) = = = (439)

Balance at 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-R=+—H

AR 982,686 126,931 20,989 (668,375) 462,231

B FERIE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T F RIS E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #i&2—E -4+ _A=+—HIFE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the  AEERBEREEE HEWESE  BERA
last five years/period is as follows: BEMEWNT :
For the year For the year For the year Fortheyear  For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
BE-Z-\F HE-Z—NF BE_Z-Z2F HE_ZT_—F HE-T-Zf
+-A=+—-H +ZA=+-H +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—-H +=BA=+-H
HEE HFE IEFE IEEE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results £
Revenue WA 530,232 695,901 1,089,284 2,085,226 1,573,662
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BrFT1S R Al
(B1),/ &7l 26,243 138,935 214,691 188,033 (169,709)
Income tax expense FEHRAX (6,903) (25,318) (44,725) (49,056) 16,134
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B8B),/ &7 19,340 113,617 169,966 138,977 (153,575)
(Loss)/profit attributable to AREEBARE
owners of the Company (B18),/ &7 27,427 110,749 158,833 132,375 (148,150)
As at As at As at As at As at
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
RZZT— E RZZE—-NE RZIT-TF RIT-—F RIZ-ZF
+ZA=t-8 +ZRA=+-8 +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—-H +=A=+-H
HKS' ()00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT FET FET
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 3,358,006 3,466,997 5,213,352 7,560,802 6,689,926
Total liabilities BaE 949,477 1,047,954 2,391,768 4,199,505 3,771,482
Total equity BRESR 2,378,529 2,419,043 2,821,584 3,361,297 2,918,444
252 DIT Group Limited + 2022 Annual Report
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